
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

CHIPPING BARNET AREA COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

THURSDAY 12TH FEBRUARY, 2015 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

1255 HIGH ROAD, WHETSTONE, N20 0EJ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF CHIPPING BARNET AREA COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Stephen Sowerby 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Bridget Perry 
 

Councillors 
 

Caroline Stock 
Pauline Coakley Webb 
 

Amy Trevethan 
Philip Cohen 
 

Andreas Ioannidis 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Brian Salinger 
David Longstaff 
Alison Cornelius 
 

Reema Patel 
Tim Roberts 

Laurie Williams 
Kathy Levine 
 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood– Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Maria Lugangira  020 8359 2761 

 
Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes of the last Meeting  
 

1 - 12 

2.   Absence of Members (if any)  
 

 

3.   Declarations of Members Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and 
Non-pecuniary Interests  
 

 

4.   Report of the Monitoring Officer (if any)  
 

 

5.   Public Questions and Comments (if any)  
 

 

6.   Members' Items (if any)  
 

 

7.   Walksafe N10 Phase 2 - Colney Hatch Lane Pedestrain and 
Saftey Improvements  
 

13 - 20 

8.   Walksafe N14 - Feasibility Study  
 

21 - 40 

9.   Pollard Road Traffic Management Scheme  
 

41 - 60 

10.   Victoria Road Area Traffic Management Scheme  
 

61 - 88 

11.   Naylor and Birley Road N20 - request for a Controlled Parking 
Zone  
 

89 - 100 

12.   Review of London Cycle Campaign proposed schemes for 
Chipping Barnet  
 

101 - 116 

13.   Matters referred from the Chipping Barnet Residents Forum  
 

 

14.   Any item(s) the Chairman decides are Urgent  
 

 

 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Maria Lugangira  
020 8359 2761.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text phone, may telephone our 
minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

    

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Decisions of the Chipping Barnet Area Committee 

 
15 January 2015 

 
Members Present:- 

 
Councillor Stephen Sowerby (Chairman) 

Councillor Bridget Perry (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor Caroline Stock 
Councillor Pauline Coakley Webb 
Councillor Amy Trevethan 
 

Councillor Philip Cohen 
Councillor Andreas Ioannidis 
 

 
 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 22 October 2014 be 
agreed as a correct record. 
 
 

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

Councillor Agenda Item Nature of Interest 

Pauline 
Coakely-Webb 

Item 7 – Area Committee 
Budget Allocations. 
 
East Barnet Community 
Festival 
 
Friern Barnet Community 
Library 

Non-Pecuniary Interest as 
Councillor Coakley Webb is 
a trustee of the East Barnet 
Community Festival 

Non-Pecuniary Interest as 
Councillor Coakley Webb is 
a trustee Friern Barnet 
Community Library 

 
 

4. REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 

6. MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1

1



 
7. AREA COMMITTEE BUDGET ALLOCATIONS  

 
The Committee considered the recommendations in the report. The Head of Governance 
introduced the report and provided an overview of the applications and assessments 
process.   
 
The Head of Governance clarified the following points raised by the Committee: 
 
1. Sponsor Councillors 

The report contained some misleading labelling in that not all Councillors listed as 
sponsors of applications were formal sponsors. It was noted that legal advice had 
been received to confirm that all members would have the right to vote on all of the 
applications, regardless of their status as a sponsor.  

 
1. Considering applications that have not passed the due diligence test  

Officers assessed the application against the guidance and conditions of grant and 
on that basis made recommendations to the Committee. Where applications had 
not passed the due diligence test but the Committee was minded to approve them 
there was an element of risk - the ultimate decision rested with the Committee. 

 
The Committee considered each application in turn. The Chairman introduced each 
application and invited discussion by the Committee. Where there were outstanding 
matters which required clarification, Committee Members asked questions of applicants 
present in the meeting, and responses were provided. 
 
RESOLVED –   
 
1. That following consideration of each of the applications the Committee approve/ 

reject the applications as set out Appendix 1 of the minutes. 
2. That the Committee note total funds allocated is £48,796 with the remaining 

£51,204 to be rolled over to the next round of funding. 
 
 

8. MATTERS REFERRED FROM THE CHIPPING BARNET RESIDENTS FORUM  
 
There were none. 
 

9. ANY ITEM(S) THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
There were none. 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 9.50 pm 
 
 

2



C
H
IP
P
IN
G
!B
A
R
N
E
T
!A
R
E
A
!C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
!"
!B
U
D
G
E
T
!A
LL
O
C
A
T
IO
N
S
!–
!1
5
!J
A
N
U
A
R
Y
!2
0
1
5
!

!
A
p
p
li
ca
n
t/
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
!

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
!

A
m
o
u
n
t!

a
p
p
li
e
d
!f
o
r!

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
/R
e
je
ct
e
d
,!
a
n
d
!a
n
y
!c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s!

1
.!

E
xp

o
su

re
!O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

!L
td

"!

!

M
e
d

ia
!P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

!T
ra

in
in

g
!

E
n

co
u

ra
g
in

g
!y

o
u

n
g

!p
e
o

p
le

!e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y

!t
h

o
se

!a
t!

ri
sk

!o
f!

b
e
co

m
in

g
!

v
ic

ti
m

s!
o

f!
d

o
m

e
st

ic
!v

io
le

n
ce

!t
o

!u
se

!m
e

d
ia

!p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
!a

s!

cr
e
a
ti

v
e

!r
e
le

a
se

.!
!!

£
9

,9
9

8
!

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

!s
u

b
je

ct
!t

o
:!

!
! 1

.
th

e
!p

ro
je

ct
!e

n
su

ri
n

g
!f

a
ir

!a
n

d
!o

p
e

n
!a

cc
e

ss
,!
a
n

d
!t

h
a
t!

so
ci

a
l!
w

o
rk

!t
e
a
m

s!
w

il
l!
b

e
!a

b
le

!t
o

!m
a
k
e

!r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

!i
n

to
!i
t.

!
!

2
.

re
v
ie

w
!b

y
!t

h
e

!c
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!o
ff

ic
e
rs

,!
o

f!
th

e
!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!b
y

!t
h

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t.

!
! 3

.
th

e
!c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s!
o

f!
g
ra

n
t!

a
s!

se
t!

o
u

t!
in

!!A
n

n
e
x!

3
!o

f!
th

e
!

re
p

o
rt

!o
f!

o
ff

ic
e
rs

.!
!

F
in

a
l!
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
is

!d
e
le

g
a
te

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

F
in

a
n

ce
!O

ff
ic

e
r!

(o
r!

o
th

e
r!

o
ff

ic
e
r!

a
s!

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

)!
su

b
je

ct
!t

o
!

th
e

!r
e
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

a
n

y
!s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!w
h

ic
h

!h
a
s!

b
e
e
n

!r
e
q

u
e
st

e
d

!i
n

!r
e
la

ti
o

n
!t

o
!1

!a
n

d
!2

.!
a
b

o
v
e
.!

!

2
.!

T
h

e
!T

ra
v
e
ll
e
r!

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

t!
!

A
d

v
o

ca
cy

!
a
n

d
!
p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

!
su

p
p

o
rt

!
fo

r!
G

y
p

sy
!
R

o
m

a
!
T
ra

v
e
ll
e
r!

(G
R

T
)!

T
o

!r
e
d

u
ce

!t
h

e
!d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

!n
u

m
b

e
r!

o
f!

sc
h

o
o

ls
!e

xc
lu

si
o

n
s!

g
iv

e
!t

o
!G

R
T

!y
o

u
n

g
!p

e
o

p
le

!a
n

d
!t

o
!e

m
p

o
w

e
r!

G
R

T
!p

a
re

n
ts

!t
o

!

m
a
k
e

!m
o

re
!i
n

fo
rm

e
d

!d
e
ci

si
o

n
s!

a
ro

u
n

d
!t

h
e
ir

!c
h

il
d

’s
!e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

!

£
,2

0
1

9
!

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

!s
u

b
je

ct
!:

!

1
.

re
v
ie

w
!b

y
!t

h
e

!c
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!o
ff

ic
e
rs

,!
o

f!
th

e
!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!b
y

!t
h

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t.

!
!

2
.

to
!t

h
e

!C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s!

o
f!

G
ra

n
t!

a
s!

se
t!

o
u

t!
in

!A
n

n
e
x!

3
!o

f!
th

e
!

re
p

o
rt

!o
f!

o
ff

ic
e
rs

!
! F
in

a
l!
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
is

!d
e
le

g
a
te

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

F
in

a
n

ce
!O

ff
ic

e
r!

(o
r!

o
th

e
r!

o
ff

ic
e
r!

a
s!

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

)!
su

b
je

ct
!t

o
!

th
e

!r
e
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

a
n

y
!s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!w
h

ic
h

!h
a
s!

b
e
e
n

!r
e
q

u
e
st

e
d

!i
n

!r
e
la

ti
o

n
!t

o
!1

!a
b

o
v
e
.!

!

3
.!

N
e
w

!B
a
rn

e
t!

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

!

A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

!!

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
!s

a
fe

ty
!a

n
d

!s
e
cu

ri
ty

!

N
e
w

!B
a
rn

e
t!

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

!C
e
n

tr
e

!!
"!

re
p

la
ci

n
g

!a
cc

e
ss

!p
a
th

!t
h

a
t!

h
a
v
e

!d
e

te
ri

o
ra

te
d

!a
n

d
!u

p
d

a
ti

n
g

!t
o

!m
e
e
t!

n
e
w

!s
a
fe

ty
!s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s!

fi
re

!e
xi

st
s!

.!

£
4

,3
5

0
!

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

!s
u

b
je

ct
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s!

o
f!

G
ra

n
t!

a
s!

se
t!

o
u

t!
in

!

A
n

n
e
x!

3
!o

f!
th

e
!r

e
p

o
rt

!o
f!

o
ff

ic
e
rs

!

!
!

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

3



!
A
p
p
li
ca
n
t/
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
!

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
!

A
m
o
u
n
t!

a
p
p
li
e
d
!f
o
r!

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
/R
e
je
ct
e
d
,!
a
n
d
!a
n
y
!c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s!

4
.!

B
a
rn

e
t!

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

!P
ro

je
ct

s!
S
ta

rt
"u

p
!f

u
n

d
!

S
e
e
k
in

g
!a

!s
ta

rt
"u

p
!f

u
n

d
s!

(f
o

r!
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t!
e
tc

)!
fo

r!
th

e
!A

rc
!

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

!C
a
re

!a
t!

th
e

!R
a
in

b
o

w
!C

e
n

tr
e

!o
n

!t
h

e
!D

o
ll
is

!V
a
ll
e
y

!

E
st

a
te

!

£
4

,9
4

7
!

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

!s
u

b
je

ct
!:

!
! 1

.
re

v
ie

w
!b

y
!t

h
e

!c
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!o
ff

ic
e
rs

,!
o

f!
th

e
!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!b
y

!t
h

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t.

!
!

2
.

to
!t

h
e

!C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s!

o
f!

G
ra

n
t!

a
s!

se
t!

o
u

t!
in

!A
n

n
e
x!

3
!o

f!
th

e
!

re
p

o
rt

!o
f!

o
ff

ic
e
rs

!
! F
in

a
l!
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
is

!d
e
le

g
a
te

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

F
in

a
n

ce
!O

ff
ic

e
r!

(o
r!

o
th

e
r!

o
ff

ic
e
r!

a
s!

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

)!
su

b
je

ct
!t

o
!

th
e

!r
e
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

a
n

y
!s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!w
h

ic
h

!h
a
s!

b
e
e
n

!r
e
q

u
e
st

e
d

!i
n

!r
e
la

ti
o

n
!t

o
!1

!a
b

o
v
e
.!

!

5
.!

S
t!

M
a
ry

!t
h

e
!V

ir
g
in

!C
h

u
rc

h
!

F
o

o
tp

a
th

!r
e

p
a
ir

!

R
e
la

y
in

g
!o

f!
fo

o
tp

a
th

s!
a
cr

o
ss

!c
h

u
rc

h
y
a
rd

!!

!

£
5

,0
0

0
!

D
E
F
E
R

R
E
D

!t
o

!t
h

e
!n

e
xt

!r
o

u
n

d
!o

f!
A

re
a

!C
o

m
m

it
te

e
!B

u
d

g
e
t!

a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
s!

a
s!

cl
a
ri

fi
ca

ti
o

n
!i
s!

re
q

u
ir

e
d

!a
s!

to
!w

h
e
th

e
r!

th
e

!o
n

"

g
o

in
g

!m
a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
!l
ia

b
il
it

y
!f

o
r!

th
e

!p
a
th

!l
ie

s!
w

it
h

!t
h

e
!C

h
u

rc
h

!

o
r!

th
e

!C
o

u
n

ci
l!

!

6
.!

B
a
rn

e
t!

E
li
za

b
e
th

a
n

s!
R

u
g
b

y
!

F
o

o
tb

a
ll

!

M
o

d
e
rn

is
in

g
!f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s!

T
o

ta
l!
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e
n

t!
o

f!
th

e
!g

e
n

t’
s!

to
il
e
ts

!a
t!

th
e

!c
lu

b
!h

o
u

se
!

£
4

,8
0

0
!

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

!s
u

b
je

ct
!:

!

! 1
.

re
v
ie

w
!b

y
!t

h
e

!c
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!o
ff

ic
e
rs

,!
o

f!
th

e
!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!b
y

!t
h

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t.

!

2
.

to
!t

h
e

!C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s!

o
f!

G
ra

n
t!

a
s!

se
t!

o
u

t!
in

!A
n

n
e
x!

3
!o

f!
th

e
!

re
p

o
rt

!o
f!

o
ff

ic
e
rs

!

! F
in

a
l!
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
is

!d
e
le

g
a
te

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

F
in

a
n

ce
!O

ff
ic

e
r!

(o
r!

o
th

e
r!

o
ff

ic
e
r!

a
s!

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

)!
su

b
je

ct
!t

o
!

th
e

!r
e
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

a
n

y
!s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!w
h

ic
h

!h
a
s!

b
e
e
n

!r
e
q

u
e
st

e
d

!i
n

!r
e
la

ti
o

n
!t

o
!1

!a
b

o
v
e
.!

!

!
!

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

4



!
A
p
p
li
ca
n
t/
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
!

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
!

A
m
o
u
n
t!

a
p
p
li
e
d
!f
o
r!

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
/R
e
je
ct
e
d
,!
a
n
d
!a
n
y
!c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s!

7
.!

F
ri

e
n

d
s!

o
f!

F
ri

a
ry

!P
a
rk

!
T
a
b

le
!T

e
n

n
is

!&
!H

o
p

sc
o

tc
h

!

In
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n

!o
f!

a
!f

u
ll

!s
iz

e
d

!c
o

n
cr

e
te

!t
a
b

le
!t

e
n

n
is

!i
n

!F
ri

a
ry

!P
a
rk

!

a
n

d
!t

h
e

!i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
!o

f!
h

o
p

sc
o

tc
h

!l
a
y
o

u
t!

w
it

h
in

!t
h

e
!s

a
m

e
!a

re
!

£
3

,6
7

5
!

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

!s
u

b
je

ct
!t

o
:!

!
! 1

.
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
fr

o
m

!t
h

e
!G

re
e

n
sp

a
ce

s!
T
e
a
m

!t
h

a
t!

th
e

!t
a
b

le
!i
s!

o
f!

th
e

!a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

!q
u

a
li
ty

.!
!

2
.

th
e

!c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s!

o
f!

g
ra

n
t!

a
s!

se
t!

o
u

t!
in

!A
n

n
e
x!

3
!o

f!
th

e
!

re
p

o
rt

.!
!

! F
in

a
l!
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
is

!d
e
le

g
a
te

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

F
in

a
n

ce
!O

ff
ic

e
r!

(o
r!

o
th

e
r!

o
ff

ic
e
r!

a
s!

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

)!
su

b
je

ct
!t

o
!

th
e

!r
e
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

a
n

y
!s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!w
h

ic
h

!h
a
s!

b
e
e
n

!r
e
q

u
e
st

e
d

!i
n

!r
e
la

ti
o

n
!t

o
!1

.!
a
b

o
v
e
.!

!

8
.!

A
fr

ic
a
n

!C
a
ri

b
b

e
a
n

!

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t!
F
o

u
n

d
a
ti

o
n

!

A
ct

iv
e
s!

fo
r!

y
o

u
th

!a
t!

ri
sk

!

T
h

e
!p

ro
je

ct
!t

a
rg

e
ts

!1
3

!t
o

!2
4

!y
e
a
r!

o
ld

s!
a
n

d
!f

o
cu

se
s!

o
n

!l
in

k
in

g
!

fi
n

a
n

ci
a
l!
li
te

ra
cy

!w
it

h
!e

n
te

rp
ri

se
!d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t!
a
n

d
!l
if

e
!

le
a
rn

in
g

!s
k
il
ls

!

£
8

,5
0

0
!

R
E
F
U

S
E
D

!f
o

r!
th

e
!f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
!r

e
a
so

n
s:

!

!

!
In

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t!

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

!o
n

!h
o

w
!t

h
e

!p
ro

je
ct

!w
il
l!
b

e
!

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

!

!
N

o
!b

u
d

g
e
t!

b
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
!b

e
in

g
!p

ro
v
id

e
d

;!

!
A

!l
a
ck

!o
f!

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

!o
n

!t
h

e
!s

tr
u

ct
u

re
!o

f!
th

e
!c

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

!

a
n

d
!w

h
a
t!

it
!e

n
ta

il
s;

!!

!
N

o
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
!e

v
id

e
n

ce
!o

f!
h

o
w

!o
th

e
r!

si
m

il
a
r!

p
ro

je
ct

s!

h
a
v
e

!b
e
e

n
!d

e
li
v
e
re

d
!a

n
d

!w
h

a
t!

w
a
s!

th
e

!o
u

tc
o

m
e
;!
a
n

d
!

!
H

o
w

!t
h

e
!s

ch
e
m

e
!w

o
u

ld
!b

e
!p

ro
m

o
te

d
,!
in

cl
u

d
in

g
!a

!

p
ro

fi
le

!o
f!

th
e

!y
o

u
n

g
!p

e
o

p
le

!!
b

e
in

g
!t

a
rg

e
te

d
.!

!
T
h

e
!s

ch
e

m
e

!i
s!

b
a
se

d
!i
n

!t
w

o
!l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s!
o

n
e

!o
f!

w
h

ic
h

!f
a
ll
s!

o
u

ts
id

e
!t

h
e

!C
h

ip
p

in
g

!B
a
rn

e
t!

A
re

a
!.

!T
h

e
!c

o
m

m
it

te
e

!

n
o

te
d

!t
h

a
t!

th
e

!a
p

p
li
ca

n
t!

co
u

ld
!h

a
v
e

!m
a
d

e
!a

!j
o

in
t!

a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!t

o
!t

h
e

!H
e
n

d
o

n
!A

re
a

!C
o

m
m

it
te

e
!t

h
u

s!
h

a
lv

in
g

!

th
e

!c
o

st
!b

u
rd

e
n

!t
o

!t
h

e
!C

h
ip

p
in

g
!B

a
rn

e
t!

A
re

a
!

co
m

m
it

te
e

.!

!
T
h

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t!

co
u

ld
!n

o
t!

p
ro

v
id

e
!e

v
id

e
n

ce
!t

h
a
t!

th
e
y

!h
a
d

!

a
g
re

e
d

!u
sa

g
e

!o
f!

th
e

ir
!p

ro
p

o
se

d
!v

e
n

u
e
s.

!!
!!

!!
!

! T
h

e
!C

o
m

m
it

te
e

!n
o

te
d

!t
h

a
t!

th
e

!a
p

p
li
ca

n
t!

h
a
d

!a
g
re

e
d

!t
o

!

w
it

h
d

ra
w

!t
h

e
!c

o
st

!o
f!

th
e

!M
e
n

to
r!

a
n

d
!V

o
lu

n
te

e
r!

fr
o

m
!t

h
e
ir

!

a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

5



!
A
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
/o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
!

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
!

A
m
o
u
n
t!

a
p
p
li
e
d
!f
o
r!

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
/R
e
fu
se
d
,!
a
n
d
!a
n
y
!c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s!

9
.!

F
ri

e
rn

!B
a
rn

e
t!

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

!

Li
b

ra
ry

!

E
S
O

L!
a
n

d
!C

o
m

p
u

te
r!

cl
a
ss

e
s!

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

!i
s!

to
!r

u
n

!2
!c

la
ss

e
s!

(i
)!

E
S
O

L!
a
im

e
d

!a
t!

p
a
re

n
ts

!o
f!

ch
il
d

re
n

!i
n

!l
o

ca
l!
sc

h
o

o
ls

!(
b

u
t!

st
il
l!
o

p
e
n

!t
o

!i
n

te
re

st
e
d

!l
ib

ra
ry

!

u
se

rs
)!

a
n

d
!(

ii
)!

fo
rt

n
ig

h
tl

y
!c

o
m

p
u

te
r!

cl
a
ss

e
s!

£
5

,0
0

0
!

! C
o

m
m

it
te

e
!

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

!

£
2

,5
0

0
!

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

!£
2

,5
0

0
!f

o
r!

a
!p

e
ri

o
d

!o
f!

si
x!

m
o

n
th

!t
o

!a
ll
o

w
!t

h
e

!

Li
b

ra
ry

!t
o

!m
o

n
it

o
r!

a
n

d
!r

e
v
ie

w
!t

h
e

!o
n

"g
o

in
g

!!
fi

n
a
n

ci
a
l!

!

v
ia

b
il
it

y
!o

f!
th

e
!t

ra
in

in
g

!o
ff

e
re

d
.!
T
h

e
!C

o
m

m
it

te
e

!n
o

te
d

!t
h

a
t!

if
!

th
e

!t
ra

in
in

g
!p

ro
v
e
d

!s
u

cc
e
ss

fu
l!
o

v
e
r!

a
!s

ix
!m

o
n

th
!p

e
ri

o
d

!t
h

e
!

Li
b

ra
ry

!c
o

u
ld

!r
e
a
p

p
ly

!i
n

!t
h

e
!n

e
xt

!f
u

n
d

in
g

!r
o

u
n

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!

C
h

ip
p

in
g

!B
a
rn

e
t!

A
re

a
!C

o
m

m
it

te
e

!f
o

r!
a

!f
u

rt
h

e
r!

si
x!

m
o

n
th

s!

fu
n

d
in

g
.!

!!

! F
u

n
d

in
g

!w
a
s!

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

!s
u

b
je

ct
!t

o
!t

h
e

!f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
.!

!
! 1

.
re

ce
ip

t!
o

f!
a

!b
u

d
g
e

t!
b

re
a
k
d

o
w

n
!f

o
r!

th
e

!p
ro

je
ct

.!
!

2
.

re
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

fu
rt

h
e
r!

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

!o
n

!t
h

e
!p

ro
p

o
se

d
!o

u
tp

u
ts

,!

su
ch

!a
s!

n
u

m
b

e
r!

o
f!

se
ss

io
n

s!
p

la
n

n
e
d

!f
o

r!
e
a
ch

!c
o

u
rs

e
!

a
n

d
!t

a
rg

e
t!

n
u

m
b

e
r!

o
f!

a
tt

e
n

d
e
e
s.

!
! 3

.
re

v
ie

w
!b

y
!t

h
e

!c
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!o
ff

ic
e
rs

,!
o

f!
th

e
!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!b
y

!t
h

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t.

!
! 4

.
th

e
!C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s!
o

f!
G

ra
n

t!
a
s!

se
t!

o
u

t!
in

!A
n

n
e
x!

3
!o

f!
th

e
!

re
p

o
rt

.!
! F
in

a
l!
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
is

!d
e
le

g
a
te

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

F
in

a
n

ce
!O

ff
ic

e
r!

(o
r!

o
th

e
r!

o
ff

ic
e
r!

a
s!

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

)!
su

b
je

ct
!t

o
!

th
e

!r
e
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

a
n

y
!s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!w
h

ic
h

!h
a
s!

b
e
e
n

!r
e
q

u
e
st

e
d

!i
n

!r
e
la

ti
o

n
!t

o
!1

,!
2

!a
n

d
!3

.!
A

b
o

v
e
.!

1
0

.!
A

d
v
o

ca
cy

!i
n

!B
a
rn

e
t!

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

!M
a
tt

e
rs

!–
!K

n
o

w
le

d
g
e

!S
u

rg
e
ri

e
s!

!

A
im

!o
f!

th
e

!p
ro

je
ct

!i
s!

su
p

p
o

rt
!r

e
si

d
e
n

ts
!t

o
!a

g
e

!w
il
l,

!c
o

m
b

a
t!

is
o

la
ti

o
n

!a
n

d
!v

u
ln

e
ra

b
il
it

y
!t

h
a
t!

le
a
d

!t
o

!d
e
p

re
ss

io
n

!a
n

d
!

in
cr

e
a
se

d
!h

o
sp

it
a
l!
a
d

m
is

si
o

n
s!

!

£
9

,4
9

9
!

R
E
F
U

S
E
D

!a
s!

th
e

!C
o

u
n

ci
l!
is

!c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y

!t
e
n

d
e
ri

n
g

!f
o

r!
a

!B
o

ro
u

g
h

"

w
id

e
!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

,!
a
d

v
ic

e
!a

n
d

!a
d

v
o

ca
cy

!s
e
rv

ic
e

!t
h

a
t!

a
im

s!
to

!

p
ro

v
id

e
!s

im
il
a
r!

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s!

a
s!

th
o

se
!s

e
t!

o
u

t!
in

!t
h

e
!p

ro
p

o
sa

l!

a
n

d
!a

s!
su

ch
!w

o
u

ld
!d

u
p

li
ca

te
!a

!C
o

u
n

ci
l!
se

rv
ic

e
.!

!T
h

e
!

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
!a

g
re

e
d

!i
t!

w
o

u
ld

!b
e

!m
o

re
!p

ru
d

e
n

t!
to

!d
e
fe

r!

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
!u

n
ti

l!
th

e
!o

u
tc

o
m

e
!o

f!
th

e
!t

e
n

d
e
r!

e
xe

rc
is

e
!w

a
s!

k
n

o
w

n
.!

!
!

!
!

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

6



!
A
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
/o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
!

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
!

A
m
o
u
n
t!

a
p
p
li
e
d
!f
o
r!

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
/R
e
fu
se
d
,!
a
n
d
!a
n
y
!c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s!

1
1

.!
Li

n
d

e
n

!G
ro

v
e

s!

!

S
tr

e
e
t!

p
la

y
!s

e
ss

io
n

s!
fo

r!
lo

ca
l!
ch

il
d

re
n

!

A
im

!o
f!

p
ro

je
ct

!i
s!

to
!p

ro
v
id

e
!s

tr
e
e
t!

p
la

y
!s

e
ss

io
n

s!
fo

r!
lo

ca
l!

ch
il
d

re
n

!a
n

d
!t

h
e
ir

!f
a
m

il
ie

s!
in

!t
h

e
!s

u
m

m
e

r!
o

f!
2

0
1

5
.!
T
h

is
!

in
v
o

lv
e
s!

cl
o

si
n

g
!t

h
e

!h
o

st
!r

o
a
d

!f
o

r!
3

!h
o

u
rs

!t
o

!a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a
te

!a
!2

!

h
o

u
r!

p
la

y
!s

e
ss

io
n

.!

£
2

,7
5

0
!

R
E
F
U

S
E
D

!a
s!

th
e

!m
a
jo

ri
ty

!o
f!

th
e

!C
o

m
m

it
te

e
!c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
!t

h
a
t!

th
is

!t
y
p

e
!o

f!
e

v
e
n

t!
sh

o
u

ld
!b

e
!o

rg
a
n

is
e
d

!a
n

d
!f

u
n

d
e

d
!b

y
!l
o

ca
l!

re
si

d
e
n

ts
.!

!T
h

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t!

d
id

!c
o

n
fi

rm
!t

h
a
t!

th
e

!r
o

a
d

!c
lo

su
re

s!

h
a
v
e

!b
e
e

n
!s

p
e
ci

a
ll
y

!c
h

o
se

n
!s

o
!a

s!
n

o
t!

im
p

a
ct

!o
n

!o
th

e
r!

re
si

d
e
n

ts
.!

!

V
o

ti
n

g
!w

a
s!

a
s!

fo
ll
o

w
s:

!

3
!f

o
r!

3
!a

g
a
in

st
!

1
!a

b
st

e
n

ti
o

n
!

T
h

e
!C

h
a
ir

m
a
n

!u
se

d
!h

is
!c

a
st

in
g

!v
o

te
!a

n
d

!v
o

te
d

!t
o

!r
e
fu

se
!t

h
e

!

a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
.!

!

1
2

.!
P

a
rk

h
u

rs
t!

R
o

a
d

!R
e
si

d
e
n

ts
!

A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

!

S
ch

o
o

l!
fo

r!
li
fe

!

A
im

!o
f!

th
e

!p
ro

je
ct

!i
s!

to
!i
n

co
rp

o
ra

te
!v

a
ri

o
u

s!
w

o
rk

sh
o

p
s!

ta
rg

e
te

d
!a

t!
a
ll

!g
ro

u
p

s.
!E

xa
m

p
le

s!
o

f!
a
ct

iv
e
s!

in
cl

u
d

e
!s

e
lf

"

d
e
fe

n
ce

,!
fi

tn
e
ss

,!
g
a
rd

e
n

in
g

!,
!a

rt
,!
m

u
si

c!
a
n

d
!c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
!

fo
cu

se
d

!e
v
e

n
ts

!

£
9

,0
0

0
!

R
E
F
U

S
E
D

,!
a
s!

th
e

!m
a
jo

ri
ty

!o
f!

th
e

!C
o

m
m

it
te

e
!a

g
re

e
d

:!

!
th

a
t!

su
ch

!a
n

!e
v
e
n

t!
co

u
ld

!b
e

!o
rg

a
n

is
e
d

!a
n

d
!f

u
n

d
e

d
!b

y
!

lo
ca

l!
re

si
d

e
n

ts
,!
a
s!

w
it

h
!t

h
e

!s
tr

e
e
t!

p
a
rt

ie
s!

fo
r!

th
e

!

R
o

y
a
l!
W

e
d

d
in

g
!i
n

!2
0

1
1

.!
!

!
a

!m
o

re
!c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n

si
v
e

!b
u

d
g
e
t!

b
re

a
k

!d
o

w
n

!o
f!

h
o

w
!

m
u

ch
!t

h
e

!d
if

fe
re

n
t!

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s!

w
e
re

!l
ik

e
ly

!t
o

!c
o

st
!w

a
s!

n
e
e
d

.!

C
o

n
ce

rn
s!

w
e
re

!r
a
is

e
d

!b
y

!s
o

m
e

!o
f!

th
e

!C
o

m
m

it
te

e
!w

it
h

!

re
g
a
rd

s!
to

!(
i)

!h
ig

h
!c

o
st

s!
o

f!
th

e
!p

ro
p

o
se

d
!e

v
e
n

t!
a
n

d
!(

ii
)!

w
h

e
th

e
r!

a
n

!e
v
e
n

t!
b

e
n

e
fi

ti
n

g
!a

!r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

!s
m

a
ll

!s
e
ct

io
n

!o
f!

th
e

!

C
h

ip
p

in
g

!B
a
rn

e
t!

a
re

a
!r

e
p

re
se

n
te

d
!v

a
lu

e
!f

o
r!

m
o

n
e
y
.!

!

! A
!n

u
m

b
e
r!

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
!f

e
lt

!t
h

e
!l
e
v
e
l!
o

f!
fu

n
d

in
g

!r
e

q
u

e
st

e
d

!f
o

r!

a
!t

w
o

!d
a
y

!s
tr

e
e
t!

p
a
rt

y
!w

a
s!

v
e
ry

!h
ig

h
!a

n
d

!s
u

g
g
e
st

e
d

!t
h

e
!

a
p

p
li
ca

n
t!

e
xp

lo
re

!o
th

e
r!

fu
n

d
in

g
!a

v
e
n

u
e
s!

su
ch

!a
s!

lo
ca

l!
fu

n
d

!

ra
is

in
g

!o
r!

sp
o

n
so

rs
h

ip
!t

o
!h

e
lp

!r
e
d

u
ce

!c
o

st
s.

!

! T
h

e
re

!w
a
s!

a
ls

o
!n

o
!c

o
n

fi
rm

a
ti

o
n

!f
ro

m
!t

h
e

!C
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

H
ig

h
w

a
y
’s

!T
e

a
m

!t
h

a
t!

th
e

!r
o

a
d

!c
lo

su
re

s!
w

o
u

ld
!n

o
t!

b
e

!a
n

!

is
su

e
.!
T
h

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t!

co
n

fi
rm

e
d

!t
h

a
t!

a
!n

u
m

b
e

r!
o

f!
lo

ca
ls

!

b
u

si
n

e
ss

!h
a
v
e

!b
e
e

n
!a

p
p

ro
a
ch

e
d

!t
o

!r
u

n
!t

h
e

!v
a
ri

o
u

s!
a
ct

iv
e
s,

!

b
u

t!
n

o
n

e
!c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

.!
!

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

7



!
A
p
p
li
ca
n
t/
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
!

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
!

A
m
o
u
n
t!

a
p
p
li
e
d
!f
o
r!

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
/R
e
je
ct
e
d
,!
a
n
d
!a
n
y
!c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s!

!
!

!
!

V
o

ti
n

g
!w

a
s!

a
s!

fo
ll
o

w
s:

!

1
!f

o
r!

4
!a

g
a
in

st
!

2
!a

b
st

e
n

ti
o

n
!

1
3

.!
E
a
st

!B
a
rn

e
t!

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

!

F
e
st

iv
a
l!

!

T
h

e
a
tr

e
!i
n

!t
h

e
!P

a
rk

!

E
v
e
n

t!
ta

k
e
s!

p
la

ce
!o

n
!S

u
n

d
a
y

!a
ft

e
rn

o
o

n
!i
n

!t
h

e
!O

a
k

!H
il
l!
P

a
rk

!a
s!

p
a
rt

!o
f!

th
e

!E
a
st

!B
a
rn

e
t!

!F
e
st

iv
a
l!

£
1

,3
0

0
!

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

!s
u

b
je

ct
!t

o
:!

!
! 1

.
th

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t!

w
o

rk
in

g
!w

it
h

!a
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
!o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

!t
o

!

m
a
k
e

!s
u

re
!i
ts

!s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!p
o

li
cy

!c
o

v
e
rs

!a
ll

!r
e
le

v
a
n

t!

a
re

a
s!

fo
r!

th
e

!p
ro

je
ct

!a
n

d
!t

h
e

!r
e
v
ie

w
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
o

u
n

ci
l!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!o
ff

ic
e
rs

!o
f!

th
e

!f
in

a
l!
v
e
rs

io
n

!o
f!

th
e

!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!p
o

li
cy

.!

2
.

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s!

o
f!

g
ra

n
t!

a
s!

se
t!

o
u

t!
in

!A
n

n
e
x!

3
!o

f!
th

e
!r

e
p

o
rt

!o
f!

o
ff

ic
e
rs

.!
!

F
in

a
l!
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
is

!d
e
le

g
a
te

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

F
in

a
n

ce
!O

ff
ic

e
r!

(o
r!

o
th

e
r!

o
ff

ic
e
r!

a
s!

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

)!
su

b
je

ct
!t

o
!

th
e

!r
e
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

a
n

y
!s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!w
h

ic
h

!h
a
s!

b
e
e
n

!r
e
q

u
e
st

e
d

!i
n

!r
e
la

ti
o

n
!t

o
!1

!a
n

d
!2

.!
a
b

o
v
e
.!
T
h

e
!C

o
m

m
it

te
e

!

n
o

te
d

!t
h

e
!f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
!a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l!
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

:!
! C

ll
r!

C
o

a
k
le

y
!W

e
b

b
,!
a

!t
ru

st
e
e

!o
f!

E
a
st

!B
a
rn

e
t!

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

!

F
e
st

iv
a
l,

!c
o

n
fi

rm
e
d

!t
h

e
!e

n
tr

y
!f

e
e

!a
s!

fo
ll
o

w
s:

!

£
1

2
.0

0
!f

o
r!

a
d

u
lt

s;
!

£
1

0
.0

0
!f

o
r!

!c
o

n
ce

ss
io

n
;!

£
6

.0
0

!f
o

r!
ch

il
d

re
n

;!

£
0

.0
0

!f
o

r!
ch

il
d

re
n

!4
!a

n
d

!u
n

d
e
r!

! T
h

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t!

a
d

v
is

e
d

!t
h

e
!C

o
m

m
it

te
e

!t
h

a
t!

sh
e

!h
a
d

!b
e
e
n

!i
n

!

co
n

ta
ct

!w
it

h
!E

q
u

a
li
ty

!R
e

g
is

te
r!

(e
q

u
a
li
ty

re
g
is

te
r.

co
.u

k
)!

a
n

d
!

w
a
s!

a
w

a
it

in
g

!a
!m

e
e
ti

n
g

!w
it

h
!a

!M
r!

R
ic

h
a
rd

!G
il
b

e
rt

!w
h

o
!

a
d

v
is

in
g

!t
h

e
m

!o
n

!u
p

g
ra

d
in

g
!t

h
e
ir

!s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!p
o

li
ci

e
s)

!
! F
in

a
l!
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
is

!d
e
le

g
a
te

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

F
in

a
n

ce
!O

ff
ic

e
r!

(o
r!

o
th

e
r!

o
ff

ic
e
r!

a
s!

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

)!
su

b
je

ct
!t

o
!

th
e

!r
e
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

a
n

y
!s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!w
h

ic
h

!h
a
s!

b
e
e
n

!r
e
q

u
e
st

e
d

!i
n

!r
e
la

ti
o

n
!t

o
!1

,!
2

!a
n

d
!3

.!
a
b

o
v
e
.!

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

8



!
A
p
p
li
ca
n
t/
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
!

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
!

A
m
o
u
n
t!

a
p
p
li
e
d
!f
o
r!

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
/R
e
je
ct
e
d
,!
a
n
d
!a
n
y
!c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s!

1
4

.!
E
a
st

!B
a
rn

e
t!

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

!

F
e
st

iv
a
l!

B
o

o
k
in

g
!t

h
e

!o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

!K
a
zz

u
m

!

F
e
e
d

b
a
ck

!r
e
ce

iv
e
d

!f
ro

m
!s

u
rv

e
y
s!

is
!t

h
a
t!

th
e
re

!i
s!

n
o

t!
m

u
ch

!a
t!

th
e

!m
a
in

!F
e
st

iv
a
l!
fo

r!
y
o

u
n

g
!c

h
il
d

re
n

.!
K

a
zz

u
m

!

( w
w

w
.k

a
zz

u
m

.o
rg

)!

is
!a

n
!o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

!t
h

a
t!

sp
e
ci

a
li
se

s!
in

!d
y
n

a
m

ic
!w

o
rk

!t
h

a
t!

b
ri

d
g
e
s!

th
e

!g
a
p

!b
e

tw
e
e
n

!e
n

te
rt

a
in

m
e
n

t!
a
n

d
!e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

!f
o

r!

y
o

u
n

g
!p

e
o

p
le

.!

£
8

5
0

!
A

P
P

R
O

V
E
D

!s
u

b
je

ct
!t

o
:!

!
! 1

.
th

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t!

w
o

rk
in

g
!w

it
h

!a
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
!o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

!t
o

!

m
a
k
e

!s
u

re
!i
ts

!s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!p
o

li
cy

!c
o

v
e
rs

!a
ll

!r
e
le

v
a
n

t!

a
re

a
s!

fo
r!

th
e

!p
ro

je
ct

!a
n

d
!t

h
e

!r
e
v
ie

w
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!o
ff

ic
e
rs

!o
f!

th
e

!f
in

a
l!
v
e
rs

io
n

!o
f!

th
e

!

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!p
o

li
cy

.!
! 2

.
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s!
o

f!
g
ra

n
t!

a
s!

se
t!

o
u

t!
in

!A
n

n
e
x!

3
!o

f!
th

e
!r

e
p

o
rt

!

o
f!

o
ff

ic
e
rs

.!
! F
in

a
l!
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
is

!d
e
le

g
a
te

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

F
in

a
n

ce
!O

ff
ic

e
r!

(o
r!

o
th

e
r!

o
ff

ic
e
r!

a
s!

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

)!
su

b
je

ct
!t

o
!

th
e

!r
e
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

a
n

y
!s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!w
h

ic
h

!h
a
s!

b
e
e
n

!r
e
q

u
e
st

e
d

!i
n

!r
e
la

ti
o

n
!t

o
!1

.!
a
b

o
v
e
.!

! T
h

e
!a

p
p

li
ca

n
t!

a
d

v
is

e
d

!t
h

e
!C

o
m

m
it

te
e

!t
h

a
t!

sh
e

!h
a
d

!b
e
e
n

!i
n

!

co
n

ta
ct

!w
it

h
!E

q
u

a
li
ty

!R
e
g
is

te
r!

(e
q

u
a
li
ty

re
g
is

te
r.

co
.u

k
)!

a
n

d
!

w
a
s!

a
w

a
it

in
g

!a
!m

e
e

ti
n

g
!w

it
h

!a
!M

r!
R

ic
h

a
rd

!G
il
b

e
rt

!w
h

o
!

a
d

v
is

in
g

!t
h

e
m

!o
n

!u
p

g
ra

d
in

g
!t

h
e
ir

!s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

!p
o

li
ci

e
s)

!

!

1
5

!
E
a
st

!B
a
rn

e
t!

T
o

w
n

!C
e
n

tr
e

!

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t!
!

S
e
cu

ri
ty

!m
e
a
su

re
s!

a
n

d
!o

th
e

r!
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
!

S
e
cu

ri
ty

!m
e
a
su

re
s!

to
!p

ro
te

ct
!t

h
e

!n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

!a
n

d
!

b
u

si
n

e
ss

,!
p

lu
s!

o
th

e
r!

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
!s

u
ch

!a
s!

p
la

n
ts

,!
h

a
n

g
in

g
!

b
a
sk

e
ts

!a
n

d
!b

e
tt

e
r!

C
h

ri
st

m
a
s!

li
g
h

ts
.!

£
3

,0
0

0
!

C
o

u
n

ci
ll
o

r!
P

h
il

!C
o

h
e
n

!c
o

n
fi

rm
e
d

!t
h

a
t!

th
e

!a
p

p
li
ca

n
t!

h
a
d

!

a
g
re

e
d

!t
o

!w
it

h
d

ra
w

!t
h

e
ir

!a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!a

s!
th

e
!C

o
u

n
ci

l!
w

o
u

ld
!b

e
!

re
v
ie

w
in

g
!i
ts

!u
se

!o
f!

C
C

T
V

!i
n

!t
h

e
!l
o

ca
li
ty

!a
n

d
!t

h
a
t!

th
is

!m
a
y

!

co
v
e
r!

th
e

!s
a
fe

ty
!c

o
n

ce
rn

s.
!!T

h
e

!C
o

m
m

it
te

e
!n

o
te

d
!t

h
a
t!

th
e

!

a
p

p
li
ca

n
t!

m
a
y

!m
a
k
e

!a
n

!a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!t

o
!a

!f
u

tu
re

!f
u

n
d

in
g

!r
o

u
n

d
!

o
n

!t
h

e
!o

th
e
r!

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

!d
e
ta

il
e
d

!i
n

!h
e
r!

a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
.!

!!

!

1
7

.!
A

O
P

M
!–

!C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s!
fo

r!

Y
o

u
th

!J
u

st
ic

e
!

P
ro

je
ct

!w
il
l!
in

v
o

lv
e

!w
o

rk
in

g
!w

it
h

!a
n

!i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

!f
a
m

il
y

!o
r!

sp
e
ci

fi
e
d

!c
h

il
d

!i
n

!S
o

ci
a
l!
C

a
re

.!
P

ri
m

a
ry

!b
e
n

e
fi

ci
a
ry

!w
il
l!
b

e
!t

h
e

!

ch
il
d

(r
e
n

)!
a
n

d
!f

a
m

il
y

!n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!Y
o

u
th

!O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
!

S
e
rv

ic
e
.!

£
9

,9
9

9
!

R
E
F
U

S
E
D

!d
u

e
!t

o
!t

h
e

!a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!f

a
il
in

g
!t

h
e

!c
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

d
u

e
!

d
il
ig

e
n

ce
!t

e
st

s!
o

r!
co

n
tr

a
v
e
n

in
g

!t
h

e
!c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s!
fo

r!
fu

n
d

in
g
.!

1
8

.!
B

a
rn

e
t!

A
rt

s!
C

o
u

n
ci

l!
“V

ic
to

ry
”!

sc
u

lp
tu

re
!i
n

!B
a
rn

e
t!

A
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!i
s!

fo
r!

e
xp

lo
ra

ti
o

n
!o

f!
o

th
e
r!

si
te

s!
su

it
a
b

le
!t

o
!p

la
ce

!

v
is

u
a
l!
a
n

d
!a

rt
is

ti
c!

w
o

rk
!t

o
!c

o
m

m
e

m
o

ra
te

!l
o

ca
l!
h

is
to

ry
.!

£
5

,0
0

0
!

R
E
F
U

S
E
D

!d
u

e
!t

o
!t

h
e

!a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!f

a
il
in

g
!t

h
e

!c
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

d
u

e
!

d
il
ig

e
n

ce
!t

e
st

s!
o

r!
co

n
tr

a
v
e
n

in
g

!t
h

e
!c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s!
fo

r!
fu

n
d

in
g
.!

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

9



!

!
A
p
p
li
ca
n
t/
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
!

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
!

A
m
o
u
n
t!

a
p
p
li
e
d
!f
o
r!

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
/R
e
je
ct
e
d
,!
a
n
d
!a
n
y
!c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s!

1
9

.!
B

ru
n

sw
ic

k
!P

a
rk

!P
ri

m
a
ry

!

a
n

d
!N

u
rs

e
ry

!S
ch

o
o

l.
!

F
e
n

ci
n

g
!i
n

!c
h

il
d

re
n

’s
!p

la
y

!e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t!
in

!B
ru

n
sw

ic
k

!P
a
rk

!

A
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!i
s!

fo
r!

th
e

!i
n

st
a
ll
a
ti

o
n

!o
f!

a
!f

e
n

ce
!a

ro
u

n
d

!t
h

e
!

ch
il
d

re
n

’s
!p

la
y

!e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t!

w
h

ic
h

!w
il
l!
p

ro
te

ct
!t

h
e

!a
re

a
!f

ro
m

!

d
o

g
s.

!

£
9

,9
9

9
!

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

!(
re

v
e
rs

a
l!
o

f!
o

ff
ic

e
rs

!r
e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

!t
h

a
t!

th
e

!

a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!s

h
o

u
ld

!n
o

t!
b

e
!a

ll
o

ca
te

d
!f

u
n

d
in

g
!a

s!
it

!f
a
il
e
d

!t
h

e
!

co
u

n
ci

l’
s!

d
u

e
!d

il
ig

e
n

ce
!t

e
st

s!
o

r!
co

n
tr

a
v
e
n

e
d

!t
h

e
!c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s!

fo
r!

fu
n

d
in

g
)!

su
b

je
ct

!t
o

:!
!

! 1
.

a
n

!a
g
re

e
m

e
n

t!
is

!p
u

t!
in

!p
la

ce
!b

e
tw

e
e

n
!t

h
e

!C
o

u
n

ci
l!
a
n

d
!

a
p

p
li
ca

n
t!

th
a
t!

fu
tu

re
!m

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
!c

o
st

s!
a
re

!t
o

!b
e

!m
e

t!

b
y

!t
h

e
!B

ru
n

sw
ic

k
!P

a
rk

!P
ri

m
a
ry

!S
ch

o
o

l.
!

!

2
.

a
t!

le
a
st

!t
w

o
!q

u
o

te
s!

fo
r!

th
e

!c
o

st
!o

f!
th

e
!f

e
n

ce
!a

n
d

!

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n

!a
re

!p
ro

v
id

e
d

!t
o

!t
h

e
!C

o
u

n
ci

l.
!

! 3
.

S
h

o
u

ld
!t

h
e

!f
in

a
l!
co

st
!c

o
m

e
!i
n

!u
n

d
e
r!

th
e

!a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

!

b
u

d
g
e

t,
!t

h
e

!r
e
si

d
u

a
l!
fu

n
d

s!
a
re

!r
e
tu

rn
e
d

!t
o

!t
h

e
!C

o
u

n
ci

l.
!

!

4
.

th
e

!f
e
n

ce
!n

e
e

d
s!

to
!b

e
!o

f!
th

e
!a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

!s
ta

n
d

a
rd

!t
o

!b
e

!

a
g
re

e
d

!w
it

h
!t

h
e

!C
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

G
re

e
n

sp
a
ce

s!
T
e
a
m

.!
!

5
.

th
e

!C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s!

o
f!

G
ra

n
t!

a
s!

se
t!

o
u

t!
in

!A
n

n
e
x!

3
!o

f!
th

e
!

re
p

o
rt

!o
f!

o
ff

ic
e
rs

.!
! F
in

a
l!
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l!
is

!d
e
le

g
a
te

d
!t

o
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

F
in

a
n

ce
!O

ff
ic

e
r!

(o
r!

o
th

e
r!

o
ff

ic
e
r!

a
s!

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
!b

y
!t

h
e

!C
h

ie
f!

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

)!
su

b
je

ct
!t

o
!

th
e

!r
e
ce

ip
t!

o
f!

a
n

y
!s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

!i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

!w
h

ic
h

!h
a
s!

b
e
e
n

!r
e
q

u
e
st

e
d

!i
n

!r
e
la

ti
o

n
!t

o
!1

,!
2

,!
3

!a
n

d
!4

.!
a
b

o
v
e
.!

! O
ff

ic
e
rs

!r
e
it

e
ra

te
d

!t
h

a
t!

a
s!

th
e

!f
e
n

ce
!i
s!

in
!a

!c
o

u
n

ci
l!
p

a
rk

,!
th

e
re

!

w
a
s!

a
!r

is
k

!t
h

a
t!

a
t!

so
m

e
!j
u

n
ct

u
re

!i
n

!t
h

e
!f

u
tu

re
!i
t!

w
o

u
ld

!

re
q

u
ir

e
!s

o
m

e
!r

e
p

a
ir

/m
a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
.!

!T
h

e
!r

is
k

!i
n

!t
h

is
!c

a
se

!b
e
in

g
!

th
a
t!

th
e
se

!c
o

st
s!

w
o

u
ld

!b
e

!m
e
t!

b
y

!t
h

e
!C

o
u

n
ci

l.
!S

e
ct

io
n

!4
!o

f!

th
e

!g
u

id
a
n

ce
!f

o
r!

th
e

!A
re

a
!C

o
m

m
it

te
e

!B
u

d
g
e

ts
!s

ta
te

s!
th

a
t!

‘p
ro

je
ct

s!
m

u
st
!n

o
t!

re
q

u
ir

e
!m

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
!f

ro
m
!t

h
e
!C

o
u

n
ci

l,
!o

r!

fu
tu

re
!e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

’.
!

! !

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

10



M
r!

W
h

it
e
,!
C

h
a
ir

m
a
n

!o
f!

G
o

v
e
rn

o
rs

,!
B

ru
n

sw
ic

k
!P

a
rk

!P
ri

m
a
ry

!&
!

N
u

rs
e
ry

!S
ch

o
o

l!
co

n
fi

rm
e

d
!t

h
a
t!

a
n

y
!c

o
st

s!
in

cu
rr

e
d

!f
o

r!

m
a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
/r

e
p

a
ir

!w
o

u
ld

!b
e

!m
e
t!

b
y

!t
h

e
!S

ch
o

o
l.

!H
e

!f
u

rt
h

e
r!

co
n

fi
rm

e
d

!t
h

a
t!

h
e

!b
e
li
e
v
e

d
!t

h
is

!l
e
v
e
l!
o

f!
fu

n
d

in
g

!b
e
in

g
!

re
q

u
e
st

e
d

!w
o

u
ld

!b
e

!s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t!
to

!b
u

il
d

!t
h

e
!f

e
n

ce
.!

!

2
0

.!
H

a
m

p
d

e
n

!W
a
y

!N
u

rs
e
ry

!

S
ch

o
o

l!

P
u

rc
h

a
se

!o
f!

a
!M

in
i!
B

u
s!

A
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!i
s!

fo
r!

a
!g

ra
n

t!
to

!p
u

t!
to

w
a
rd

s!
th

e
!p

u
rc

h
a
se

!o
f!

a
!

m
in

ib
u

s!
fo

r!
th

e
!n

u
rs

e
ry

!

!

£
9

,9
9

9
!

R
E
F
U

S
E
D

!d
u

e
!t

o
!t

h
e

!a
p

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
!f

a
il
in

g
!t

h
e

!c
o

u
n

ci
l’
s!

d
u

e
!

d
il
ig

e
n

ce
!t

e
st

s!
o

r!
co

n
tr

a
v
e
n

in
g

!t
h

e
!c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s!
fo

r!
fu

n
d

in
g
.!

!

!

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

The report submits the findings of a feasibility study undertaken to consider pedestrian 
safety and crossing facilities for the benefit of the wider community. It puts forward two 
possible zebra crossings and locations for consideration in terms of addressing pedestrian 
and traffic safety concerns within the context of the intervention criteria set by ‘Priorities of 
the Traffic Management Budget’ Cabinet Report of July 2002. 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee notes the recommended locations for zebra crossings as 

is shown in drawing 60713-P in Appendix A. 
 

2. That the Committee instructs the Interim Commissioning for Environment to 
progress both crossings to detailed design and implementation stages, 
ensuring consultation and negotiation with stakeholders to include, but not 
limited to Emergency Services, Metropolitan Police, Transport for London 
(London Buses) and all affected stakeholders including utility companies and 
statutory bodies. 

 

 

Chipping Barnet Area Committee  
 

12 February 2015 
  

Title  

Walksafe, N10 Phase 2  
Colney Hatch Lane Pedestrian and 
Safety Improvements 

Report of Interim Commissioning Director for Environment 

Wards Coppetts Ward 

Status Public  
 

Enclosures                         Appendix A: Conceptual Drawing No. 60713-P 

Officer Contact Details  
highwayscorrespondence@barnet.gov.uk 
 
020 8359 3555 

AGENDA ITEM 7

13



 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 This report is needed following the Chipping Barnet Area Environment Sub-

Committee decision on 25 June 2013.  A petition was reported to the Sub-
Committee raising concern with road safety, speeding (request for 20 mph 
zone) and Pedestrian crossing improvements on Colney Hatch Lane (Petition 
also sent to Haringey Council).   

 
1.2 The Sub-committee resolved; 

 
i)  That a report be brought to a future appropriate meeting of the Sub-

committee detailing the following; 
•  How these concerns relate to policy considerations and priorities 

when considering the borough as a whole; 
•  Whether there are other potential options to address the safety 

concerns. 
•  Potential possible options to address the concerns with detailed 

costing. 
•  Identifying how it is proposed to fund any potential scheme; 
•  Whether it would be possible to fund part or all of the proposed 

works using the School Travel Plan process and TfL funding; 
•  Viability of any additional crossing points on Colney Hatch Lane 

and the most appropriate measure should this be considered 
necessary. 

 
ii)  That the petitioners, WalksafeN10 campaigners and schools are 

consulted, informed and kept up to date by Officers on the progress of 
this issue. 

 
1.3 This report is therefore required to investigate the viability of crossing points 

on Colney Hatch Lane with a view to enhance pedestrian and safety 
improvements. For the purposes of project management, these improvements 
herein recommended are known as the WalksafeN10 Phase 2. 

 
1.4 The detailed design and implementationwill be included in the 2015/16 Local 

Implementation Programme (LIP) which was agreed by the January 2015 
Environment Committee. 
 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 The particular approach to prioritise pedestrian improvements is informed by i) 
the need to comply with disability legislation, and ii) site observations on 
pedestrian experience and school travel plan aspirations. 
 

2.2 As one of the proposed pedestrian crossings requires relocation of bus stops, 
London Buses’ approval is necessary. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 
3.1 None. 

14



 
4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1 Should this report’s recommendations be approved, the proposals to be 

known as Walksafe N10 Phase 2 should therefore enter the detailed design 
stage with a view to implement and all to be accommodated during 2015/16 
budget provision. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
5.1.1 The subject of this report is in accordance with Objective one of the London 

Borough of Barnet Corporate Plan 2013-2016. This objective is to maintain a 

well‐designed, attractive and accessible place, with sustainable infrastructure 
across the borough. Within this objective, there are six performance measures 
set out in the 2014 Addendum to the Corporate Plan. These are the 
performance measures, which the subject of this report will be measured 
against if the Committee decides to approve a Traffic Management Scheme 
for Colney Hatch Lane. 
 

5.1.2 This report puts forward recommendations that further Barnet’s Corporate 
Plan to maintain a well-designed, attractive and accessible place, with 
sustainable infrastructure across the borough as it includes pedestrian 
improvements. 
 

5.1.3 Further by seeking to address pedestrian safety concerns, this is within the 
context of the intervention criteria set by ‘Priorities of the Traffic Management 
Budget’ Cabinet Report of July 2002. 
 

5.1.4 The measures also dovetail with School Travel Plan initiatives that Barnet 
support in order to create an environment that encourages an active lifestyle 
and reduces obesity by promoting walking and other sustainable modes of 
school travel. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 

5.2.1 Finance Estimated costs  for the necessary statutory processes, including 
advertising, printing and all officer time which would be rechargeable, 
including consideration of any comments received and report-writing will be 
met from available Local Implementation Funding (LIP) funding secured for 
the purpose of making improvements to the Borough’s road network and Bus 
Stop Accessibility funding where applicable.  
 

5.2.2 Indicative costs for the separate progression of location 1 (table 1 below) 
and/or location 2 (table 2 below) zebra crossings are approximate at projected 
2015 prices; 
 

 

 

 

15



Table 1: Location 1 Zebra Crossing - Works Element 
Package 

Estimated costs  
(2015 prices) 

Detailed Design Fees  
(Includes statutory processes, Topographical survey procurement, 
STATS searches, advertising, public consultation, safety audits etc.) 

£7 000 

Build Cost  
(includes high PSV surfacing & removal of existing islands) 

£27 000 

Bus Stop Improvements (includes 2no new bus shelters plus 
relocation costs and footway re-profiling for DDA compliance) 

£33 000 

Sub-TOTAL £67 000 

Implementation & post implementation fee @ 10% £6 700 

GRAND TOTAL £73 700 

 
 

Table 2: Location 2 Zebra Crossing - Works Element 
Package 

Estimated costs  
(2015 prices) 

Detailed Design Fees  
(Includes statutory processes, Topographical survey procurement, 
STATS searches, advertising, public consultation, safety audits etc.) 

£8 000 

Build Cost  
(includes high PSV surfacing & removal of existing islands) 

£24 000 

Sub-TOTAL £32 000 

Implementation & post implementation fee @ 10% £3 200 

GRAND TOTAL £35 200 

 
 

5.2.3 The recommendations are expected to fully cover the financial decisions that 
need to be made with appropriate variations applied to the costs should the 
delivery timescale extend beyond the applicable financial year. 
 

5.2.4 There could be a possible financial risk to understate the build cost owing to 
assumptions on the extent of affected utility apparatus that needs to be 
diverted or adjusted. 
 

5.2.5 Future maintenance of any newly introduced electrical apparatus shall pass to 
Barnet Lighting Services who will be expected to charge a commutable sum 
with the cost full borne by London Borough of Barnet. 

 
5.2.6 The works will be carried out under the existing LOHAC term maintenance 

contractual arrangements. 
  

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
5.3.1 The Traffic Management Act 2004 places obligation on authorities to ensure 

the expeditious movement of traffic on their road network.  Authorities are 
required to make arrangements as they consider appropriate for planning and 
carrying out the action to be taken in performing the duty. 
 

5.3.2 The Council as the Highway Authority has the necessary legal powers to 
introduce or amend Traffic Management Orders through the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984. 
 

16



5.3.3 The Council’s Constitution Responsibility for Functions – Area Committees 
sets out within the terms of reference the functions which an Area Committee 
can discharge which includes local highways and safety schemes.    
 

5.4 Risk Management 
5.4.1 None in the context of this report. Risk management may be required for work            

resulting from this report. 
 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
5.5.1 Proposal is not expected to disproportionally disadvantage or benefit 

individual members of the community. In fact, the recommendations 
specifically seek to reach out to vulnerable users such as the disabled and the 
visually impaired. 
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
5.6.1 As per recommendation 2 of this report stated above. 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 Introduction and Background 
6.1.1 Pedestrian safety concerns and improvement suggestions have been raised 

by residents and ward members regarding the Colney Hatch Lane. 
  

6.1.2 Two petitions were received by the Council from Walksafe N10 raising 
concern with road safety including a request for a 20 miles per hour (mph) 
speed limit and pedestrian crossing improvements on Colney Hatch Lane. (A 
petition was also sent to Haringey Council as this location is adjacent to the 
Borough boundary).   
 

6.1.3 The petitions were considered at the June 2013 Chipping Barnet’s Resident’s 
Forum.  The first petition containing over 670 signatures requested that Barnet 
Council work with Haringey Council to introduce a 20 mph speed limit on the 
streets around Coldfall Primary School and Coppetts Wood Primary School; 
and to create more pedestrian crossings on Colney Hatch Lane. 
 

6.1.4 Walksafe N10 wishes for their local streets to be safer for all pedestrians, 
especially children when they are walking to and from school. 

 
6.1.5 The second petition with over 100 signatures on behalf of Halliwick Primary 

School also made representation on the issue of 20mph speed limit. 
 
6.1.6 The matter was referred up to the Chipping Barnet Area Environment Sub-

Committee who recommended that the safety concerns were investigated 
further and that the petitioners, Walksafe N10 campaigners and schools are 
consulted, informed and kept up to date by Officers on the progress of this 
issue.  
 

6.1.7 At the time of the petition, Haringey Council had commenced consultation on 
a proposal to extend the existing 20 mph within Haringey on Coppetts Road. 
This proposal was agreed and the Haringey 20mph zone became operational 
in January 2014. 

17



 
6.1.8 Barnet does not have a general policy of introducing 20mph zones or speed 

limits outside schools but gives consideration as to whether this traffic 
management measure might be a suitable provision on a site specific basis, 
and therefore does not preclude the consideration of 20mph speed limits if 
justified in a particular location such as the roads included in this report. 

 
6.1.9 As part of the investigations a meeting was held with Residents and Walksafe 

N10 campaigners in December 2013 to discuss the issues.  
 
6.1.10 Wilton Road, Halliwick Road and Sutton Road are wide straight roads, and 

this can lead to vehicles travelling at excessive speeds.  The roads are used 
by a number of pedestrians including school children accessing local schools.  
The proposed 20mph speed limit restriction will complement the existing 
20mph zone in Haringey and will encourage drivers to travel at slower speeds 
thereby providing a safer environment for all road users. 
 

6.1.11 Ward Councillors have been consulted and are in favour of the proposals. 
 
6.2 Officer Comments to initial proposals contained in Appendix A 

Feasibility Report  
6.2.1 Due to potential negative impact on through-traffic flows, there may be 

concerns with installing both crossings at location 1 and location 2 which are 
in close proximity, and will also be close to the existing zebra crossing facility 
at the Sydney Road junction. 
 

6.2.2 The location 1 zebra crossing requires TfL buses approval as the existing bus 
stops and associated furniture need to relocate to create enough room.  

 
6.2.3 Officers recommend that both locations are developed further to detailed 

design to incorporate; 
• De-cluttering and associated cosmetic improvements to area 

• Ensure a design that encourages pedestrians\school kids to use 

designated crossing points 

• Ensure a design that is sympathetic to vulnerable users and meets 

Inclusive Mobility requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 
School Travel Plan Schemes 
This report informs the Chipping Barnet Area Committee of the study into the proposed 
provision of two pedestrian crossings and a new 20mph speed restriction aimed at 
improving pedestrian safety.  There is also the requirement to introduce new / extend 
existing waiting restrictions at junctions in the vicinity of the schools. 
 
This report also informs the Area Committee of the reasons for the proposed improvements 
and the rationale for rejecting the alternatives considered. 

 

 

 

 

Chipping Barnet Area Committee 
 

12 February 2015 
  

Title  Walksafe N14 Feasibility Study 

Report of Interim Commissioning Director for Environment 

Wards Brunswick Park 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         

Appendix A – Speed Data 
Appendix B – Accident Data 
Appendix C – Pedestrian Survey  
Appendix D – Drawings;  
G/0/4 -area wide 20mph zone – signs only 
G/0/5/1 – Wig Wag part time 20mph speed limit at school times 
only – Option 1 
G/0/5/2 – Wig Wag part time 20mph speed limit at school times 
only – Option 2 
G/0/9 – General Arrangement 

Officer Contact Details  

Email: highwayscorrespondence@barnet.gov.uk 

Tel: 020 8359 3555 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

21



Recommendations  
1. That the Committee notes the intention to address traffic management 

concerns in the WalkSafe N14 area. 
 

2. That the Committee be mindful of the Councils current approach to traffic 
calming. 
 

3. The Committee decide whether or not vertical traffic calming features should 
be introduced; 
 

4. That the Committee decides which a combination of measurers be designed 
and introduced, namely: 

(i) The introduction of an advisory 20mph speed limit over a limited 
extent outside the school complemented by wig-wag signs as shown 
in G/0/4, or  

(ii) The introduction of a statutory 20mph speed limit over a wider area 
shown on G/0/5/02, 

a. New pedestrian crossings on Chase Way and Hampden Way as indicated 
on drawings G/0/9, and 

b. The introduction of a raised table as indicated on drawings G/0/9. 
 

5. That , subject to a preferred measures being chosen, the Interim 

Commissioning Director for to proceed with commissioning a detailed design 

and associated public consultation with a view to implementation when 

resources are in place and following liaison with local ward members. 

 
6. That the Committee recommends post-implementation monitoring of any 

completed measures. 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 A petition was received from the residents of the N14 area requesting 

pedestrian crossing improvements and traffic calming measures the area. 
 

1.2 The petition submitted was titled ‘WalkSafeN14’ and includes the following 
statement: 

 
“We the undersigned petition Barnet Council to ensure greater pedestrian 

safety in the Osidge area of Barnet along the route of Hampden Way, Chase 

Way, Arlington Road, Cecil Road and Burleigh Gardens, N14.” 

1.3 This current report is required to investigate the viability of the location to 
accommodate the new crossing facility and to generate detailed designs 
based on Ordnance Survey plans. 
  

1.4 There are multiple pedestrian movements within the area and no formal 
crossing facilities.  Two roads in particular are noted to experience high 
crossing incidents and while accident records do not indicate major concerns 

22



both would benefit from formal crossing facilities to discourage random 
crossing movements.  These roads are Hampden Way and Chase Way, and 
the findings are as below. 
 

1.5 There is also known concerns in regards excessive speed of traffic within the 
residential area that is subject to high pedestrian movements.  Some traffic is 
understood to use the roads as a form of “rat run”.  For these reasons it is 
suggested that a reduction in vehicle speeds is investigated. 
 

1.6 The preferred measures will be included in the 2015/16 Local Implementation 

Programme (LIP) which was agreed by the January 2015 Environment 

Committee. 

 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Automatic Traffic Count (ATC) 7 day speed and volume survey speed survey 
in the areas of interest reveals that in all the areas of interest the 85%tile 
speed did not exceed 30mph though there were outliers recorded up to 
65mph. A summary of the data is shown below highlighting the highest 
average in either direction, refer to Appendix A for full details 
  

Location   Volume 85%ile Mean speed Outlier Speed 

Arlington 

Road 

1193 

 E/B 

28.9mph 

 E/B 

22.7 mph 

 E/B 

60 - 65mph 

Burleigh 

Gardens 

3662 

 E/B 

29.1mph 

W/B 

23.1mph 

 W/B 

50 – 55mph 

Chase Way 
2705  

W/B 

29.8mph  

W/B 

24.9mph 

 W/B 

50-55mph 

Cecil Road 
852 

W/B 

24.8mph 

E/W 
19.6mph 

45 -50mph  

Catchment 

Average 
2103 28.15mph  22.57mph 

50-55mph 

 
 

2.2 There are two ways to introduce 20mph speed restrictions.  One is to create a 
“speed limit” which entails signs at the entry and no further measures.  In 
these cases the speed existing mean speed is generally below 24mph, and 
recent speed measurements indicate this is the case.  The second option is to 
include traffic calming features within the area that are designed to ensure 
vehicles generally proceed at speeds of 20mph or lower. The study has 
considered both ways to introduce the speed restrictions; however it is 

23



considered that the first option will have limited benefits in reducing the 
excessive speeds that were recorded unless effectively enforced. Such 
enforcement is the prerogative of the Police. Advisory wig-wags during school 
time only are therefore recommended to help emphasise the speed limit when 
applicable.  
 

2.3 A study of accidents on Hampden Way in the last 5 years indicated that 6 
accidents occurred in the vicinity of the Hampden Way/Chase Way Junction. 
These accidents resulted in 10 casualties, 2 of which were classified serious 
and the others as slight. Refer to Appendix B. 

 
2.4 Similarly accident review on Chase Way in the preceding 5 years shows 5 

accidents in the vicinity of the Chase Way / Cecil Road junction resulting in 9 
casualties, all classified as slight. 
 
PROPOSED OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION – Pedestrian Crossings  

 
2.5 Chase Way Zebra Crossing 

 
2.6 Chase Way is a residential road that is in proximity to main schools that 

generate pedestrian movements.   
  

2.7 The 2013 study suggested three locations for crossings and these are 
indicated on the drawing.  Each suggested crossing is similar in design and 
thus construction costs. 
 

2.8 An accident investigation indicates that in the preceding 5 years indicated that 
5 accidents occurred in the vicinity of the Cecil Road junction, and for this 
reason location shown on the plan is the preferred option, as it is closer to the 
Cecil Road junction and will act as a calming measure. 
 

2.9 The pedestrian survey (refer to Appendix C) indicates that there is a 
concentration around the Cecil / Chase way Junction, higher volume of 
pedestrians crossing on the northern arm of Chase Way.  
 

2.10 In consideration based on the site observations and the other surveys, the 
cost of providing the crossing is likely to be in the region of £20,000. 
 

2.11 Hampden Way Zebra Crossing 
 

2.12 Hampden way is a residential road that is in proximity to main schools that 
generate pedestrian movements.   
  

2.13 The 2013 study suggested three locations for crossings and these are 
indicated on the drawing.  Each suggested crossing is similar in design and 
thus construction costs. 
 

2.14 An accident investigation indicates that in the preceding 5 years indicated that 
6 accidents and the introduction of a new controlled crossing on Hampden 
Way will act as a speed-control measure. 

24



 

2.15 The pedestrian survey (refer to Appendix C) indicates that on Hampden way 
there is no specific desire point, with pedestrians crossing at all points along 
the surveyed area though there is a higher concentration of crossing 
movement between its junction with Arlington Road and Summit Way. This is 
possibly due to the fact that no ‘designated’ crossing points exist and its 
hopeful that the creation of a formal crossing point near bus stops closer to 
Summit Way will encourage pedestrians to cross safely at that point. 
 

2.16 The cost of providing the crossing is likely to be in the region of £20,000. 
 

PROPOSED OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION – 20mph speed restriction 
study 
 

2.17 An investigation into the need for a 20mph speed restriction has been carried 
out, and the potential for these investigated. 
 

2.18 Three options for the introduction of the speed restriction are outlined below.  
A further option only in the vicinity of Cecil Road was considered but 
discounted due to its limitations. 
 

2.19 20mph Speed Restriction – Drawing G/0/4 & G/0/5/1 & 2 
 

2.20 Option 1 The speed restriction shown in drawing G/0/4 is by means of 20mph 
speed limit signs on the entry to the areas.  No means of reducing vehicle 
speeds are included. 
  

2.21 This type of speed limit, although relatively cheap to instigate, in the region of 
£44,000, covers too wide an area, will be difficult to enforce and highly likely 
to lose its effectiveness. If the recommended raised junction on Cecil Road 
outside the school is included, the total estimated cost becomes £75,000. 
 

2.22 Options 2 & 3 The introduction of variable speed limit restrictions with the use 
of WIG WAG’s (Refer to drawing G/0/5/1 & G/0/5/2) are also considered. 
Generally these speed limits are indicated by signs at entry points with 
flashing alerts that operate at certain times of the day and incorporate “when 
lights flash” wording. Each of these two options will cost less that the £44,000 
for Option 1.Therefore this approach confers a more cost-effective solution, 
and ensures only the critical school drop-off/pick-up periods are covered.  
 

2.23 In reality, although the benefits of these two options are still limited, it is 
suggested that the 20mph advisory speed limit over the limited and safety-
critical extent outside the school as is shown on Drawing G/0/5/2 
complemented by wig-wag signs is therefore considered for implementation. 
This option has no enforcement implications. 
 

2.24 A further issue of concern is the tendency for motorists to park their vehicles 
in the immediate vicinity of junctions.  This is especially of concern in the 
vicinity of schools and this report has considered this element. However, the 
existing waiting restrictions in the vicinity of junctions located near the schools 

25



already subject to a separate investigation under a separately-funded Parking 
Design initiative.  
  

2.25 It is also strongly recommended that some leeway in the design commission 
be applied to enable additional measures to be introduced if any are 
subsequently identified.  It is also suggested that if the scheme recommended 
is introduced monitoring of the completed scheme is carried out in subsequent 
years to enable the success of the scheme to be measured and if needed 
further features included. 
 

2.26 The reasoning behind the leeway is that options have been developed 
individually, it is imperative that if combined they sit alongside each other 
successfully. 
 

2.27 A point to note is that the pedestrian access to the school off Cecil Way is in 
the immediate vicinity of the Cecil Way / The Woodlands junction.  It is 
strongly recommended that a raised junction be introduced in the area to calm 
all traffic movements.  The cost of such provision is in the area of £31,000, 
although if it is introduced as part of a wider scheme the costs may be 
reduced somewhat.  
 

2.28 A further issue of concern is the tendency for motorists to park their vehicles 
in the immediate vicinity of junctions.  This is especially of concern in the 
vicinity of schools and this report has considered this element. 
 

2.29 The main reason for recommendation is to create a safe environment for all 
users of the highways, and especially pedestrians travelling to and from the 
two schools located in the area. 
 

 
3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 
3.1 Alternative treatment options have been developed but are not being 

recommended and these include; 

• Priority Give-way on Chase Way 

• Speed cushions on Chase Way 

• Vehicle-activated signs on Chase Way 

• Vehicle-activated signs on Hampden Way. 
  

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Post decision implementations will depend on the decision taken by the Sub-
committee.  
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 The subject of this report is in accordance with objectives of improving safety 
to school as identified by the local authority  

26



 
5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
5.2.1 Finances Estimated costs  for the necessary statutory processes, including 

advertising, printing and all officer time which would be rechargeable, 
including consideration of any comments received and report-writing will be 
met from available 15/16 Local Implementation Funding (LIP) funding secured 
for the purpose of making improvements to the Borough’s road network.  

 
5.2.2 Indicative costs for the recommended measures are approximate and shown 

on Table 1 below at projected 2015 prices; 
 

 

Table 1: Summary of Costs Estimated costs  

(2015 prices) 

Detailed Design Fees  
(Includes statutory processes, Topographical survey procurement, 

STATS searches, advertising, public consultation, safety audits etc.) 

£25 000 

Build Cost – 20mph limit (£44k), 2no zebra crossings 

(£40k) & raised table (£31k) 

£115 000 

Electrical Apparatus £19 500 

Sub-TOTAL £140 000 

Implementation & post implementation fee @ 10% £11 500 

GRAND TOTAL £170 000 

 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
  

5.3.1 The Council’s Constitution Responsibility for Functions: Area Committees 
discharge various functions including highway use and regulation not the 
responsibility of the Council, within the boundaries of their areas in 
accordance with Council policy and within budget. 
 

5.3.2 The Council’s Constitution, Meetings Procedure Rules – Paragraph 6.1 states 
that a Member (including appointed substitute Members) will be permitted to 
have one matter only (with no sub-items) on the agenda for a meeting of a 
committee or sub-committee on which he/she serves. Paragraph 6.2 states 
that Members’ Items must be relevant to the terms of reference of the body 
which will consider the item 
 

5.3.3 The Traffic Management Act 2004 places obligation on authorities to ensure 
the expeditious movement of traffic on their road network.  Authorities are 
required to make arrangements as they consider appropriate for planning and 
carrying out the action to be taken in performing the duty. 
 

27



5.3.4 The Council as the Highway Authority has the necessary legal powers to 
introduce or amend Traffic Management Orders through the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 
 

5.4 Risk Management 
5.4.1 None in the context of this report. Risk management may be required for work 

resulting from this report. 
 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
5.5.1 Proposal is not expected to disproportionally disadvantage or benefit 

individual members of the community 
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
5.6.1 None currently identified.  

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Previous studies carried out by officers submitted earlier in the year. 

  

28



Speed Survey Results Summary 

Arlington Road 

Day (24 hr) E/B Volume 
E/B Mean 

Speed 
E/B 85

th
%ile W/B Volume 

W/B Mean 

Speed 
W/B 85

th
%ile 

25/09/2014 1230 22.7 28.6 1029 21.3 26.6 

26/09/2014 1362 21.8 28 1102 20.8 26.2 

27/09/2014 1178 23.7 29.3 1035 21.3 26.8 

28/09/2014 814 25.3 30.4 752 22.6 28 

29/09/2014 1193 22.2 28.4 962 20.8 26.8 

30/09/2014 1236 22.6 28.6 1027 21.4 27.5 

01/10/2014 1341 22 28.4 1006 21.1 26.2 

Virtual Day 1193 22.7 28.9 988 21.3 26.8 

Virtual Week 8354 22.7 28.9 6913 21.3 26.8 

Highest recorded speed 60 to 65mph 

Burleigh Gardens 

Day (24 hr) E/B Volume 
E/B Mean 

Speed 
E/B 85th%ile W/B Volume 

W/B Mean 

Speed 
W/B 85th%ile 

25/09/2014 3798 23.6 29.1 2234 23.4 29.5 

26/09/2014 4186 23.1 28.6 2355 23.1 28.6 

27/09/2014 3669 22.9 28.2 2110 23 28.9 

28/09/2014 2576 23.8 29.1 1582 23.9 29.5 

29/09/2014 3696 22.8 28 2090 22.9 28.9 

30/09/2014 3782 23 28.6 2214 23.2 29.1 

01/10/2014 3930 22.5 28.2 2292 22.5 28.4 

Virtual Day 3662 23.1 28.4 2125 23.1 29.1 

Virtual Week 25637 23.1 28.4 14877 23.1 29.1 

Highest recorded speed 50 to 55mph 

Chase Way 

Day (24 hr) E/B Volume 
E/B Mean 

Speed 
E/B 85th%ile W/B Volume 

W/B Mean 

Speed 
W/B 85th%ile 

25/09/2014 2155 24.4 29.5 2773 24.7 29.3 

26/09/2014 2374 24 29.1 2999 24.4 29.3 

27/09/2014 1951 23.8 28.9 2627 25.1 30 

28/09/2014 1410 24.5 29.5 2064 26 30.9 

29/09/2014 2125 24.1 29.1 2798 24.7 29.5 

30/09/2014 2226 23.9 29.1 2791 24.5 29.5 

01/10/2014 2114 24.3 29.3 2883 25.1 29.8 

Virtual Day 2051 24.1 29.1 2705 24.9 29.8 

Virtual Week 14355 24.1 29.1 18935 24.9 29.8 

Highest recorded speed 50 to 55mph 

 

29



Cecil Road 

Day (24 hr) E/B Volume 
E/B Mean 

Speed 
E/B 85th%ile W/B Volume 

W/B Mean 

Speed 
W/B 85th%ile 

25/09/2014 660 19.8 25.5 835 19.5 23.9 

26/09/2014 687 19.4 23.9 868 19.5 23.7 

Virtual Day 674 19.6 24.8 852 19.5 23.9 

Virtual Week 1347 19.6 24.8 1703 19.5 23.9 

Highest recorded speed 45 to 50mph 

With regard to the introduction of a 20 mph speed, if mean traffic speeds are at or below 24 mph then a 

20 mph speed limit without any supporting physical measures can be implemented, otherwise, physical 

traffic calming measures should be introduced. 

From the tables above, it can be seen that with the exception of Chase Way the mean speeds in the 

tables above are below 24 mph, as such no Traffic Calming measures are essential for the introduction 

of 20 mph speed restrictions.  However judging by 85%ile speeds and also the “top speed recorded” 

they are considered desirable.  While it is noted that current national Speed Limit Reviews are based 

on the Mean speed measurements, the nature of the area under consideration (mainly residential, with 

potential for rat running), the long straight sections with multiple side streets and proximity to the 

schools would make traffic calming measures preferable on road safety grounds. 

 

30



 
 
Error! Unknown document property 

name. 

0 

 

 

 

Accident Records 
1

st
 May 2009 to 30

th
 April 2014 

 

31



 
 E

rr
o

r!
 U

n
k

n
o

w
n

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

n
a

m
e

. 

0
 

 

 

A
c
c
id

e
n

t 

R
e

f 
D

a
te

 
C

a
s
u

a
lt
ie

s
 

S
e

v
e

ri
ty

 
V

e
h

ic
le

 

O
c
c
u

p
a

n
ts

 
P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
s
 

C
y
c
lis

ts
 

L
o
c
a

ti
o

n
 

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 

0
1
0

9
S

X
2

0
7

3
9

 
0

4
/0

8
/2

0
0

9
 

2
 

S
lig

h
t 

1
 

  
  

H
a

m
p

d
e

n
 W

a
y 

J
/W

 C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 

V
1

 d
id

 n
o
t 

g
iv

e
 w

a
y
 a

n
d
 h

it
 V

2
 

0
1
0

9
S

X
2

0
8

9
5

 
1

8
/0

9
/2

0
0

9
 

1
 

S
lig

h
t 

1
 

  
  

H
a

m
p

d
e

n
 W

a
y 

J
.W

 C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 

V
2

 p
u

lle
d

 o
u

t 
in

to
 t

h
e
 p

a
th

 o
f 

V
1

, 
q

u
a
d

 b
ik

e
, 

V
1

 l
o

s
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a

n
d

 r
id

e
r 

fe
ll 

o
ff

 

0
1
1

0
S

X
2

0
8

9
8

 
2

5
/0

8
/2

0
1

0
 

1
 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 

1
 

  
  

C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 J

/W
 

A
rl
in

g
to

n
 R

o
a
d

 

V
1

 b
ra

k
e

d
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

v
e

h
ic

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

. 

V
1

's
 b

ra
k
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 l
o

c
k
e

d
 a

n
d

 V
1

 c
o

lli
d

e
d

 

w
it
h

 p
a
rk

e
d
 V

2
 

0
1
1

1
S

X
2

0
7

9
7

 
1

8
/0

9
/2

0
1

1
 

1
 

S
lig

h
t 

1
 

  
  

C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 J

/W
 

H
a

m
p

d
e

n
 W

a
y
 

V
3

 h
a

s
 t

u
rn

e
d
 l
e

ft
 a

t 
s
p

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

lli
d

e
d

 

w
it
h

 p
a
rk

e
d
 V

2
. 

V
3

 t
h

e
n
 f

lip
p

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
a

n
d

 

c
o

lli
d

e
d

 w
it
h

 o
n

c
o

m
in

g
 V

1
. 

0
1
1

1
S

X
2

0
8

9
7

 
1

4
/1

0
/2

0
1

1
 

1
 

S
lig

h
t 

1
 

  
  

H
a

m
p

d
e

n
 W

a
y 

J
/W

 S
u
m

m
it
 

W
a

y
 

V
2

 h
a

s
 t

u
rn

e
d

 l
e

ft
 a

n
d

 p
a
s
s
e

d
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 t

o
 V

1
 

w
it
h

 d
ri

v
e

r 
a

tt
e

m
p

ti
n

g
 t

o
 e

x
it
 v

e
h

ic
le

 

c
a

u
s
in

g
 c

o
lli

s
io

n
. 

0
1
1

1
T

B
0

1
5
4

2
 

1
2
/1

1
/2

0
1

1
 

2
 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 

2
 

  
  

H
a

m
p

d
e

n
 W

a
y 

J
/W

 C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 

V
3

 b
e

in
g
 c

h
a

s
e

d
 b

y
 p

o
lic

e
, 

c
o

lli
d

e
d

 w
it
h

 V
2
 

w
h

o
 w

a
s
 p

u
lli

n
g
 o

u
t 

a
n

d
 t
u

rn
in

g
 r

ig
h

t 
a

n
d
 

th
e
n

 h
e
a

d
 o

n
 w

it
h
 V

2
. 

0
1
1

2
S

X
2

1
1

2
5

 
2

1
/1

2
/2

0
1

2
 

2
 

S
lig

h
t 

2
 

  
  

C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 J

/W
 

H
a

m
p

d
e

n
 W

a
y
 

V
1

 s
ta

ti
o

n
a
ry

 a
t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 h

it
 b

y
 V

2
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
d

 s
w

e
rv

e
d

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 o

n
c
o

m
in

g
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
. 

0
1
1

3
S

X
2

0
1

0
8

 
1

9
/0

2
/2

0
1

3
 

1
 

S
lig

h
t 

  
1
 

  
N

fl
 -

 H
a

m
p

d
e

n
 

W
a

y 
3

0
m

 N
o

rt
h

 

W
e
s
t 

o
f 

J
/W

 

2
 p

e
d

's
 r

a
n
 i
n

to
 p

a
th

 o
f 

V
1

 a
n
d

 V
1

 h
it
 o

n
e

 

o
f 

th
e

m
. 

0
1
1

3
S

X
2

0
6

6
4

 
1

3
/0

8
/2

0
1

3
 

2
 

S
lig

h
t 

2
 

  
  

H
a

m
p

d
e

n
 W

a
y 

J
/W

 C
h

a
s
e

 

W
a

y.
 

V
.2

 t
u

rn
e

d
 r

ig
h

t,
 a

c
ro

s
s
 p

a
th

 o
f 

o
n

-c
o

m
in

g
 

V
1

 c
a

u
s
in

g
 c

o
lli

s
io

n
. 

 

T
o

ta
l:
 

1
1

 
1
 

0
 

 
  

32



 
 
Error! Unknown document property 

name. 

0 

 

 

 

 

33



 
 E

rr
o

r!
 U

n
k

n
o

w
n

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

n
a

m
e

. 

0
 

 

 

A
c
c
id

e
n

t 

R
e

f 
D

a
te

 
C

a
s
u

a
lt
ie

s
 

S
e

v
e

ri
ty

 
V

e
h

ic
le

 

O
c
c
u

p
a

n
ts

 
P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
s
 

C
y
c
lis

ts
 

L
o
c
a

ti
o

n
 

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 

0
1
0

9
S

X
2

0
7

0
9

 
2

4
/0

7
/2

0
0

9
 

1
 

S
lig

h
t 

1
 

  
  

A
rl
in

g
to

n
 R

o
a
d

 6
5
m

 

S
W

 J
. 
W

 C
e

c
il 

R
o

a
d

 

V
2

 t
u

rn
e

d
 l
e

ft
 a

n
d
 c

o
lli

d
e

d
 w

it
h

 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 V

1
 

0
1
0

9
S

X
2

1
1

5
1

 
0

3
/1

1
/2

0
0

9
 

3
 

S
lig

h
t 

3
 

  
  

C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 J

/W
 

C
e

c
il 

R
o

a
d

 

V
1

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
d

 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

te
n
d

in
g
 t

o
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 a

h
e

a
d
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 s

tr
u

c
k
 b

y
 V

2
 

c
ro

s
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 s
id

e
 r

o
a
d

 

0
1
1

0
S

X
2

1
0

4
8

 
0

7
/1

0
/2

0
1

0
 

1
 

S
lig

h
t 

1
 

  
  

C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 J

/W
 

C
e

c
il 

R
o

a
d

 

D
ri
v
e

r 
o

f 
V

1
 o

p
e

n
e
d

 c
a

r 
d

o
o

r 
a

c
ro

s
s
 

p
a
th

 o
f 

o
n
c
o

m
in

g
 c

y
c
lis

t 
V

2
 c

a
u
s
in

g
 

c
o

lli
s
io

n
 

0
1
1

2
S

X
2

1
1

2
9

 
1

5
/1

2
/2

0
1

2
 

2
 

S
lig

h
t 

2
 

  
  

C
e

c
il 

R
o

a
d

 J
/W

 

C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 

V
2

 f
ts

 a
t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 h
it
 V

1
 

0
1
1

3
S

X
2

0
3

7
9

 
2

8
/0

4
/2

0
1

3
 

1
 

S
lig

h
t 

1
 

  
  

C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 J

/W
 

C
e

c
il 

R
d

 

V
2

 t
u

rn
e

d
 r

ig
h

t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 p

a
th

 o
f 

o
n
c
o

m
in

g
 

V
1

, 
c
a

u
s
in

g
 c

o
lli

s
io

n
 

0
1
1

3
S

X
2

0
5

2
8

 
0

4
/0

7
/2

0
1

3
 

2
 

S
lig

h
t 

2
 

  
  

C
h

a
s
e

 W
a

y
 J

u
n
c
ti
o

n
 

W
it
h

 C
e

c
il 

R
o

a
d

 

It
 a

p
p

e
a

rs
 t

h
a

t 
V

1
 f

a
ile

d
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 w
a

y
 a

t 

c
ro

s
s
 r

o
a
d

s
 &

 h
it
 n

e
a
rs

id
e

 o
f 

p
a
s
s
in

g
 

V
2

 

 

T
o

ta
l:
 

1
0

 
0
 

0
 

 
 

34



1
1
.2

1
1
.3

1
1
.1

1
1
.4

2
8
0
3
 -

 B
a
rn

e
t.

  
N

M
U

 C
ro

s
s
in

g
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
- 

A
ll
 M

o
v
m

e
n

ts
T

h
u

rs
d

a
y
 1

3
th

 N
o

v
e
m

e
b

e
r 

2
0
1
4
 (

0
7
:0

0
 -

 1
0
:0

0
, 
1
2
:0

0
 -

 1
4
:0

0
, 
1
5
:0

0
 -

 1
8
:0

0
)

1
2

.3

1
2

.4
1
2

.1

1
2

.2

S
it
e
 

1
1

 
- 

C
h
a
s
e

W
a
y

S
it
e
 1

2
 -

 H
a
m

p
d
e

n
 W

a
y

S
tr

e
e

tw
is

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 L

td
w

w
w

.s
tr

e
e

tw
is

e
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.c

o
m

T
e
l:
 0

1
1
3
3

 2
2
2

6
0
2

E
m

a
il:

e
n
g
la

n
d
@

s
tr

e
e

tw
is

e
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.c

o
m

�
�

0
2
5

5
0

7
5

1
0

0
1
2

.5
M

e
te

rs
0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

M
e

te
rs

Z
o

n
e
s

N
M

U
 M

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

2
0
m

p
h
 z

o
n
e
 s

ig
n
s
 t
o

d
ia

g
ra

m
 6

7
4
 &

 6
7
5

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
T

h
e
s
e

s
ig

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

la
c
e
d

e
it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e

c
a
rr

ia
g
e
w

a
y
 a

t 
e
v
e
ry

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
/e

x
it
.

R
e
v

D
a
te

M
a
d
e

C
h
k
'd

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 I

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

O
ri
g

in
a

l 
d

ra
w

in
g

  
A

3 C
A

P
IT

A
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 a

n
d

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
S

t 
D

a
v
id

s
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
P

a
s
c
a

l 
C

lo
s
e

, 
S

t 
M

e
llo

n
s
, 

C
a

rd
if
f,

 C
F

3
 0

L
W

T
 0

2
9

2
0

 8
0

3
5

0
0

  
 w

w
w

.c
a

p
it
a

.c
o

.u
k
/i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 2

0
m

p
h

z
o
n
e

K
e

y
:

2
0
m

p
h
 g

a
te

w
a
y

s
ig

n
s

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 1

 -
 S

c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

T
e
x
tu

re
d
 g

a
te

w
a
y

s
u
rf

a
c
e

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

L
E

S
ig

n
 5

4
5
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n

C
e
c
il 

ro
a
d
 o

n
 S

W

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 O

s
id

g
e

s
c
h
o
o
l

37



R
e
v

D
a
te

M
a
d
e

C
h
k
'd

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 I

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

O
ri
g
in

a
l 
d
ra

w
in

g
  
A

1 C
A

P
IT

A
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

S
t 
D

a
v
id

s
 H

o
u
s
e
, 
P

a
s
c
a
l 
C

lo
s
e
, 
S

t 
M

e
llo

n
s
, 
C

a
rd

if
f,
 C

F
3
 0

L
W

T
 0

2
9
2
0
 8

0
3
5
0
0
  
 w

w
w

.c
a
p
it
a
.c

o
.u

k
/i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

H
E

A
L

T
H

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 &
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

N
O

T
E

:

IT
 I
S

 A
S

S
U

M
E

D
 T

H
A

T
 T

H
E

 W
O

R
K

S
 W

IL
L
 B

E
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 B

Y
 A

C
O

M
P

E
T

E
N

T
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
, 
W

H
O

 I
S

 A
W

A
R

E
 O

F
 A

L
L
 G

E
N

E
R

IC

R
IS

K
S

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

D
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 W

O
R

K
S

. 
 L

IS
T

E
D

 B
E

L
O

W
 A

R
E

'S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

' 
R

IS
K

S
 R

E
L
A

T
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E

 W
O

R
K

S
.

If
 n

o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ri
s
k
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
d
e
le

te
 t
h
is

 t
e
x
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
te

r

'N
O

N
E

 I
D

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

' 
h
e
re

.

.

 D
R
A

F
T

2
2
/1

2
/2

0
14

R
e
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
H

M
S

O
.

©
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 
a
n
d
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 r

ig
h
t 
2
0
1
4
. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h
ts

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
d
. 
L
A

 1
0
0
0
1
7
6
7
4
.

A
re

a
 C

o
n

ta
in

in
g

 W
ig

 W
a

g

K
e
y
:

W
ig

 w
a

g
 S

ig
n

38



S
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
v
a
ri
a
b
le

s
p
e
e
e
d
 l
im

it
 s

ig
n

(M
a
n
d
a
to

ry
)

S
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

b
le

s
p

e
e

e
d

 l
im

it
 s

ig
n

(A
d

v
is

o
ry

)

R
e
v

D
a
te

M
a
d
e

C
h
k
'd

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 I

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

O
ri
g
in

a
l 
d
ra

w
in

g
  
A

1 C
A

P
IT

A
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

S
t 
D

a
v
id

s
 H

o
u
s
e
, 
P

a
s
c
a
l 
C

lo
s
e
, 
S

t 
M

e
llo

n
s
, 
C

a
rd

if
f,
 C

F
3
 0

L
W

T
 0

2
9
2
0
 8

0
3
5
0
0
  
 w

w
w

.c
a
p
it
a
.c

o
.u

k
/i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

H
E

A
L

T
H

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 &
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

N
O

T
E

:

IT
 I
S

 A
S

S
U

M
E

D
 T

H
A

T
 T

H
E

 W
O

R
K

S
 W

IL
L
 B

E
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 B

Y
 A

C
O

M
P

E
T

E
N

T
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
, 
W

H
O

 I
S

 A
W

A
R

E
 O

F
 A

L
L
 G

E
N

E
R

IC

R
IS

K
S

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

D
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 W

O
R

K
S

. 
 L

IS
T

E
D

 B
E

L
O

W
 A

R
E

'S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

' 
R

IS
K

S
 R

E
L
A

T
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E

 W
O

R
K

S
.

If
 n

o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ri
s
k
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
d
e
le

te
 t
h
is

 t
e
x
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
te

r

'N
O

N
E

 I
D

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

' 
h
e
re

.

.

 D
R
A

F
T

2
2
/1

2
/2

0
14

R
e
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
H

M
S

O
.

©
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 
a
n
d
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 r

ig
h
t 
2
0
1
4
. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h
ts

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
d
. 
L
A

 1
0
0
0
1
7
6
7
4
.

A
re

a
 C

o
n

ta
in

in
g

 W
ig

 W
a

g

K
e
y
:

W
ig

 w
a

g
 S

ig
n

S
C

A
L
E

 1
 :
 5

0
0

39



S
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

b
le

s
p

e
e

d
 l
im

it
 s

ig
n

(A
d

v
is

o
ry

)

2
0
m

p
h
 &

 3
0
m

p
h
 l
im

it
 s

ig
n
s
 t
o

b
e
 p

la
c
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
/e

x
it

re
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
T

h
e
 s

ig
n
s
 a

re
 t
o

d
ia

g
ra

m
 6

7
0
.

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

In
s
e
t 
B

 -
 W

ig
 W

a
g

s
ig

n
s
 a

t 
im

m
e
d
ia

te

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 O

s
id

g
e

s
c
h
o
o
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e

In
s
e
t 
A

In
s
e
t 
C

R
e

v
D

a
te

M
a

d
e

C
h

k
'd

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 I

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

O
ri
g
in

a
l 
d
ra

w
in

g
  
A

3 C
A

P
IT

A
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 a

n
d

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
S

t 
D

a
v
id

s
 H

o
u
s
e
, 
P

a
s
c
a
l 
C

lo
s
e
, 
S

t 
M

e
llo

n
s
, 
C

a
rd

if
f,
 C

F
3
 0

L
W

T
 0

2
9
2
0
 8

0
3
5
0
0
  
 w

w
w

.c
a
p
it
a
.c

o
.u

k
/i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 2

0
m

p
h

z
o
n
e

K
e

y
:

2
0
m

p
h
 g

a
te

w
a
y

s
ig

n
s

T
e
x
tu

re
d
 g

a
te

w
a
y

s
u
rf

a
c
e

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 r

a
is

e
d

ju
n
c
ti
o
n

T
a
c
ti
le

 P
a
v
in

g
A

.
C

e
c
il 

R
d
 R

a
is

e
d
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 -

 S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

C
.

C
h
a
s
e
 W

a
y
 -

 S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

S
c
a
le

 1
:4

0
0
0

W
ig

 W
a
g
 A

re
a

R
o
a
d
 m

a
rk

in
g
s

B
.

W
ig

 W
a
g
 S

c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

W
ig

 W
a
g
 S

ig
n
s

40



 

 

 

Summary 

This report informs the Chipping Barnet Area Committee of proposed Traffic Management 
Options considered for Pollard Road including junctions with Oakleigh Road/Russell Lane 
and Myddleton Park/Queens Avenue. 
 
This report also informs the Area Committee of the reasons for the proposed traffic 
management options considered. 

 

Recommendations  
 

1. That the Committee notes the intention to address traffic management concerns 
on Pollard Road; 

2. That the Committee be mindful of the Councils current approach to traffic calming 
3. The Committee decide whether or not vertical traffic calming features should be 

introduced on Pollard Road; 

4. Subject to a preferred option being chosen, the Interim Commissioning Director 
for Environment to proceed with commissioning a detailed design and associated 
public consultation with a view to implementation when resources are in place 
and following liaison with local ward members. 

 

Chipping Barnet Area Committee 
 

12 February 2015 
  

Title  
Pollard Road Traffic Management 
Scheme 

Report of Interim Commissioning Director for Environment  

Wards Oakleigh Ward 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         

Figure 1 - Accident plot for 5 year records 
Figure 2 - Pedestrian Survey Analysis   
Drawing Nos CS75844/04/Option 1, 2 & 3. 
 

Officer Contact Details  

Lisa Wright, Traffic and Development Manager,  Traffic and 
Development  –Telephone 020 8359 3555 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9

41



 
OPTION 1  

• Priority narrowings along Pollard Road incorporating pedestrian crossing 
facilities; 

• Uncontrolled crossing facilities at the Oakleigh Road North and Myddleton Park 
junctions. 

• Waiting Restrictions at the Pollard Road junctions 

• Raising the central dome on the mini-roundabout at the junction with Oakleigh 
Road North. 

 
OPTION 2  

• Speed cushions incorporating pedestrian crossing facilities; 

• Uncontrolled crossing facilities at the Oakleigh Road North and Myddleton Park 
junctions. 

• Waiting Restrictions at the Pollard Road junctions; 

• Raising the central dome on the mini-roundabout at the junction with Oakleigh 
Road North. 

 
OPTION 3  

• One-way system along Pollard Road in westerly direction, supported by speed 
cushion and incorporating pedestrian crossing facilities; 

• Uncontrolled crossing facilities at the Oakleigh Road North and Myddleton Park 
junctions. 

• Waiting Restrictions at the Pollard Road junctions; 

• Raising the central dome on the mini-roundabout at the junction with Oakleigh 
Road North. 

 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 A Petition was reported to the June 2014 Chipping Barnet’s Resident Forum 

requesting Traffic Control on Pollard Road.  Issues raised at the Forum 
included the high volume of vehicles using the road as a cut through from 
Oakleigh Road/Russell Lane to Myddleton Park/Queens Avenue, high volume 
of speeding vehicles, residents safety while entering and exiting, vehicles 
parked on the road side and non-resident vehicles abandoned for long 
periods of time. The residents have put forward the following suggestions: 

• Restrict access at both ends of Pollard Road by narrowing the exit and 
entry points and in the same scheme introduce a pinch point at the 
centre of Pollard Road; 

• Consider a 20mph speed limit; 

• Introduce a similar arrangement to the one currently on Goldsmith 
Road, N11; and 

• A weight restriction to be introduced on the road to help remove heavy 
goods vehicles, buses and coaches. 

1.1 The London Borough of Barnet commissioned a Traffic Management Study to 
address the concerns of local residents and Councillors by proposing options 
to reduce danger from through traffic with minimal adverse effects on overall 

42



traffic flows. This study has assessed the existing arrangements on site, 
analysed accident data, undertaken traffic speed and volume data collection 
and undertaken pedestrian movement and crossing surveys.  The preferred 
option will be included in the 2015/16 Local Implementation Programme (LIP) 
programme which was agreed by the January 2015 Environment Committee. 
 

1.2 Pollard Road is on average an 8.0 m wide urban two way single carriageway 
subject to a 30mph speed limit with footways to both sides, bounded by 
private housing on both sides. The studied section of Pollard Road is 
approximately 380 m in length intersecting at its western end with Myddelton 
Park at a priority junction and at the eastern end with Oakleigh Road and 
Russell Lane at a mini-roundabout.  There is extensive on-street parking on 
Pollard Road with no formal parking bays provided and isolated SLOW 
carriageway markings. At the junction of Pollard Road with Oakleigh Road no 
waiting restrictions are imposed resulting in parked vehicles blocking the exit 
from the mini-roundabout. No pedestrian crossing facilities are provided 
anywhere along Pollard Road apart from isolated dropped kerbs. 
 

2 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 Following site observations and desktop analysis of the five year accident 
record, traffic speed and volume data and the pedestrian survey, a number of 
options have been developed to mitigate the concerns of local residents and 
Councillors and address the findings of the study. 
 

2.2 During the five year period between 1 May 2009 and 30 April 2014 there were 
7 recorded personal injury accidents within the studied length of road, which 
resulted in 7 slight casualties. The plot of these accidents is shown in Figure 
1. Five of these accidents (i.e. 71%) occurred at the Oakleigh Road/Pollard 
Road/Russell Lane mini-roundabout with three of these accidents involving 
give way line overshooting and colliding with another vehicle on the mini-
roundabout. One of the five accidents involved a pedestrian hit on the zebra 
crossing. One accident took place on Pollard Road which involved a vehicle 
reversing into the path of another vehicle and another single accident 
occurred at the Pollard Road/Myddleton Park junction, involving a junction 
overshoot. 29% of the total accidents took place in the dark and 14% of the 
total accidens took place on a wet road surface, which is below the national 
average for both factors.  The breakdown of accidents by year of occurrence 
and severity are shown in the following Table. 
 

 

Year Fatal Serious Slight Total 

01/05/2009 – 31/12/2009 0 0 0 0 

2010 0 0 1 1 

2011 0 0 2 2 

2012 0 0 3 3 

2013 0 0 0 0 

01/01/2014 – 30/04/2014 0 0 1 1 

Total 0 0 7 7 

 

43



 

2.3 Automatic Traffic Counter (ATC) 7 day surveys were undertaken on Pollard 
Road outside the property No.40 between 9 October and 15 October 2014. 
The following table summarises the results for Pollard Road:  

 
 

Day 
(24 hr) 

W/B 
Volume 

W/B  
Mean 
Speed 

W/B 
85th%ile 

E/B 
Volume 

E/B 
Mean 
Speed 

E/B 
85th%ile 

Monday 2432 23.5 33.2 2043 23.1 28.5 

Tuesday 2369 24.3 33.3 2125 23.9 28 

Wednesday 2498 23 33.6 2376 22.8 28.5 

Thursday 2412 25.1 33.2 1909 24.4 33.6 

Friday 2406 24.7 33.4 1888 24.4 33.3 

Saturday 2020 26.1 33.7 1451 24.9 33.4 

Sunday 1523 27.2 33.4 1099 25.5 33.6 

Average 

week total 
2237 24.8 33.4 1842 24.1 31.3 

 
* The eighty-fifth percentile (85%ile) speed is the speed at which 85% of the 
vehicles using that road travel at or below. It is nationally used benchmark by  
highway authorities and gives an indication of the extent of speed/trends at a  
given location. 

 
2.4 Analysis of the summary traffic/speed data indicates that the mean speeds on 

Pollard Road are almost 20% below the posted 30mph speed limit. It is also 
apparent that 18% more vehicles travel westbound on Pollard Road than 
eastbound on a typical day and traffic speeds are higher in the westbound 
direction. The distribution of traffic counts by class of vehicle has shown that 
Heavy Goods Vehicles/Buses amount to 6% of the total eastbound traffic flow 
and 8% of the total westbound traffic flow. This analysis has demonstrated 
that the existing road width constraints caused by parked vehicles form self-
enforcing speed reducing measures. Also, the analysis has shown that there 
is more traffic using Pollard Road as a short cut from Oakleigh Road to 
Myddleton Park than in reverse. 
 

2.5 Pedestrian movements were observed during school closing time at the 
Oakleigh Road/Pollard Road/Russell Lane mini-roundabout and at the Pollard 
Road junction with Myddleton Park. The initial observations have shown that 
the majority of pedestrians use the Oakleigh Road/Pollard Road/Russel Lane 
junction, therefore, a detailed manual pedestrian survey was undertaken on 
Thursday 9 October 2014 to assess the frequency of crossing movements 
and desire lines at this intersection. There are two existing zebra crossings 
located on the Russell Lane and Oakleigh Road North arms of the mini-
roundabout and an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing on the Oakleigh Road 

44



South arm. Figure 2 attached to this report summarises the results of the 
pedestrian surveys. 
 

The manual pedestrian counts took place in the AM, lunch time and PM peak 
time periods, between the following hours: 07:00 – 10:00; 12:00 – 14:00 and 
15:00 – 18:00. The times when highest hourly pedestrian flows took place 
across each arm of the junctions are summarised in the Table below: 

 
 

Location 

Highest 

Pedestrian 

Flow 

Hour 

Second 

Highest 

Pedestrian 

Flow Hour 

Pollard Road 08:00 – 09:00 15:00 – 16:00 

Oakleigh Road North 08:00 – 09:00 15:00 – 16:00 

Oakleigh Road South 08:00 – 09:00 15:00 – 16:00 

Russell Lane 08:00 – 09:00 15:00 – 16:00 

 
 

The results of these counts have indicated that at all arms of the mini-
roundabout  the highest pedestrian flows took place during the morning 08:00 
- 09:00 and afternoon 15:00 – 16:00 peak time periods, which correspond to 
the school opening/closing times. Most frequent pedestrian movements 
appear to take place in the direction from Pollard Road to Oakleigh Road 
North and in reverse. 
 

2.6 The pedestrian observations have indicated that there is a distinct desire line 
at the Pollard Road junction with Oakleigh Road where no pedestrian crossing 
facility is provided apart from dropped kerbs.  
 
 

3 PROPOSED OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

3.1 Option 1  
 
3.1.1 Option 1 includes two priority narrowings, carriageway narrowings 

incorporating uncontrolled pedestrian crossings at the western and 
eastern ends of Pollard Road and improvements to the central island of 
the mini-roundabout. The introduction of priority narrowings seeks to 
reduce traffic speeds along this residential street and, to some degree, 
will deter the use of Pollard Road as a short cut. However, these 
features will result in a loss of parking spaces, causing potential 
objections from residents.  
 

3.1.2 The provision of uncontrolled pedestrian crossing facilities at the new 
build outs on pedestrian desire lines at the Pollard Road junctions with 

45



Myddleton Road and Oakleigh Road will shorten crossing distances for 
pedestrians, decreasing the risk of pedestrian/vehicle accidents. These 
facilities will improve pedestrian safety during the busiest school 
opening/closing hours.  

 

3.1.3 The proposed extension of waiting restrictions at both Pollard Road 
junctions adjacent to the build outs will prevent vehicles from parking 
near the junctions, obstructing movements of turning vehicles and 
improving visibility between pedestrians and drivers.  

 

3.1.4 The proposal to raise the central dome of the mini-roundabout at the 
Pollard Road junction with Oakleigh Road North is intended to address 
the existing accident pattern involving a junction overshoot, although, 
this recommendation is a low impact measure for this type of accident 
and needs to be considered in a separate study. 

 

3.1.5 The estimated construction cost of Option 1 is £16,943 (based on 
prices contained in Year 2, Volume 4 Adjusted Rates – LoHAC 
Northwest1) and is exclusive of any topographical surveys, detailed 
design or statutory undertakers mitigation works. 

 
3.2 Option 2  

3.2.1 Option 2 includes the introduction of speed cushions, carriageway 
narrowings incorporating uncontrolled pedestrian crossings at the 
western and eastern ends of Pollard Road and improvement to the 
central island of the mini-roundabout. The introduction of asphalt speed 
cushions seeks to reduce traffic speeds along this residential street 
and to some degree will deter the use of Pollard Road as a short cut.  

 

3.2.2 Provision of uncontrolled pedestrian crossing facilities at the new build 
outs on pedestrian desire lines at the Pollard Road junctions with 
Myddleton Road and Oakleigh Road will shorten crossing distances for 
pedestrians, decreasing the risk of pedestrian/vehicle accidents. These 
facilities will improve pedestrian safety during the busiest school 
opening/closing hours.  

 

3.2.3 Proposed extension of waiting restrictions at both Pollard Road 
junctions adjacent to the build outs will prevent vehicles from parking 
near the junctions, obstructing movements of turning vehicles and 
improving visibility between pedestrians and drivers.  

 

3.2.4 The proposal to raise the central dome of the mini-roundabout at the 
Pollard Road junction with Oakleigh Road North is intended to address 
the existing accident pattern involving a junction overshoot, although, 
this recommendation is a low impact measure for this type of accident 
and needs to be considered in a separate study. 

 

3.2.5 The estimated construction cost of Option 2 is £23,077 (based on 
prices contained in Year 2, Volume 4 Adjusted Rates – LoHAC 

46



Northwest1) and is exclusive of any topographical surveys, detailed 
design or statutory undertakers mitigation works. 

 

3.3 Option 3 
 

3.3.1 Option 3 introduces a one way system on Pollard Road in a westerly direction 
supported by speed cushions and carriageway narrowings, incorporating 
uncontrolled pedestrian crossings at the western and eastern ends of Pollard 
Road.  
 

3.3.2 As in the previous two options the improvement to the central island of the 
mini-roundabout at the Pollard Road junction with Oakleigh Road North is also 
proposed. The proposed one way system will nearly halve the traffic flows on 
Pollard Road, reducing accidents risks and pollution. However, as the 
introduction of the one way system may result in an increase in traffic speeds, 
asphalt speed cushions have been introduced to address this problem.  
 

3.3.3 The provision of uncontrolled pedestrian crossing facilities at the new build 
outs on pedestrian desire lines at the Pollard Road junctions with Myddleton 
Road and Oakleigh Road will shorten crossing distances for pedestrians, 
decreasing the risk of pedestrian/vehicle accidents. These facilities will 
improve pedestrian safety during the busiest school opening/closing hours.  
 

3.3.4 The proposed extension of waiting restrictions at both Pollard Road junctions 
adjacent to the build outs will prevent vehicles from parking near the junctions, 
obstructing movements of turning vehicles and improving the visibility 
between pedestrians and drivers. The proposal to raise the central dome of 
the mini-roundabout is intended to address the existing accident pattern 
involving a junction overshoot, although, this recommendation is a low impact 
measure for this type of accident and needs to be considered in a separate 
study.  
 

3.3.5 The estimated construction cost of Option 3 is £29,991 (based on prices 
contained in Year 2, Volume 4 Adjusted Rates – LoHAC Northwest1) and is 
exclusive of any topographical surveys, detailed design or statutory 
undertakers mitigation works. 
 

3.4 The above design proposals seek to address excessive traffic volumes, 
vehicular speeds and safety of road users on Pollard Road. However, these 
improvements are likely to increase traffic flows and affect traffic conditions on 
the adjacent road network and, in particular, Loring Road, which also links 
Myddleton Park and Oakleigh Road North. No engineering measures have 
been recommended for this road at this stage.  It is therefore recommended 
that if Option 3 is progressed the one-way element of the scheme is 
implemented on an experimental basis so the impact on the surrounding 
roads can be assessed. 

47



 
4 POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1 Post decision implementations will depend on the decision taken by the 

Committee.  
 

5 IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
5.1.1 The subject of this report is in accordance with Objective one of the London 

Borough of Barnet Corporate Plan 2013-2016. This objective is to maintain a 

well‐designed, attractive and accessible place, with sustainable infrastructure 
across the borough. Within this objective, there are six performance measures 
set out in the 2014 Addendum to the Corporate Plan. These are the 
performance measures, which the subject of this report will be measured 
against if the Committee decides to approve a Traffic Management Scheme 
for Pollard Road. 

 
5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
5.2.1 Finances Estimated costs  for the necessary statutory processes, including 

advertising, printing and all officer time which would be rechargeable, 
including consideration of any comments received and report-writing will be 
met from available 15/16 Local Implementation Funding (LIP) funding secured 
for the purpose of making improvements to the Borough’s road network.  
 

5.2.2 Indicative costs for the recommended measures are approximate and shown 
in section 3 above at projected 2015 prices; 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
  

5.3.1 The Council’s Constitution Responsibility for Functions: Area Committees 
discharge various functions including highway use and regulation not the 
responsibility of the Council, within the boundaries of their areas in 
accordance with Council policy and within budget. 
 

5.3.2 The Traffic Management Act 2004 places obligation on authorities to ensure 
the expeditious movement of traffic on their road network.  Authorities are 
required to make arrangements as they consider appropriate for planning and 
carrying out the action to be taken in performing the duty. 
 

5.3.3 The Council as the Highway Authority has the necessary legal powers to 
introduce or amend Traffic Management Orders through the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 
 

5.4 Risk Management 
5.4.1 It is not considered the issues involved are likely to give rise to policy 

considerations as any changes to parking will be done so as to rationalise 
parking provision for residents and improve the traffic flow by helping to 
disperse local traffic into the wider network of local roads. 

48



5.4.2 It is considered the issues involved proposing or introducing parking 
restrictions may lead to some level of public concern from local residents who 
feel do not wish for such changes to be introduced, or from residents of other 
roads in the area concerned about commuter parking being displaced into 
their road or network of roads.  However, for both issues, it is considered that 
adequate consultation across a sufficient area will ensure that members of the 
public have the opportunity to comment in any informal consultation exercise 
or to any statutory consultation 
 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
5.5.1 Proposed changes associated with the design options for the Pollard Road 

Traffic Management Study are not expected to disproportionately 
disadvantage or benefit members of the community. 

 
5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
5.6.1 Consultation and engagement with residents will be undertaken following 

selection of a preferred design by the Committee and authorising Officers. 
 

6 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

There are no background reports. 

  

49



50

This page is intentionally left blank



51



D
A

T
E

C
H

E
C

K
D

R
A

W
N

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
S

IS
S

U
E

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 N
o

.

S
C

A
L

E
D

A
T

E

D
A

T
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E

T
IT

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

C
L
IE

N
T

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

F
IG

U
R

E
 2

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

F
IG

U
R

E
 2

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D

A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
 R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N

(L
IP

 2
0

1
5

/1
5

)

P
O

L
L

A
R

D
 R

O
A

D

P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

S
P

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

K
E

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

1
:1

2
5

0

C
S

/0
7

5
8

4
4

T
h

is
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 d

a
ta

 l
ic

e
n

s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 O
rd

o
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 w

it
h

th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
ti
o

n
e

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
. 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t.
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

 N
o

 1
0

0
0

1
7

6
7

4
©

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

a
n

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 r
ig

h
t 

2
0

1
3

. 
A

ll 
ri
g

h
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

d
. 

52



H
E

A
L

T
H

, 
S

A
F

E
T

Y
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

D
A

T
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
D

R
A

W
N

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
S

IS
S

U
E

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 N
o
.

S
C

A
L
E

D
A

T
E

D
A

T
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E

T
IT

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

C
L
IE

N
T

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

4
/O

P
T

IO
N

 1

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

4
/O

P
T

IO
N

 1

A A

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
A

C
C

ID
E

N
T

 R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

(L
IP

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
)

P
O

L
L
A

R
D

 R
O

A
D

P
R

E
L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 D
E

S
IG

N
O

P
T

IO
N

 1

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

H
K

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

K
E

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

1
: 

5
0

0

C
S

7
5

8
4

4

A
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
 F

O
L

L
O

W
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 A

U
D

IT
H

K
K

E
N

O
V

 2
0

1
4

T
h

is
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 d

a
ta

 l
ic

e
n

s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 O
rd

o
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 w

it
h

th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
ti
o

n
e

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
. 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t.
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

 N
o

 1
0

0
0

1
7

6
7

4
©

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

a
n

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 r
ig

h
t 

2
0

1
3

. 
A

ll 
ri
g

h
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

d
. 

53



H
E

A
L

T
H

, 
S

A
F

E
T

Y
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

D
A

T
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
D

R
A

W
N

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
S

IS
S

U
E

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 N
o
.

S
C

A
L
E

D
A

T
E

D
A

T
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E

T
IT

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

C
L
IE

N
T

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

4
/O

P
T

IO
N

 2

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

4
/O

P
T

IO
N

 2

A A

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
A

C
C

ID
E

N
T

 R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

(L
IP

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
)

P
O

L
L
A

R
D

 R
O

A
D

P
R

E
L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 D
E

S
IG

N
O

P
T

IO
N

 2

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

H
K

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

K
E

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

1
: 

5
0

0

C
S

7
5

8
4

4

A
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
 F

O
L

L
O

W
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 A

U
D

IT
H

K
K

E
N

O
V

 2
0

1
4

T
h

is
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 d

a
ta

 l
ic

e
n

s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 O
rd

o
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 w

it
h

th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
ti
o

n
e

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
. 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t.
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

 N
o

 1
0

0
0

1
7

6
7

4
©

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

a
n

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 r
ig

h
t 

2
0

1
3

. 
A

ll 
ri
g

h
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

d
. 

54



H
E

A
L

T
H

, 
S

A
F

E
T

Y
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

D
A

T
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
D

R
A

W
N

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
S

IS
S

U
E

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 N
o
.

S
C

A
L
E

D
A

T
E

D
A

T
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E

T
IT

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

C
L
IE

N
T

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

4
/O

P
T

IO
N

 3

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

4
/O

P
T

IO
N

 3

A A

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
A

C
C

ID
E

N
T

 R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

(L
IP

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
)

P
O

L
L
A

R
D

 R
O

A
D

P
R

E
L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 D
E

S
IG

N
O

P
T

IO
N

 3

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

H
K

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

K
E

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

1
: 

5
0

0

C
S

7
5

8
4

4

A
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
 F

O
L

L
O

W
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 A

U
D

IT
H

K
K

E
N

O
V

 2
0

1
4

T
h

is
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 d

a
ta

 l
ic

e
n

s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 O
rd

o
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 w

it
h

th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
ti
o

n
e

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
. 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t.
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

 N
o

 1
0

0
0

1
7

6
7

4
©

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

a
n

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 r
ig

h
t 

2
0

1
3

. 
A

ll 
ri
g

h
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

d
. 

55



����������	�
���	���	��������	���������	��������

�������������

�������������� !"�#��

�!$% #"! ��!$ &!' ��(!


$#��"!$���$���#)$

�$%�*����+�+�"��,$ (-% �./0 �� /.0�

�$%�*$�,1��'��#��,��!"#,���)�*$� #� 0.�/ 2 ��.�3

���++")��",#(

	$4���"��"!'��",#( #� ���.5� � ���.33

	$4�
"*$�6�'�(",#( #� �2�.�/ � �/�.��

	$4����%%� �(!(�+�����"��"!'��",#( #� �5�.�� � �33.3�

	$4��$% ����'�(",#( #� 05.�2 � ��3.�/

	$4�1#�"!�7������( #� �5/.25 3 ��0�.��

��$)!�")���6��8(

��$#)9�+���)�:�$�"#�+��!4�' % �5.�� �� ��3�.��

��$#)9�+���)�:�$��9�����",� % �2�.0 �� �5/�.��

��:�$ % 2.3� 2� �2�.0�

�1!��1!( #� �0.05 � �2�.�/

�$$�$���"����( #� �5�.�� � 25�.��

�1%"#��"$(�+���!��++")�(",#( #� 52.02 � �30.�/

����"�,$4�'����8"#,�6��8(

�;"(!"#,�)���"�,$4�'����8"#,( (-% 20./0 � �33.2�

!��:$��$%�*$�

	$4�,"*$�4�'�%��8"#,( % �.�2 �� ��.2�

	$4��<�=( #� �.�2 ��� ��0./�

	$4�%"#"���1#��:�1!�%��8"#,( #� ��.52 � ��.52

	$4�9�!)9�%��8"#,( % �./� �� ��.��

>$�:"#,�6��8(

��8$�1 �$;"(!"#,�8$�:(��#���"( �($ % 2 �� 2�.��

	$4�8$�:( % ��.�3 ��� ���3.��

	$4�!��#("!"�#�8$�:(� % 22.�5 3 �/�.��

	$4���� �8$�:( % �5.�/ �� �5�./�

��)!"�$���*"#,��71++� (-% ��.35 / ���.2�

���!4�'�(1�+�)"#, (-% 2/.�� �� 0�3.��

���"#�,$

	$4����"#�,$ (-% ��.�� �� /�/.2�


1��$'��#�����%$ #� ���.0� 2 ��/�.�/

���++")���#�,$%$#!

��6�'��",9!( ��' ��� 3 �/3�.��

��6�'��",9!( ��' 55.0� � 253.3�

�1:�!�!�� ����2.�/

��#!"#,$#)"$(���? ����.2�

��(!��(!"%�!$ �/5�2.�3

56



����������	�
���	���	��������	���������	��������

�������������

�������������� !"�#��

�!$% #"! ��!$ &!' ��(!


$#��"!$���$���#)$

�$%�*����+�+�"��,$ (-% �./0 �� /.0�

�$%�*$�,1��'��#��,��!"#,���)�*$� #� 0.�/ 2 ��.�3

���++")��",#(

	$4�������1% ��",#( #� ���.5� 3 �0/0.��

	$4�0/%%� �(!(�+����1% ��",#( #� �23.�� 3 ����.��

	$4��$% ����'�(",#( #� 05.�2 � ��3.�/

	$4�1#�"!�6������( #� �5/.25 � 03�.�/

����"�,$4�'����7"#,�8��7(

�9"(!"#,�)���"�,$4�'����7"#,( (-% 20./0 � �33.2�

!��:$��$%�*$�

	$4�,"*$�4�'�%��7"#,( % �.�2 �� ��.2�

	$4��;�<( #� �.�2 ��� ��0./�

	$4�%"#"���1#��:�1!�%��7"#,( #� ��.52 � ��.52

	$4�=�!)=�%��7"#,( #� �./� 2� �3.2�

>$�:"#,�8��7(

��7$�1 �$9"(!"#,�7$�:(��#���"( �($ % 2 2� 5�.��

	$4�7$�:( % ��.�3 �� 3��.��

	$4�!��#("!"�#�7$�:(� % 22.�5 3 �/�.��

	$4���� �7$�:( % �5.�/ �� �5�./�

��)!"�$���*"#,��61++� (-% ��.35 / ���.2�

���!4�'�(1�+�)"#, (-% 2/.�� �� ��/.��

� $$���1(="�#(

�#(!����2%�9��.0%�9�0�%%��( =��! (-% �5�.5� �� ���03./�

( $$��)1(="�#?�4"!=�4��#"#,�!�"�#,�$(

�5�	�����#)�1�$(�+���=�����",�

���"#�,$

	$4����"#�,$ (-% ��.�� �� /�/.2�


1��$'��#�����%$ #� ���.0� 2 ��/�.�/

���++")���#�,$%$#!

��8�'��",=!( ��' ��� 3 �/3�.��

��8�'��",=!( ��' 55.0� � 253.3�

�1:�!�!�� ��503.3/

��#!"#,$#)"$(���@ ��50.35

��(!��(!"%�!$ �2�0/.0�

57



����������	�
���	���	��������	���������	��������

�������������

�������������� !"�#�$

�!%& #"! ��!% '!( ��)!


%#��"!%���%���#*%

�%&�+����,�,�"��-% ).& �/01 �� 0/1�

�%&�+%�-2��(��#��-��!"#-���*�+%� #� 1/�0 $ ��/�3

���,,"*��"-#)

	%4��#%�5�(��"-#) #� ���/6� � ���/33

	%4�	���#!�(��"-#) #� ���/6� � ���/33

	%4�	���%,!��#���"-7!�!2�#�)"-#) #� ���/6� � 33$/10

	%4�������2& ��"-#) #� ���/6� � 33$/10

	%4�36&&� �)!)�,����"-#) #� �1�/3� �� ���6/3�

	%4��#%�5�(��% %�!%��)"-#) #� ��/0� � ��0/�3

	%4��%& ����(�)"-#) #� 16/�$ � ��3/�0

��%*!�"*���5��8)

��%#*7�,���*�9�%�"#�,��!4�( & �6/�� �� ��3�/��

��%#*7�,���*�9�%��7�����"-� & �$�/1 �� �60�/��

��9�% & $/3� $� �$�/1�

�2!��2!) #� �1/16 � �$�/�0

�%%�%���"����) #� �6�/�� � $6�/��

�2&"#��"%)�,���!��,,"*�)"-#) #� 6$/1$ � $1�/6�

����"�-%4�(����8"#-�5��8)

�:")!"#-�*���"�-%4�(����8"#-) ).& $1/01 � �33/$�

!��9%��%&�+%�

	%4�-"+%�4�(�&��8"#-) & �/�$ �� ��/$�

	%4��;�<) #� �/�$ ��� ��1/0�

	%4�&"#"���2#��9�2!�&��8"#-) #� ��/6$ � ��/6$

	%4�7�!*7�&��8"#-) #� �/0� $� �3/$�

=%�9"#-�5��8)

��8%�2 �%:")!"#-�8%�9)��#���") �)% & $ $� 6�/��

	%4�8%�9) & ��/�3 �� 3��/��

	%4�!��#)"!"�#�8%�9)� & $$/�6 3 �0�/��

	%4���� �8%�9) & �6/�0 �� �6�/0�

��*!"�%���+"#-��>2,,� ).& ��/36 0 ���/$�

���!4�(�)2�,�*"#- ).& $0/�� �� ��0/��

� %%���2)7"�#)

�#)!����$&�:��/1&�:�1�&&��) 7��! ).& �6�/6� �� ���13/0�

) %%��*2)7"�#?�4"!7�4��#"#-�!�"�#-�%)

�6�	�����#*�2�%)�,���7�����"-�

���"#�-%

	%4����"#�-% ).& ��/�� �� 0�0/$�


2��%(��#�����&% #� ���/1� $ ��0�/�0

58



����������	�
���	���	��������	���������	��������

�������������

���,,"*���#�-%&%#!

��5�(��"-7!) ��( ��� 3 �03�/��

��5�(��"-7!) ��( 66/1� 3 161/03

�29�!�!�� �1�0�/3�

��#!"#-%#*"%)���@ �1�0/�3

��)!��)!"&�!% �666�/$$

59



60

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Summary 
This report informs the Chipping Barnet Area Committee of proposed Traffic Management 
Options considered for Victoria Road including junctions with A110 East Barnet Road (S), 
Warwick Close, Victoria Close, Margaret Road (E and W), Park Road, Glyn Avenue, Albert 
Road and A110 East Barnet Road (N). 
 
This report also informs the Area Committee of the reasons for the proposed traffic 
management options considered. 
 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee notes the intention to address traffic management concerns 

on Victoria Road, Margaret Road and the targeted junction locations with A110 
East Barnet Road (S), Warwick Close, Victoria Close, Margaret Road (E and W), 
Park Road, Glyn Avenue, Albert Road and A110 East Barnet Road (N); 

2. That the Committee be mindful of the Councils current approach to traffic 
calming; 

3. The Committee decide whether or not vertical traffic calming features should be 
re-introduced on Victoria Road (as detailed in Option 2); 

 

Chipping Barnet Area Committee 
 

12 February 2015 
  

Title  
Victoria Road Area Traffic 
Management Scheme 

Report of Interim Commissioning Director for Environment 

Wards Chipping Barnet 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         

Accident plot for 5 year record (Figure 1) 
Pedestrian Survey Summary Diagrams (Figures 2 – 4) 
Outline design drawings: Options 1, 2 and 3 (Figure 5, 7 and 
9) 

Officer Contact Details  

Email: highwayscorrespondence@barnet.gov.uk 

Tel: 020 8359 3555 
 

AGENDA ITEM 10

61



 

 

4. Subject to a preferred option being chosen, the Interim Commissioning Director 
for Environment to proceed with commissioning a detailed design and associated 
public consultation with a view to implementation when resources are in place 
and following liaison with local ward members. 
Option 1 (Figure 5) 

• Pedestrian improvements on Victoria Road; 

• 7.5T Weight Limit Order on Victoria Road; 
• One-way system on Victoria Road, south to North-west between 

Victoria Close and Park Road to include Margaret Road; 

• Mini-roundabout at the junction of Victoria Road/Park Road; 

• Improved visibility at the junction of Alexander Close; 

• Improved visibility at the Victoria Road/East Barnet Road junction. 
 

Option 2 (Figure 7) 
• Pedestrian improvements on Victoria Road; 
• 7.5T Weight Limit Order on Victoria Road; 
•20mph Limit covering the full length of Victoria Road, Margaret Road 

East and West and the southern section of Park Road from its 
junction with Crescent Road. (The 20mph zone will be self-enforcing 

utilising a series of asphalt speed cushions One-way system on the 
eastern length of Margaret Road and the southern link of Park Road 
from the Crescent Road junction; 

• Mini-roundabout at the junction of Victoria Road/Park Road; 
• Improved visibility at the junction of Alexander Close; 
• Improved visibility at the Victoria Road/East Barnet Road junction. 
 

Option 3 (Figure 9) 
• Pedestrian improvements on Victoria Road; 
• 7.5T Weight Limit Order on Victoria Road; 
• 20mph Limit covering the full length of Victoria Road, Margaret Road 

East and West and the southern section of Park Road from its 
junction with Crescent Road (No speed cushions); 

• One-way system on Victoria Road, south to North-west between 
Victoria Close and Park Road to include Margaret Road; 

• Mini-roundabout at the junction of Victoria Road/Park Road; 
• Improved visibility at the junction of Alexander Close; 
• Improved visibility at the Victoria Road/East Barnet Road junction. 

 
 

 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 Concerns have been raised by local residents and Councillors regarding 

vehicle speeds, pedestrian safety, rat running and inappropriately sized 
vehicles on Victoria Road. There are local concerns regarding the lack of 
formalised pedestrian crossing points, particularly in relation to the use by 
school pupils.  
 

1.2 The London Borough of Barnet commissioned a Traffic Management Study to 
address the concerns of local residents and Councillors by proposing options 
to reduce the danger from through traffic with minimal adverse effects on 
overall traffic flows and to improve pedestrian movements. This study has 

62



 

 

assessed the existing arrangements on site, analysed accident data, 
undertaken traffic speed and volume data collection and undertaken 
pedestrian usage and crossing counts.  The preferred option will be included 
in the 2015/16 Local Implementation Programme (LIP) which was agreed by 
the January 2015 Environment Committee. 
 

1.3 Victoria Road is an urban two lane single carriageway subject to a 30mph 
speed limit with footways to both sides, bounded (for the most part) by private 
housing with the carriageway typically measuring 5.7m wide. The studied 
section of Victoria Road is approximately 750m in length and incorporates 
junctions with A110 East Barnet Road (S), Warwick Close, Victoria Close, 
Margaret Road (E and W), Park Road, Glyn Avenue, Albert Road and A110 
East Barnet Road to the north western end.  There is also a pedestrian 
footpath intersecting Victoria Road, to the east of the Albert Road junction, 
that links with an adjacent park that is used extensively by pupils travelling to 
and from a local comprehensive school (JCoSS). There is extensive on street 
parking along the majority of Victoria Road that narrows the useable 
carriageway width to a single lane over most of its length.  
 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 Following site observations and desktop analysis of the five year accident 
record, vehicle speed and volume data and the pedestrian survey, a number 
of options have been developed to mitigate the concerns of local residents 
and Councillors and address the findings of the study. 
 

2.2 During the five year period between 1 May 2009 and 30 April 2014 there were 
five recorded personal injury accidents as shown in the following table and 
detailed on the accident plot attached as Figure 1 of this report:  

 

Year Fatal Serious Slight Total 
01/05/09 – 31/12/09 0 0 2 2 

2010 0 0 1 1 

2011 0 0 1 1 

2012 0 0 0 0 

2013 0 1 0 1 
01/01/14 – 30/04/14 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 1 4 5 

 

The collisions listed above, one was classed as serious with four being 

classed as slight which resulted in seven casualties. One vehicle passenger 

received serious injuries and the remaining six casualties were classed as 

slight which included three additional passengers, one pedestrian, one driver 

and one motorcyclist. The serious accident occurred at the cross roads 

junction of Margaret Road with Victoria Road. A taxi travelling south west on 

Margaret Road overshot the Stop line and was in accident with a southbound 

vehicle on Victoria Road. Within the five year period, all recorded personal 

injury accidents have occurred at junctions within the limits of the scheme with 

two at the southern junction, two at the cross roads junction of Margaret Road 

63



 

 

with Victoria Road and one at the western junction with A110 East Barnet 

Road. No reported personal injury accidents have occurred on the links of 

Victoria Road between these junctions. Only one each (20%) of the accidents 

occurred on a wet road surface or during the hours of darkness, which is 

below the national average for both factors. 

 

2.3 Automatic Traffic Counts (ATC) 7 day traffic speed and volume surveys were 
undertaken on Victoria Road with counters located at outside No.112 (N&S/B 
towards the southern end of Victoria Road) between 25 September and 1 
October 2014. The following table summarises the results: 

 
 

Day 
(24 hr) 

N/B 
Volume 

N/B  
Mean 
Speed 

N/B 
85th%ile 

S/B 
Volume 

S/B 
Mean 
Speed 

S/B 
85th%ile 

Monday 637 21 26.4 767 21.9 27.1 

Tuesday 679 20 25.1 802 21.7 26.8 

Wednesday 671 19.8 24.8 805 21.3 26.6 

Thursday 671 20.2 25.5 781 21.2 26.4 

Friday 648 20.3 25.5 780 21.5 27.3 

Saturday 607 19.5 24.8 693 21.1 26.8 

Sunday 464 22.3 27.5 533 22.7 28.2 

Average 

Daily Total 
625 20.4 25.7 737 21.6 27.1 

 
 

2.4 ATC 7 day traffic speed and volume surveys were undertaken on Victoria 
Road with counters located at outside No.42 (E&W/B towards the western 
end of Victoria Road) between 25 September and 1 October 2014. The 
following table summarises the results: 
 
 

Day 
(24 hr) 

E/B 
Volume 

E/B  
Mean 
Speed 

E/B 
85th%ile 

W/B 
Volume 

W/B 
Mean 
Speed 

W/B 
85th%ile 

Monday 3151 21 26.4 2875 23 27.7 

Tuesday 3397 21.5 27.1 3093 23.9 28.6 

Wednesday 3443 21 26.8 3024 22.7 28 

Thursday 3147 21.3 26.8 2878 23.3 28 

Friday 3363 21.7 27.1 3031 23.5 28.2 

Saturday 2991 22.4 28 2760 24.6 29.1 

Sunday 2361 23.4 28.2 2116 24.6 29.1 

Average 

Daily Total 
3122 21.7 27.3 2825 23.6 28.4 

 
2.5 ATC 7 day traffic speed and volume surveys were also undertaken with 

counters located outside No.63 Margaret Road (East) between 26 September 
and 2 October 2014. The following table summarises the results: 

64



 

 

 

Day 
(24 hr) 

E/B 
Volume 

E/B  
Mean 
Speed 

E/B 
85th%ile 

W/B 
Volume 

W/B 
Mean 
Speed 

W/B 
85th%ile 

Monday 701 20.7 25.7 557 19 23.3 

Tuesday 748 19.9 25.3 554 19 23.5 

Wednesday 758 20.1 25.5 609 18.5 23.5 

Thursday 980 19.6 25.1 615 19 23.7 

Friday 750 20.1 25.1 564 19.3 24.8 

Saturday 755 20.2 24.8 525 19.1 23.7 

Sunday 475 20.8 25.7 331 19.2 23.5 

Average 

Daily Total 
738 20.1 25.3 536 19 23.7 

 
* The eighty-fifth percentile (85%ile) speed is the speed at which 85% of the 
vehicles using that road travel at or below. It is nationally used benchmark by  
highway authorities and gives an indication of the extent of speed/trends at a  
given location. 

 
2.6 Analysis of the summary data in the table above would indicate that the mean 

vehicle speeds are 32mph (N/B) and 28mph (S/B) below the posted 30mph 
speed limit at the southern end of Victoria Road, 28mph (E/B) and 21mph 
(W/B) below the speed limit at the western end of Victoria Road and 33 (E/B) 
and 37mph (W/B) below the speed limit on the eastern arm of Margaret Road. 
It is also apparent that 15% more vehicles travel southbound than northbound 
at the counter location at the southern end of Victoria Road. 10% more 
vehicles travel eastbound than westbound at the counter location at the 
western end of Victoria Road. 27% more vehicles travel eastbound than 
westbound at the counter location on the eastern arm of Margaret Road. Four 
times more traffic was counted at the western end of Victoria Road than at the 
southern end which would indicate that traffic at the western end of Victoria 
Road is travelling between the A110 E Barnet Road and Park Road leading to 
a network of residential streets to the north/ north east. Vehicles including two 
axle lorries and buses and larger vehicles account for approximately 5% of the 
traffic, with a slight reduction to 4% at the western end of Victoria Road. 
 

2.7 Pedestrian movements were observed during school closing time at the 
western end of Victoria Road and were further studied during a detailed 
manual pedestrian survey which was undertaken on Thursday 9 October 2014 
to assess the frequency of crossing movements at three locations: 

• A110 East Barnet Road/Warwick Close/Victoria Road (S) 

junction; 

• Victoria Road (between Glyn Avenue and Albert Road); and 

• Victoria Road (W)/A110 E Barnet Road junction. 

 The pedestrian survey was undertaken in 15 minute intervals between 07:00 
– 10:00 hours, 12:00 – 14:00 hours and 15:00 – 18:00 hours with total 
pedestrian movements detailed in Figures 2 – 4 inclusive. The following tables 
summarise the results at the three locations that were assessed: 

 

65



 

 

Southern end of Victoria Road 

Highest 

Pedestrian Flow 

Hour 

Second Highest 

Pedestrian Flow 

Hour 

Junction Arm Crossings 

Victoria Road 08:00 – 09:00 16:00 – 17:00 

Warwick Close Awaiting data from  

StreetWise Services A110 East Barnet Road (SW) 

Movements between Arms 

Victoria Road to Warwick Close 08:00 – 09:00 15:00 – 16:00 

Victoria Road to A110 E Barnet 

Road (SW) 
08:00 – 09:00 07:00 – 08:00 

Warwick Close to Victoria Road 08:00 – 09:00 
15:00 – 16:00 

16:00 – 17:00 

Warwick Close to A110 E Barnet 

Road (SW) 
15:00 – 16:00 16:00 – 17:00 

A110 East Barnet Road (SW) to 

Victoria Road 
08:00 – 09:00 15:00 – 16:00 

A110 East Barnet Road (N) to 

Warwick Close 
16:00 – 17:00 08:00 – 09:00 

 

 

Victoria Road  

(at footpath access) 

Highest 

Pedestrian Flow 

Hour 

Second Highest 

Pedestrian Flow 

Hour 

Road Crossing 

Albert Road south to north 17:00 – 18:00 16:00 – 17:00 

Albert Road north to south 07:00 – 08:00 09:00 – 10:00 

Movements  

Victoria Road (N) Eastbound 08:00 – 09:00 15:00 – 16:00 

Victoria Road (N) Westbound 16:00 – 17:00 15:00 – 16:00 

Victoria Road (S) Eastbound 08:00 – 09:00 07:00 – 08:00 

Victoria Road (S) Westbound 08:00 – 09:00 17:00 – 18:00 

 

Western end of Victoria Road 

Highest 

Pedestrian Flow 

Hour 

Second Highest 

Pedestrian Flow 

Hour 

Junction Arm Crossings 

Albert Road (E) 16:00 – 17:00 08:00 – 09:00 

Victoria Road (S) 12:00 – 13:00 17:00 – 18:00 

A110 East Barnet Road (SW) 09:00 – 10:00 N/A 

A110 East Barnet Road (N) 16:00 – 15:00 13:00 – 14:00 

Movements between Arms 

Albert Road  to Victoria Road 08:00 – 09:00 15:00 – 16:00 

Albert Road  to A110 E Barnet 

Road (N) 
16:00 – 17:00 17:00 – 18:00 

Victoria Road to A110 E Barnet 

Road (SW) 
16:00 – 17:00 08:00 – 09:00 

66



 

 

Victoria Road to Albert Road 16:00 – 17:00 17:00 – 18:00 

A110 East Barnet Road (SW) to 

A110 East Barnet Road (N) 
16:00 – 17:00 13:00 – 14:00 

A110 East Barnet Road (SW) to 

Victoria Road 
17:00 – 18:00 08:00 – 09:00 

A110 East Barnet Road (N) to 

Albert Road 
08:00 – 09:00 17:00 – 18:00 

A110 East Barnet Road (N) to 

A110 E Barnet Road (SW) 
13:00 – 14:00 12:00 – 13:00 

 

2.8 From site observations and the results of the pedestrian survey, there are 
strong pedestrian desire lines at all junctions along Victoria Road, particularly 
at the junctions with the A110 East Barnet Road at each end of the studied 
route. There are also increased pedestrian movements in relation to the local 
comprehensive school (JCoSS) at the Victoria Road/Park Road junction, 
across Victoria Road at a point where a footpath from a local park intersects it 
between Glyn Avenue and Albert Road and at the A110 East Barnet Road 
junction (W). The close proximity of the school is evident with peak pedestrian 
movements often coinciding with the start or finish of the school. At most 
junctions along Victoria road there are dropped or lowered kerbs to assist 
pedestrians, but this is not consistent and there is no blister tactile paving to 
assist visually impaired users.  
 
PROPOSED OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

2.9 Option 1 (Figure 5) 
 

2.9.1 Option 1 incorporates the narrowing of the Victoria Road (S) junction with 
A110 East Barnet Road to reduce the width of road pedestrians have to 
cross. Pedestrians will be further assisted with dropped kerbs, blister 
tactile paving and a central pedestrian refuge.  The tightening of the corner 
radii should deter larger vehicles from using Victoria Road as a rat run 
which is reinforced with a 7.5T weight limit order (and associated Except 
for Access sign) for the length of Victoria Road with associated gateway 
and advanced signing at the major junctions.  
 

2.9.2 There is a proposed one way system south to northwest bound between 
Victoria Close and Park Road that also incorporates the eastern length of 
Margaret Road. Two accidents occurred at the Victoria Road/Margaret 
Road junction, one of which was serious, but both involved westbound 
vehicles so this proposal should reduce the likelihood of further incidents. 
No Entry and One Way signing will inform drivers/riders of the layout on 
Victoria Road and Margaret Road.  

 

2.9.3 There is a proposed mini roundabout at the junction of Victoria Road and 
Park Road with a tightening of the north eastern corner radius to reduce 
potential left turns from Park Road against the one way system.  

 

67



 

 

2.9.4 At the Alexander Close junction, visibility will be improved slightly to the 
left by removing the existing foliage and carriageway markings will define 
the limit of the junction.  

 

2.9.5 Towards the western end of Victoria Road there is a need for a pedestrian 
crossing in the vicinity of the footpath intersection that is widely used by 
school pupils. Due to the large number of off carriageway drives, there is 
limited space for a pedestrian crossing location. Further discussion with 
LBB will be required to provide a crossing at this location.  

 

2.9.6 Visibility will be improved slightly at the Victoria Road/A110 E Barnet Road 
mini roundabout junction by pulling the give way line forward. It should be 
noted that hoardings around the site boundary on the south eastern side of 
the junction further reduce intervisibility at the junction and should be 
removed at the earliest opportunity.  

 

2.9.7 The estimated construction cost of Option 1 (Figure 6) is £47,793 (based 
on prices contained in Year 2, Volume 4 Adjusted Rates – LoHAC 
Northwest1) and is exclusive of any topographical surveys, detailed design 
or statutory undertakers mitigation works. 

 
2.10 Option 2 (Figure 7)  

 
2.10.1 Option 2 incorporates the narrowing of the Victoria Road (S) junction with 

A110 E Barnet Road to reduce the width of road pedestrians have to 
cross. Pedestrians will be further assisted with dropped kerbs, blister 
tactile paving and a central pedestrian refuge.  The tightening of the corner 
radii should deter larger vehicles from using Victoria Road as a rat run 
which is reinforced with a 7.5T weight limit order (and associated Except 
for Access sign) for the length of Victoria Road with associated gateway 
and advanced signing at the major junctions.  
 

2.10.2 There is a proposed 20mph zone for covering the full length of Victoria 
Road, Margaret Road (East and West) and the southern section of Park 
Road from its junction with Crescent Road. The 20mph zone will be self 
enforcing utilising a series of speed cushions on all roads subject to the 
lower speed limit.  

 

2.10.3 There is a proposed one way system on the eastern length of Margaret 
Road and the southern link of Park Road from the Crescent Road junction, 
with associated No Entry and One Way signing to inform drivers/riders of 
the layout.  

 

2.10.4 There is a proposed mini roundabout at the junction of Victoria Road and 
Park Road.  

 

2.10.5 At the Alexander Close junction, visibility will be improved slightly to the 
left by removing the existing foliage and carriageway markings will define 
the limit of the junction.  

 

68



 

 

2.10.6 Towards the western end of Victoria Road there is a need for a pedestrian 
crossing in the vicinity of the footpath intersection that is widely used by 
school pupils. Due to the large number of off carriageway drives, there is 
limited space for a pedestrian crossing location. There is a proposed 
development in the local area which may have a direct bearing on the 
provision of a crossing under a Section 106 agreement. Further discussion 
with LBB will be required to provide a crossing at this location.  

 

2.10.7 Visibility will be improved slightly at the Victoria Road/A110 East Barnet 
Road mini roundabout junction by pulling the give way line forward. It 
should be noted that hoardings around the site boundary on the south 
eastern side of the junction further reduce intervisibility at the junction and 
should be removed at the earliest opportunity.  

 

2.10.8 The estimated construction cost of Option 2 with asphalt speed cushions is 
£104,925 (Figure 7) (based on prices contained in Year 2, Volume 4 
Adjusted Rates – LoHAC Northwest1) and is exclusive of any 
topographical surveys, detailed design or statutory undertakers mitigation 
works. 

 

2.11 Option 3 (Figure 9)  
 

2.11.1 Option 3 incorporates the narrowing of the Victoria Road (S) junction with 
A110 E Barnet Road to reduce the width of road pedestrians have to 
cross. Pedestrians will be further assisted with dropped kerbs, blister 
tactile paving and a central pedestrian refuge.  The tightening of the corner 
radii should deter larger vehicles from using Victoria Road as a rat run 
which is reinforced with a 7.5T weight limit order (and associated Except 
for Access sign) for the length of Victoria Road with associated gateway 
and advanced signing at the major junctions.  
 

2.11.2 There is a proposed 20mph limit covering the full length of Victoria Road, 
Margaret Road (East and West) and the southern section of Park Road 
from its junction with Crescent Road.  

 

2.11.3 There is a proposed one way system south to northwest bound between 
Victoria Close and Park Road that also incorporates the eastern length of 
Margaret Road. No Entry and One Way signing will inform drivers/riders of 
the layout on Victoria Road and Margaret Road.  

 

2.11.4 There is a proposed mini roundabout at the junction of Victoria Road and 
Park Road with a tightening of the north eastern corner radius to reduce 
potential left turns from Park Road against the one way system.  

 

2.11.5 At the Alexander Close junction, visibility will improved slightly to the left by 
removing the existing foliage and carriageway markings will define the limit 
of the junction.  

 

2.11.6 Towards the western end of Victoria Road there is a need for a pedestrian 
crossing in the vicinity of the footpath intersection that is widely used by 

69



 

 

school pupils. Due to the large number of off carriageway drives, there is 
limited space for a pedestrian crossing location. There is a proposed 
development in the local area which may have a direct bearing on the 
provision of a crossing under a Section 106 agreement. Further discussion 
with LBB will be required to provide a crossing at this location.  

 

2.11.7 Visibility will be improved slightly at the Victoria Road/A110 East Barnet 
Road mini roundabout junction by pulling the give way line forward. It 
should be noted that hoardings around the site boundary on the south 
eastern side of the junction further reduce intervisibility at the junction and 
should be removed at the earliest opportunity.  

 

2.11.8 The estimated construction cost of Option 3 (Figure 10) is £56,525 (based 
on prices contained in Year 2, Volume 4 Adjusted Rates – LoHAC 
Northwest1) and is exclusive of any topographical surveys, detailed design 
or statutory undertakers mitigation works. 

 
2.12 The proposed options outlined in this report seek to address the concerns of 

local residents and provide infrastructure to mitigate against on site 
observations and those issues identified within the accident, traffic and 
pedestrian analysis. Recorded mean speeds along Victoria Road and 
Margaret Road are close to 20mph without vertical traffic calming, however, if 
a one way system on Victoria Road is implemented, there is a possibility that 
vehicle speeds could increase and post implementation monitoring should be 
undertaken. If vehicle speeds do increase, additional measures should be 
provided that could include vertical and horizontal traffic calming along the 
section of one way flow.  
 

2.13 It should also be noted that the proposed development towards the western 
end of Victoria Road could have an impact on the volume of vehicle and 
pedestrian traffic. This is being assessed as part of the planning application 
and S106 agreement. Additional measures may be required on Victoria Road 
between the junctions of A110 East Barnet Road (North) and Park Road and 
should be based on projected traffic volumes but could include localised traffic 
calming on this section of Victoria Road.   
 

3. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

3.1 Post decision implementations will depend on the decision taken by the 
Committee.  
 

4. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

4.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
4.1.1 The subject of this report is in accordance with Objective one of the London 

Borough of Barnet Corporate Plan 2013-2016. This objective is to maintain a 

well‐designed, attractive and accessible place, with sustainable infrastructure 
across the borough. Within this objective, there are six performance measures 
set out in the 2014 Addendum to the Corporate Plan. These are the 
performance measures, which the subject of this report will be measured 

70



 

 

against if the Committee decides to approve a Traffic Management Scheme 
for Victoria Road. 
 

4.1.2 Further by seeking to address pedestrian and traffic safety concerns, this is 
within the context of the intervention criteria set by ‘Priorities of the Traffic 
Management Budget’ Cabinet Report of July 2002. 
 

4.1.3 The measures also dovetail with School Travel Plan initiatives that Barnet 
support in order to create an environment that encourages an active lifestyle 
and reduces obesity by promoting walking and other sustainable modes of 
school travel. 

 
4.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 
4.2.1 Finances Estimated costs  for the necessary statutory processes, including 

advertising, printing and all officer time which would be rechargeable, 
including consideration of any comments received and report-writing will be 
met from available 15/16 Local Implementation Funding (LIP) funding secured 
for the purpose of making improvements to the Borough’s road network.  
 

4.2.2 Indicative costs for the highlighted options are approximate and shown in 
section 2.9, 2.10 and 2.11 above at projected 2015 prices; 

 
4.3 Legal and Constitutional References 

  
4.3.1 The Council’s Constitution Responsibility for Functions: Area Committees 

discharge various functions including highway use and regulation not the 
responsibility of the Council, within the boundaries of their areas in 
accordance with Council policy and within budget. 
 

4.3.2 The Council’s Constitution, Meetings Procedure Rules – Paragraph 6.1 states 
that a Member (including appointed substitute Members) will be permitted to 
have one matter only (with no sub-items) on the agenda for a meeting of a 
committee or sub-committee on which he/she serves. Paragraph 6.2 states 
that Members’ Items must be relevant to the terms of reference of the body 
which will consider the item. 
 

4.3.3 The Traffic Management Act 2004 places obligation on authorities to ensure 

the expeditious movement of traffic on their road network.  Authorities are 

required to make arrangements as they consider appropriate for planning and 

carrying out the action to be taken in performing the duty. 

 

4.3.4 The Council as the Highway Authority has the necessary legal powers to 
introduce or amend Traffic Management Orders through the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984. 
 

4.4 Risk Management 
4.4.1 None in the context of this report. Risk management may be required for work 

resulting from this report. 
 

71



 

 

4.5 Equalities and Diversity  
4.5.1 Proposed changes associated with the design options for the Victoria Road 

Traffic Management Study are not expected to disproportionately 
disadvantage or benefit members of the community. 

 
4.6 Consultation and Engagement 
4.6.1 Consultation and engagement with residents will be undertaken following 

selection of a preferred design by the Sub Committee and authorising 
Officers. 
 

5. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

There are no background reports. 

  

72



73



74



75



76



H
E

A
L

T
H

, 
S

A
F

E
T

Y
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

D
A

T
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
D

R
A

W
N

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
S

IS
S

U
E

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 N
o
.

S
C

A
L
E

D
A

T
E

D
A

T
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E

T
IT

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

C
L
IE

N
T

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

3
/O

P
T

IO
N

/F
IG

 5

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

3
/O

P
T

IO
N

 1
/F

IG
 5

A A

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
A

C
C

ID
E

N
T

 R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

(L
IP

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
)

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

O
P

T
IO

N
 1

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

H
K

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

P
J
G

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

C
S

/7
5

8
4

4

A
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
 F

O
L

L
O

W
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 A

U
D

IT
H

K
P

J
G

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

T
h

is
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 d

a
ta

 l
ic

e
n

s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 O
rd

o
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 w

it
h

th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
ti
o

n
e

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
. 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t.
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

 N
o

 1
0

0
0

1
7

6
7

4
©

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

a
n

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 r
ig

h
t 

2
0

1
3

. 
A

ll 
ri
g

h
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

d
. 

77



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND ACCIDENT REDUCTION SCHEMES

(LIP 2014/15)

Victoria Road Option 1A

Item Unit Rate Qty Cost

Gen Site Clearance

Removal of foilage sqm 1.5 10 15.00

Remove gully and grating / cover no 7.16 2 14.32

Traffic Signs

New Weight Limit Signs no 220.94 14 3093.16

New One Way Signs no 220.94 8 1767.52

New No Entry Signs no 220.94 6 1325.64

New Prohibition of right,left turn no 220.94 4 883.76

New 76mm posts for Weight Limit Signs no 138.00 14 1932.00

New 76mm posts for One Way, no entry Signs no 138.00 8 1104.00

New 76mm posts for right, left turn no 138.00 4 552.00

New Temporary signs no 79.23 6 475.38

New Bollards no 196.39 4 785.56

Electrical Works

Trench for cable in footway m 59.41 25 1485.25

Trench for cable (hard dig) m 130.7 15 1960.50

Cable m 3.85 35 134.75

Cut Outs no 57.79 4 231.16

Feeder Pillars no 195.02 4 780.08

Luminaires for traffic signs no 93.73 6 562.38

Carriageway Marking Works

Existing carriageway Markings sqm 37.67 30 1130.10

to be removed

New give way markings m 1.23 40 49.20

Refresh DYL's no 1.23 200 246.00

New No Entry markings no 41.93 14 587.02

New hatch markings no 0.61 30 18.30

Kerbing Works

Take up existing kerbs and dispose m 3 100 300.00

New kerbs m 21.28 50 1064.00

New transition kerbs m 33.19 50 1659.50

New drop kerbs m 29.26 45 1316.70

Tactile Paving (Buff) sqm 25.89 60 1553.4

Patching works sqm 54.46 6 326.76

Footway surfacing sqm 36.40 100 3640.00

New pedestrian refuge island sqm 32.27 4 129.08

New Zebra crossing Item 10000.00

Figure 6

78



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND ACCIDENT REDUCTION SCHEMES

(LIP 2014/15)

Drainage

New Drainage sqm 40.42 15 606.30

Gulley and Frame no 420.75 2 841.51

Traffic Management

4 Way lights day 210 8 1680.00

2 Way lights day 99.71 6 598.26

3 Way lights day 150 4 600

Sub total 43448.59

Contingencies 10% 4344.86

Cost Estimate 47793.45

79



H
E

A
L

T
H

, 
S

A
F

E
T

Y
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

D
A

T
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
D

R
A

W
N

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
S

IS
S

U
E

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 N
o
.

S
C

A
L
E

D
A

T
E

D
A

T
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E

T
IT

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

C
L
IE

N
T

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

3
/O

P
T

IO
N

 2
/F

IG
 7

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

3
/O

P
T

IO
N

 2
/F

IG
 7

A A

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
A

C
C

ID
E

N
T

 R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

(L
IP

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
)

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

O
P

T
IO

N
 2

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

H
K

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

P
J
G

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

C
S

/7
5

8
4

4

A
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
 F

O
L

L
O

W
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 A

U
D

IT
H

K
P

J
G

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

T
h

is
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 d

a
ta

 l
ic

e
n

s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 O
rd

o
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 w

it
h

th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
ti
o

n
e

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
. 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t.
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

 N
o

 1
0

0
0

1
7

6
7

4
©

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

a
n

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 r
ig

h
t 

2
0

1
3

. 
A

ll 
ri
g

h
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

d
. 

80



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND ACCIDENT REDUCTION SCHEMES

(LIP 2014/15)

Victoria Road Option 2

Item Unit Rate Qty Cost

Gen Site Clearance

Removal of foilage sqm 1.5 10 15.00

Remove gully and grating / cover no 7.16 2 14.32

Traffic Signs

New Weight Limit Signs no 220.94 14 3093.16

New One Way Signs no 220.94 8 1767.52

New No Entry Signs no 220.94 6 1325.64

New Prohibition of right,left turn no 220.94 4 883.76

New 20 mph Zone signs no 311.25 10 3112.50

New 76mm posts for Weight Limit Signs no 138.00 14 1932.00

New 76mm posts for One Way, no entry Signs no 138.00 8 1104.00

New 76mm posts for right, left turn no 138.00 4 552.00

New 114mm posts for 20 zone signs no 283.76 10 2837.60

New Temporary signs no 79.23 6 475.38

New Bollards no 196.39 4 785.56

Electrical Works

Trench for cable in footway m 59.41 25 1485.25

Trench for cable (hard dig) m 130.7 15 1960.50

Cable m 3.85 35 134.75

Cut Outs no 57.79 4 231.16

Feeder Pillars no 195.02 4 780.08

Luminaires for traffic signs no 93.73 8 749.84

Carriageway Marking Works

Existing carriageway Markings sqm 37.67 30 1130.10

to be removed

New give way markings m 1.23 40 49.20

Refresh DYL's no 1.23 200 246.00

New No Entry markings no 41.93 14 587.02

New hatch markings no 0.61 30 18.30

Speed Cushions

Install 3m x 1.7m x 75mm Asphalt no 195.90 132 25858.80

speed cushion, with warning triangles

(22 No)

Kerbing Works

Take up existing kerbs and dispose m 3 100 300.00

New kerbs m 21.28 50 1064.00

New transition kerbs m 33.19 50 1659.50

Figure 8a

81



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND ACCIDENT REDUCTION SCHEMES

(LIP 2014/15)

New drop kerbs m 29.26 45 1316.70

Tactile Paving (Buff) sqm 25.89 60 1553.4

Patching works sqm 54.46 6 326.76

Footway surfacing sqm 36.40 100 3640.00

New pedestrian refuge island sqm 32.27 4 129.08

New Zebra crossing Item 10000.00

Drainage

New Drainage sqm 40.42 15 606.30

Gulley and Frame no 420.75 2 841.51

Traffic Management

4 Way lights day 210 8 1680.00

2 Way lights day 99.71 6 598.26

3 Way lights day 150 16 2400

Sub total 77244.95

Contingencies 10% 7724.49

Cost Estimate 84969.44

82



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND ACCIDENT REDUCTION SCHEMES

(LIP 2014/15)

Victoria Road Option 2A

Item Unit Rate Qty Cost

Gen Site Clearance

Removal of foilage sqm 1.5 10 15.00

Remove gully and grating / cover no 7.16 2 14.32

Traffic Signs

New Weight Limit Signs no 220.94 14 3093.16

New One Way Signs no 220.94 8 1767.52

New No Entry Signs no 220.94 6 1325.64

New Prohibition of right,left turn no 220.94 4 883.76

New 20 mph Zone signs no 311.25 10 3112.50

New 76mm posts for Weight Limit Signs no 138.00 14 1932.00

New 76mm posts for One Way Signs no 138.00 8 1104.00

New 76mm posts for right, left turn no 138.00 4 552.00

New 114mm posts for 20 zone signs no 283.76 10 2837.60

New Temporary signs no 79.23 6 475.38

New Bollards no 196.39 4 785.56

Electrical Works

Trench for cable in footway m 59.41 25 1485.25

Trench for cable (hard dig) m 130.7 15 1960.50

Cable m 3.85 35 134.75

Cut Outs no 57.79 4 231.16

Feeder Pillars no 195.02 4 780.08

Luminaires for traffic signs no 93.73 8 749.84

Carriageway Marking Works

Existing carriageway Markings sqm 37.67 30 1130.10

to be removed

New give way markings m 1.23 40 49.20

Refresh DYL's no 1.23 200 246.00

New No Entry markings no 41.93 14 587.02

New hatch markings no 0.61 30 18.30

Speed Cushions

Install 3m x 1.7m x 75mm Rubber no 2000.00 22 44000.00

speed cushion, with warning triangles

(22 No)

Kerbing Works

Take up existing kerbs and dispose m 3 100 300.00

New kerbs m 21.28 50 1064.00

New transition kerbs m 33.19 50 1659.50

Figure 8b

83



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND ACCIDENT REDUCTION SCHEMES

(LIP 2014/15)

New drop kerbs m 29.26 45 1316.70

Tactile Paving (Buff) sqm 25.89 60 1553.4

Patching works sqm 54.46 6 326.76

Footway surfacing sqm 36.40 100 3640.00

New pedestrian refuge island sqm 32.27 4 129.08

New Zebra crossing Item 10000.00

Drainage

New Drainage sqm 40.42 15 606.30

Gulley and Frame no 420.75 2 841.51

Traffic Management

4 Way lights day 210 8 1680.00

2 Way lights day 99.71 6 598.26

3 Way lights day 150 16 2400

Sub total 95386.15

Contingencies 10% 9538.61

Cost Estimate 104924.76

84



H
E

A
L

T
H

, 
S

A
F

E
T

Y
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

D
A

T
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
D

R
A

W
N

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
S

IS
S

U
E

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 N
o
.

S
C

A
L
E

D
A

T
E

D
A

T
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E

T
IT

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

C
L
IE

N
T

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

D
R

G
. 
N

o
.

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

R
E

F
.

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

3
/O

P
T

IO
N

 3
/F

IG
 9

C
S

/7
5
8
4
4
/0

3
/O

P
T

IO
N

 3
/F

IG
 9

A A

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
A

C
C

ID
E

N
T

 R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

(L
IP

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
)

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

O
P

T
IO

N
 3

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

H
K

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

P
J
G

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

A
S

 S
H

O
W

N

C
S

/7
5

8
4

4

A
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
 F

O
L

L
O

W
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 A

U
D

IT
H

K
P

J
G

N
O

V
 2

0
1

4

T
h

is
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 d

a
ta

 l
ic

e
n

s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 O
rd

o
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 w

it
h

th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
ti
o

n
e

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
. 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t.
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

 N
o

 1
0

0
0

1
7

6
7

4
©

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

a
n

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 r
ig

h
t 

2
0

1
3

. 
A

ll 
ri
g

h
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

d
. 

85



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND ACCIDENT REDUCTION SCHEMES

(LIP 2014/15)

Victoria Road Option 3A

Item Unit Rate Qty Cost

Gen Site Clearance

Removal of foilage sqm 1.5 10 15.00

Remove gully and grating / cover no 7.16 2 14.32

Traffic Signs

New Weight Limit Signs no 220.94 14 3093.16

New One Way Signs no 220.94 8 1767.52

New No Entry Signs no 220.94 6 1325.64

New Prohibition of right,left turn no 220.94 4 883.76

New 20 Limit signs no 311.25 10 3112.50

New 76mm posts for Weight Limit Signs no 138.00 14 1932.00

New 76mm posts for One Way, no entry Signs no 138.00 8 1104.00

New 76mm posts for right, left turn no 138.00 4 552.00

New 114mm posts for 20 limit signs no 283.76 10 2837.60

New Temporary signs no 79.23 6 475.38

New Bollards no 196.39 4 785.56

Electrical Works

Trench for cable in footway m 59.41 25 1485.25

Trench for cable (hard dig) m 130.7 15 1960.50

Cable m 3.85 35 134.75

Cut Outs no 57.79 4 231.16

Feeder Pillars no 195.02 4 780.08

Luminaires for traffic signs no 93.73 8 749.84

Carriageway Marking Works

Existing carriageway Markings sqm 37.67 30 1130.10

to be removed

New give way markings m 1.23 40 49.20

Refresh DYL's no 1.23 200 246.00

New No Entry markings no 41.93 14 587.02

New hatch markings no 0.61 30 18.30

Kerbing Works

Take up existing kerbs and dispose m 3 100 300.00

New kerbs m 21.28 50 1064.00

New transition kerbs m 33.19 50 1659.50

New drop kerbs m 29.26 45 1316.70

Tactile Paving (Buff) sqm 25.89 60 1553.4

Patching works sqm 54.46 6 326.76

Footway surfacing sqm 36.40 100 3640.00

New pedestrian refuge island sqm 32.27 4 129.08

Figure 10

86



TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND ACCIDENT REDUCTION SCHEMES

(LIP 2014/15)

New Zebra crossing Item 10000.00

Drainage

New Drainage sqm 40.42 15 606.30

Gulley and Frame no 420.75 2 841.51

Traffic Management

4 Way lights

2 Way lights day 210 8 1680.00

3 Way lights day 99.71 6 598.26

day 150 16 2400

Sub total

Contingencies 10% 51386.15

5138.61

Cost Estimate 56524.76

87



88

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

Following receipt of a petition from residents of Naylor Road and Birley Road N20, about 
the commuter-related parking issues they encounter due to their roads’ proximity to 
Totteridge and Whetstone Underground Station, the matter was discussed at the Chipping 
Barnet Residents Forum on 13th March 2013.  It was determined at that time that an 
informal consultation to ascertain views on parking issues and controls should be carried 
out primarily centred on Naylor Road and Birley Road. However, having sought views from 
the local ward members on the extent of the area to be consulted concerns were raised on 
the appropriateness of such consultation being carried out. 
 
Due to a lack of progress, residents of Naylor Road and Birley Road submitted another 
petition due to the same concerns, and the matter was discussed at the Chipping Barnet 
Residents’ Forum on 26th March 2014.  After discussion, the issue was subsequently 
referred to the Chipping Barnet Area Environment Sub-Committee on the same evening. 
 
The Chipping Barnet Area Environment Sub-Committee resolved that 

1. Officers should liaise with the relevant ward councillors to decide the appropriate 
area/ roads for a preliminary informal consultation on the principle of introducing 

 

Chipping Barnet Area Committee 
 

12 February 2015 
  

Title  

Naylor Road and Birley Road, N20 – 
request for a Controlled Parking Zone 
(CPZ) 

Report of Interim Commissioning Director for Environment 

Wards Totteridge 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         

Appendix A – Copy of Totteridge Ward Councillors’ 
consultation document 
Appendix B – Drawing Number 22014_001 - Proposed CPZ 
layout 

Officer Contact Details  

Email: highwayscorrespondence@barnet.gov.uk 

Tel: 020 8359 3555 

 

AGENDA ITEM 11

89



parking controls in the area. 
2. An informal consultation, using a letter drop and a survey, be carried out as soon as 

practicable. 
3. The consultation responses be analysed by officers, road by road. 
4. That the results of the consultation and road by road analysis be brought back to the 

next appropriate committee meeting for consideration, with a decision on any further 
action to be taken at that point. 

 
This report summarises progress made to date, and asks the Chipping Barnet Area 
Committee to decide how Officers should progress. 
 

 

Recommendations  
That the Committee note the details contained within this report and approve the 
following: 
 

1. That the details and results of the Totteridge Ward Councillors’ 
consultation exercise is noted. 

2. That having noted the details and results of the Totteridge Ward 
Councillors’ consultation exercise, that the Committee is asked to decide 
whether: 
 

(a) Officers should carry out an informal consultation with a view to 
reporting back the result of the consultation to a future meeting of 
this Committee; or 

(b) Officers should progress to a statutory consultation on a 
proposed Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) for Naylor Road, Birley 
Road and Hayward Road, the layout of which is set out in 
Appendix B to this report. 

 
3. That, subject to the decision made in 2. above, that the results of the 

informal consultation referred to in 2a above be brought back to a future 
meeting of this Committee for consideration, and for a decision on how to 
proceed. 
 

4. That, subject to the decision made in 2. above, that subject to no 
objections being received to the statutory consultation referred to in 2b 
above, that Officers introduce the CPZ through the making of the relevant 
Traffic Management Orders;  

 

5. That subject to the decision made in 2. above, any unresolved material 
objections to the statutory consultation referred to in 2b above, are 
reported back to a future meeting of this Committee for consideration, and 
for a decision on how to proceed. 
 

 
 
 

90



 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 This report provides the Committee with an update on progress made to date 

following the Chipping Barnet Area Environment Sub-Committee’s decision of 
26 March 2014 for an informal consultation to take place relating to the 
parking issues in Naylor Road, Birley Road and environs, and asks the 
Committee to note the actions carried out to date, and to make a decision on 
how to proceed. 
 

 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 On the 26 March 2014, the Chipping Barnet Environment Sub-Committee 

having considered a petition received from residents of Naylor Road and 
Birley Road N20 about the parking issues they have encountered due to their 
proximity to Totteridge and Whetstone Underground Station, decided that  
(a) officers should liaise with relevant ward councillors to decide the 
appropriate area/ roads for a preliminary informal consultation on the principle 
of introducing parking controls in the area 
(b) an informal consultation, using a letter drop and a survey, be carried out 
as soon as practicable, ensuring to avoid the purdah period of 14 April – 22 
May 2014. 
(c) the consultation responses be analysed by officers, road by road. 
(d) the results of the consultation and road by road analysis be brought back 
to the next appropriate committee meeting for consideration (noting that a 
new governance structure is due to be considered at Full Council meeting on 
2 June), with a decision on any further action to be taken at that point. 
 

2.2 Although Officers were preparing to initially engage with the Totteridge Ward 
Councillors regarding the geographic area where consultation should take 
place, it was evident that they intended to carry out their own consultation, 
believing that this would save Officers time and expense. 
 

2.3 Accordingly in August 2014, the Totteridge Ward Councillors sent a letter and 
a questionnaire to residents of Naylor Road, Birley Road and Hayward Road 
(Appendix A). 
 

2.4 The content of the letter and questionnaire sought to obtain opinion from 
residents on whether they would be in favour of a Controlled Parking Zone 
(CPZ) operating between Monday and Sunday 2pm to 3pm, and sought to 
establish how many cars each property would buy a resident permit for. 
 

2.5 Although it is felt that the Councillors tried to give an overview of how a CPZ 
operates, the cost of permits and vouchers, and attempted to explain potential 
impacts such as there being a likely reduction in kerbside space used for 
parking through the provision of parking places and the need to maintain safe 
distance from driveways etc, it is considered that the information may not 
have given the whole picture about what a CPZ entails, and all potential 
impacts. 

91



 

2.6 In addition, the emphasis of the 2pm – 3pm restriction in the document, may 
have given the impression that a one-hour restriction, and this time period in 
particular was the only solution, or indeed the only option, when potential 
hours of operation had not been previously discussed. 
 

2.7 Ward Councillors have given Officers the feedback to their consultation.  
Details are as follows: 
 

Naylor Road (84 properties, 43% response)) 
Would you like a Controlled Parking Zone 2pm – 3pm in your road? 

Yes 28 (78%) No  8 (22%) 

 

Birley Road (71 properties, 63% response) 

Would you like a Controlled Parking Zone 2pm – 3pm in your road? 

Yes 40 (89%) No 5 (11%) 

 

Hayward Road (39 properties, 51% response) 

Would you like a Controlled Parking Zone 2pm – 3pm in your road? 

Yes 9 (45%) No 11 (55%) 

 

Overall (194 properties, 52% response) 

Would you like a Controlled Parking Zone 2pm – 3pm in your road? 

Yes 77 (76%) No 24 (23%) 

 

2.8 The 52% overall response to the consultation is considered high for this type 
of consultation and indicates that there is particular interest in this issue – 
supported by the fact that residents have submitted two petitions over the last 
couple of years.  Of the responses received to the consultation there is overall 
support for a 2pm - 3pm CPZ across the three roads, although in Hayward 
Road, a slight majority was not in favour of a 2pm - 3pm CPZ. 
 

2.9 Although the results suggest a majority in favour to a 2pm – 3pm CPZ 
consideration needs to be given to whether this is the most appropriate period 
of restriction for the area, and whether it aligns with the Council’s current 
parking enforcement resourcing arrangements. 
 

2.10 Nevertheless, there appears to be support for a one-hour CPZ in the area, 
which would deter those motorists who park in the roads throughout the 
daytime – in particular those who park in those roads as part of their daily 
commute via Totteridge and Whetstone Station, although parking surveys 
have not been undertaken to establish impacts or resident/commuter parking 
characteristics. 

 
2.11 In addition, one of the lead petitioners has been in consistent contact with 

Officers to reiterate their wish for a CPZ to be progressed due to the negative 
impacts the commuter parking has on their daily life, and more recently 
Officers have been advised that an e-petition has been set up asking for 

92



speed humps in Naylor Road, as there are regular near misses and sounds of 
cars using their horns to warn of an impending collision or the heated 
confrontation between drivers about who has right of way.   
 

2.12 The e-petition, which had 8 signatures, cites the commuter parking along the 
whole length of the road, which narrows the street considerably and impedes 
pedestrians’ visibility of oncoming vehicles when trying to cross the road.  It 
noted that several of residents’ pet cats have been killed or badly injured by 
speeding cars on the road.  
 

2.13 Although it is unlikely that the introduction of traffic calming features would be 
considered, any introduction of a CPZ would address the levels of commuter 
parking referred to, and would likely result in the road being less congested 
and easier to drive through, which may result in motorists being less inclined 
to speed through the road. 
 

2.14 Therefore as there appears to be particular demand for a CPZ to be 
introduced, Officers have designed a CPZ layout as shown in Appendix B to 
this report.  The layout includes Naylor Road, Birley Road and Hayward Road 
N20, and also provides for some residents of Totteridge Lane to be eligible for 
permits, as their ability to park in Totteridge Lane during the daytime would be 
affected due to the existence of Monday to Saturday 8am to 6.30pm waiting 
restrictions. 
 

2.15 It is noted that Officers have not liaised with Ward Councillors regarding the 
area to be consulted nor carried out the informal consultation which was part 
of the decision of the March 2014 Chipping Barnet Area Environment Sub-
Committee, and given that the Ward Councillors’ carried out their own 
consultation exercise, which does support that a CPZ could be proposed on a 
formal basis, this Committee is being asked whether they wish to take into 
consideration the results of the consultation exercise and agree that a 
statutory consultation could be carried out on a proposed detailed CPZ, or 
whether they wish for Officers to undertake their own informal consultation 
exercise as per the original March 2014 decision. 
 

2.16 In both instances, it is considered that Ward Councillor views should be 
sought in establishing the area to be consulted prior to the consultation taking 
place, whether the consultation is on an informal or on a statutory basis. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 
3.1 None 

 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 That the consultation decided upon will be carried out as soon as practicable, 
in line with existing work programmes, and should a statutory consultation be 
carried out all necessary statutory requirements under the Local Authorities’ 

93



Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulation 1996 (as 
amended) will be complied with. 

 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 Improving parking and traffic conditions in the Naylor Road, Birley Road and 
Hayward Road N20 and effectively managing the traffic movement throughout 
the local road network contributes to the Corporate Plan priority “A Successful 
London Suburb” and contribute to strategic objectives of “keeping Barnet 
moving through the efficient management of the roads and pavements 
network” by improving the quality of life for residents through affording them 
better parking protection and by improving the traffic and parking conditions, 
contributing to “The Sustainable Community Strategy for Barnet 2010-2020. 
 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 The costs of carrying out an informal consultation, subject to the decisions of 
the Sub-Committee, including drafting the relevant questionnaires, printing, 
writing to all properties in the agreed consultation area, and analysing the 
responses to the consultation are estimated to be £6,000 and could be met 
from the Local Implementation Plan (LIP) allocation for Parking Reviews  
 

5.2.2 The costs of carrying out a statutory consultation which includes drafting the 
relevant Traffic Management Orders and legal notices, advertising, writing to 
all properties in the agreed consultation area and considering feedback and 
objections to the proposed measures, are estimated to be £7,000 and could 
be met from the Local Implementation Plan (LIP) allocation for Parking 
Reviews. 
 

5.2.3 The estimated costs of introducing a CPZ in Naylor Road, Birley Road and 
Hayward Road, which require the making of the relevant Traffic Management 
Orders, writing to all properties that were previously consulted and the work to 
introduce new road signs and road markings, are estimated to be £23,000. 
These costs could be met from Local Implementation Plan (LIP) allocation for 
Parking Reviews. 
 

5.2.4 Any CPZ introduced will require sufficient on-going enforcement to ensure the 
measures are adhered to which will be met by the Special Parking Account. 
 

5.2.5 The lines and signs require periodic on-going routine maintenance which will 
be met by the Special Parking Account 
 

5.2.6 Income derived from permit, vouchers and Penalty Charge Notices will all be 
attributable to the Special Parking Account. 
 

94



5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.3.1 The Traffic Management Act 2004 places obligation on authorities to ensure 
the expeditious movement of traffic on their road network.  Authorities are 
required to make arrangements as they consider appropriate for planning and 
carrying out the action to be taken in performing the duty. 

 
5.3.2 The Council as the Highway Authority has the necessary legal powers to 

introduce or amend Traffic Management Orders through the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 
 

5.3.3 The Council’s Constitution Responsibility for Functions – Area Committees 
sets out within the terms of reference the functions which an Area Committee 
can discharge which includes local highways and safety schemes.    
 

5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 It is not considered the issues involved are likely to give rise to policy 
considerations as any CPZ would improve parking provision for residents and 
improve the traffic flow by helping to disperse local traffic into the wider 
network of local roads.  
 

5.4.2 It is considered the issues involved proposing or introducing a CPZ may lead 
to some level of public concern from local residents who feel do not wish for a 
CPZ to be introduced, or from residents of other roads in the area concerned 
about commuter parking being displaced into their road or network of roads.  
However, for both issues, it is considered that adequate consultation across a 
sufficient area will ensure that members of the public have the opportunity to 
comment in any informal consultation exercise or to any statutory consultation 
on any proposed CPZ, which will then be  
 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.5.1 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires a decision-maker to have ‘due 
regard’ to achieving a number of equality goals: (i) to eliminate discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by the Act; 
(ii) to advance equality of opportunity between those with protected 
characteristics and those without; and (iii) to foster good relations between 
persons with a relevant protected characteristic and those without. The 
relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. It 
also covers marriage and civil partnership with regard to eliminating 
discrimination. 
 

5.5.2 The safety elements incorporated into the CPZ design and resultant traffic 
movements benefit all road users equally as they would improve safety and 
traffic flow at those locations. 
 

 
5.6 Consultation and Engagement 

 

95



5.6.1 In the summer of 2014, the Totteridge Ward Councillors carried out an 
informal consultation with residents of Naylor Road, Birley Road and Hayward 
Road N20 by way of a letter and a short questionnaire asking residents 
whether they would be in favour of a 2pm – 3pm Controlled Parking Zone. 
  

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 Agenda and Issues List, Chipping Barnet Residents Forum 13th March 2013 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=157&MId=6677&V
er=4 
 

6.2 Agenda and Issues List, Chipping Barnet Residents Forum 26th March 2014 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=157&MId=7536&V
er=4 
 

6.3 Agenda and Minutes, Chipping Barnet Area Environment Sub-Committee 26th 
March 2014 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=155&MId=7534&V
er=4 
 

 

96



97



98

This page is intentionally left blank



99



100

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 
This report presents a review of a series of proposals made by the London Cycle 
Campaign (LCC) to provide ‘Space for Cycling’ in wards in the Chipping Barnet area. 
 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee note the contents of the report. 

 

2. That Committee provide officers with their views and comments in relation to 
the proposals in the Chipping Barnet Area. 
 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 During the 2014 Local election campaign the London Cycle Campaign (LCC) 

identified a local cycling improvement aimed at creating ‘Space for Cycling’ in 
every electoral ward in London, and invited candidates to support these. 

 

Chipping Barnet Area Committee 
 

12 February 2015 
  

Title  

Review of London Cycle Campaign 
proposed schemes for Chipping 
Barnet 

Report of Interim Commissioning Director for Environment 

Wards 
Brunswick Park, Coppetts, East Barnet, High Barnet, 
Oakleigh, Totteridge, Underhill 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         Appendix A –  Chipping Barnet Area LCC proposals Review 

Officer Contact Details  
Jane Shipman, Traffic and Development Telephone 0208359 
3555. 

AGENDA ITEM 12

101



 
1.2 At the meeting of the 18 June 2014, in response to a member’s item, the 

Committee resolved that the Director for Growth and Environment instruct 
officers to undertake an initial feasibility study, including cost, looking at the 
LCC proposals in Chipping Barnet Area. 

 
1.3 It was noted that a report will be brought back to the Area Sub-Committee for 

the Committee to determine which schemes should be consulted on and that 
officers would feed back to the London Cycle Campaign the views and 
comments raised by the Chipping Barnet Area Sub-Committee. 

 
1.4 Similar resolutions were made by the other area committees in relation LCC 

to proposals in their areas. 
 
1.5 The review of London Cycle Campaign proposed schemes for Chipping 

Barnet Area is set out in appendix A but is summarised below: 
 

Ward and LCC 
proposal 

Officer Comments on LCC proposals and 
associated costs 

Brunswick Park Ward 
Protected cycle lanes on 
Russell Lane and Bestile 
Circus 

Betstyle Circus This location is outside the 
borough and has not been considered in the report 
Russell Lane A lane on the uphill side of the road 
could be provided at an approximate cost of 
£47,000 if high cost utility diversion are not 
required. There would be some impact on parking 
provision however for much of the road affected 
residents have off-street parking. 

Coppetts Ward  
Safe routes for cycling to 
the Colney 
Hatch/Woodhouse Road 
shopping area 

This proposal would involve a major junction 
redesign which could also address other issues at 
the junction. The cost of a study to identify options 
for a redesigned junction, including surveys, traffic 
modelling and identifying outline costs for the 
options is estimated at £25,000. 

East Barnet Ward 
A cycling route along the 
Pymmes Brook Trail 

This is understood to refer to the bridleway that 
currently runs from Games Road near the 
boundary with the London borough of Barnet 
westwards through Hadley Common towards High 
Barnet. A budget cost of providing an improved 
track through the current unsurfaced section is 
about £120,000. 

High Barnet Ward 
Protected cycle lanes 
along the A1000 Great 
North Road 

See separate A1000 review 

Oakleigh Ward 
Protected cycle lanes 
along the A1000 & 
Longmore Avenue under 
the railway 

A1000 See separate A1000 review 
Longmore Avenue Cycle facilities could be 
provided through the bridge as a separate cycle 
path on the existing footways. This would cost in 
the region of (£85,000 including some contingency 
items). 

102



Totteridge Ward 
Protected cycle lanes 
along the A1000 High 
Road. (And closure of 
St. Margaret's Ave to 
motor vehicles) 
 

A1000 See separate A1000 review 
St. Margaret's Ave Closure by means of bollards 
with provision of an emergency gate near 
Totteridge Lane may be feasible. However 
potential impacts on the adjacent Whetstone traffic 
signals would need to be considered. Construction 
costs would be modest but assessment of the 
impacts and detailed design mean the overall cost 
is likely to be in the region of £25,000. 

Underhill 
Protected cycle lanes 
along A1000 Barnet Hill 

A1000 See separate A1000 review 
 

A1000 
The LCC proposals 
include a series of 
requests for a 
superhighway route 
along the A1000. These 
note that they are part of 
a concerted vision for a 
Cycle Superhighway 
route along the entire 
A1000 (the historic A1 / 
Great North Road) from 
High Barnet to East 
Finchley, connecting 
with TfL's Cycle 
Superhighway 12 (along 
the A1) into the City of 
London 

TfL’s proposals for Cycle Superhighway 12 from 
Central London to East Finchley or Muswell Hill 
are not now expected to proceed in the form 
originally envisaged. Nevertheless the A1000 is a 
route well used by existing cyclists and may be a 
natural route choice for new cyclists as they 
become more confident. 
A variety of features to provide a direct continuous 
route for cyclists might form part of a cycle 
superhighway but provision of decent width on-
carriageway cycle lanes that are not obstructed by 
parking (ideally available 24 hours a day) with 
provision for cyclists junctions.  Advanced stop line 
(ASL) reservoirs for cyclists would be expected at 
all traffic signal junction with provision for cyclists 
to reach these and particular consideration given 
to negotiating difficult areas. Coloured surfacing is 
not required on cycle lanes and the use of this has 
generally been avoided in Barnet. However in 
difficult locations it may help to highlight the 
presence of a route. For much of the route 
provision of cycle lanes would have an impact on 
the amount of parking provision that could be 
retained, with varying impacts on residents and 
others. Some indicative costings have been 
included in the main review but essentially costs to 
introduce lanes away from junctions would be 
relatively modest, but of limited benefit without 
addressing the associated challenging junctions.  
Costs for addressing some of these could be in 
excess of £1M but a more detailed initial 
assessment of the options at each location would 
be needed as a first step. Making provision 
through Barnet High Street might be better 
considered as part of a wider scheme to provide a 
20mph environment through the High Street, 
although this would again be a high cost option. 

 

103



2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 The recommendations provide feedback in response to the Committee’s 
earlier decision. The review has attempted to provide information on the 
feasibility of making the suggested provision noting constraints and potential 
issues and locations where more detailed investigations would be needed to 
fully consider the feasibility of the proposals. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 An initial brief was developed to undertake a fuller study across all the 
proposals but this was found to be unaffordable. 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Proposals that the area committee would like to see taken further, in terms of 
implementation, further studies or consultation will be included in reports to be 
prepared for consideration by the Environment Committee to agree future 
years work programmes and a future Cycling Strategy. The views of the area 
committee will be fed back to the London Cycle Campaign. 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
5.1.1 Provision of cycle facilities would particularly help delivery the Corporate Plan 

strategic objective of promoting responsible growth, development and success 
across the borough, and the priority outcome of maintaining a well designed, 
attractive and accessible place, with sustainable infrastructure across the 
borough. 
 

5.1.2 Making it easier for more people to cycle also helps address health objectives 
by providing more opportunities for physical activity. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 

5.2.1 There are no direct resources implications from this report. Local 
Implementation Plan (LIP) funding provided by Transport for London provides 
for work to develop and implement cycle routes and facilities. Proposals to be 
delivered with this funding will be agreed by the Environment Committee as 
part of the 2015/16 (or future years’) programmes of work in due course. 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
5.3.1 There are no specific legal implications in relation to this report. 
 
5.3.2 The Constitution section 15 Responsibility for Functions (Annex A - 

Membership and Terms of Reference of committees and partnership boards) 
provides that Area Committees’ functions include “in relation to the area 
covered by the Committee. Discharge any functions, within the budget and 
policy framework agreed by Policy and Resources, of the theme committees 
that they agree are more properly delegated to a more local level.  These 
include but are not limited to: 6 Local highways and safety schemes”. 

104



 
5.3.3 The same annex provides that the Environment Committee has specific 

responsibilities for commissioning Transport and traffic management including 
agreement of London Transport Strategy-Local Implementation Plan.  
 

5.4 Risk Management 
5.4.1 There are no particular risks associated with this decision. However there are 

potential risks associated with introducing some of the measures that any 
future decision to do so would need to consider. 

• Some proposals would impact on parking which may result in negative 
customer perceptions and publicity. However failure to make provision for 
cyclists may also affect perceptions. 

• Some proposals could have an impact on road network performance that 
would need to be mitigated and balanced against the benefits of making 
the provision. 

• Poorly designed cycle facilities may increase the risks of injury to cyclists, 
however well designed facilities may reduce risks. Increasing cycling levels 
overall helps to reduce the level of injury risk to individual cyclists.  

 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  
5.5.1 The decision is not considered to compromise the authority in fulfilment of its 

Equality Duty to have due regard to the need to:  

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other  conduct  prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 

• advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups  

• foster good relations between people from different groups  
 

Provision of cycling facilities may provide differential benefits to groups more 
likely to cycle. This includes children and young adults and men and ‘White 
British’ ethnic group. However provision may also remove some of the barriers 
to cycling for other groups.  An impact assessment of the borough’s Local 
Implementation Plan identified, based on satisfaction survey responses, that 
provision of cycle facilities may be a higher priority for minority ethnic groups 
in the borough than for the population as a whole.  Cyclists sharing pedestrian 
facilities can be a concern and some older and disabled people can be at 
greater risk if this occurs. Providing facilities for cyclists may introduce shared 
facilities in controlled situations or reduce uncontrolled use of pavements by 
cyclists concerned about cycling on a carriageway without facilities. 
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
5.6.1 Consultation requirements for any proposals that are developed further would 

vary depending on the scale and impact of these.  
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 The meeting of the Chipping Barnet Area Committee of 18 June 2014: 

RESOLVED: - That the Strategic Director for Growth and Environment instruct 
officer to undertake an initial feasibility study, including cost, looking at the 
proposals in Chipping Barnet Area. 

105



It was noted that a report will be brought back to the Area Sub-Committee for 
the Committee to determine which schemes should be consulted on. 
It was further noted that officers would feed back to the London Cycle 
Campaign the views and comments raised by the Chipping Barnet Area Sub-
Committee. 
Minutes of the Area Committee meeting can be found via this link: 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=711&MId=7980&V
er=4  

 
 

106



Appendix A 
Chipping Barnet Area LCC proposals Review 
 
Brunswick Park Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Protected cycle lanes on Russell Lane and Bestile Circus 
 
High speed rat running motor traffic is intimidating for cyclists in this ward. Protected space for cyclists 
at the most hazardous points such as the uphill section of Russell lane and at Bestile circus would 
remove the barriers to cycling in the area. 
 
Review 
 
Betstyle Circus This location is outside the borough and has not been considered in this report. 
 
Russell Lane 
The ‘uphill’ section of Russell Lane is chiefly in two parts: 
(1) A single carriageway section from the mini-roundabout at the junction with Brunswick Park Road 
and Church Hill Road that is approximately 230m long and 7.25m wide kerb to kerb.  
(2) A dual carriageway section approximately 390m long with an uphill carriageway that is 5.5m wide. 
(3) A flatter single carriageway section about 300m long from the end of the dual carriageway to 
Oakleigh Road North 
 
(1) The single carriageway section is too narrow to incorporate a minimum width cycle lane (1.5m) 
with two 3m wide general traffic lanes. In lightly trafficked locations arrangements with less space can 
be introduced but Russell Lane is a busy road carrying a frequent bus service and the ‘dynamic width’ 
needed by cyclists is greater uphill to allow for ‘wobble-room’.  There appears to be scope to set back 
the kerb sufficiently to provide the minimum widths shown above, however initial indications are that 
there are buried utility services in the area that may need to be diverted or protected before the works 
could proceed.  Further enquiries and potentially trial excavation would be required to establish the 
extent and cost of this – but depending on the exact location, material and depth of services these 
costs may be significant. 
 
Currently parking is not controlled on this section of Russell Lane, with parking commonly occurring 
on the downhill side of the road. In order to avoid increased congestion and vehicles encroaching on 
an uphill cycle lane in order to pass, restriction of parking on both sides of throughout the single 
carriageway section would be required. A mandatory cycle lane would restrict parking on the uphill 
side of the road. This should operate at least throughout the daytime (7am to 7pm). A mandatory lane 
would be preferable to an advisory lane given the vulnerability of cyclists if motor vehicles encroach 
on a relatively narrow uphill lane. 
 
(2) A generous cycle lane and adjacent general traffic lane could be installed through the dual 
carriageway section of the road. In order to ensure the benefits to cyclists are not undermined by 
parking in the cycle lane installation as a mandatory cycle lane or as an advisory lane supported by 
waiting restrictions would be necessary. (Waiting restrictions to reinforce no parking in a mandatory 
lane might also be advisable).  Although parking occurs in this section the shops (and hence parking 
associated with these) are on the other side of the road. Premises on the uphill side of the road are 
generally residential and most have off street parking. 
 
If utility costs for section 1 were found to be high, introduction of a cycle facility and/or parking controls 
through the dual carriageway section only could still be beneficial for cyclists. 
 
(3) The flatter single carriageway section is around 8.5m wide at the narrowest point – adequate for a 
cycle lane in one direction while maintaining two lanes of general traffic. Restricting parking on the 
side of the road with the cycle lane would be needed. Residential properties on much of this section 
are set back behind wide verges with mature trees. They do not have off-street parking and so use 
the road to park.  Some additional parking might be provided in compensation on the verges. The 
verges are maintained as housing assets and further investigation would be required to establish 

107



whether this would be acceptable. The additional costs of providing such facilities are not included in 
the estimate below. 
Budget estimate:  

Surveys, trial holes etc £10,000 

Set back kerb and make good 
carriageway (section 1) 

£23,000 

Signs and lines £5,000 

Introduce traffic order (advertising 
etc – assumes single order) 

£1,000 

Subtotal £39,000 

Scheme development, design & 
supervision costs 

£12,000 

Total £47,000 

Contingency figure if gas main 
diversion required in section 1 – say 
£500/m 

 
£115,000 

Total with utility contingency £162,000 

 
Breakdown of Design & Supervision costs 

Scheme development and design £5,000 

Traffic order consultation/making £3,000 

Implementation £4,000 

Subtotal £12,000 

 
 

Coppetts Ward  
 
LCC proposal 
Safe routes for cycling to the Colney Hatch/Woodhouse Road shopping area 
 
The junction of A1003 Woodhouse road with Colney Hatch Lane is a depressed shopping area where 
masses of road space are wasted and blocked by queuing motor traffic. Simplifying the traffic junction 
would free up space for high quality cycle access and improved public realm for pedestrian access to 
shops and cafes. 
 
Review 
This proposal would involve a major junction redesign. In addition to the suggested opportunity there 
are issues at this junction in terms of general traffic movement and for buses turning right from 
Woodhouse Road to Colney Hatch Lane. The current traffic signal arrangement has been optimised 
as far as possible given the current conflicting demands. 
 
A study to identify options for a redesigned junction, including surveys, traffic modelling and 
identifying outline costs for the options is estimated at £25,000. 
 
 

East Barnet Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
A cycling route along the Pymmes Brook Trail 
 
The Pymmes Brook Trail should be made accessible for considerate cycling because it's ideal for less 
able cyclists such as families and older people. It provides the only safe link across the railway in this 
area. This cycle route would connect the communities of High Barnet and East Barnet with the open 
spaces and University Campus in Trent Park and beyond. 
 
Review 
 
This is understood to refer to the bridleway that currently runs from Games Road near the boundary 
with the London borough of Barnet westwards through Hadley Common towards High Barnet. The 

108



section roughly from the rear of JCoSS school towards Bakers Hill that provides the link over the 
railway is a surfaced track. However the section east of the school is unmetalled and uneven, 
becoming narrow at the east end. It is muddy in wet weather with run-off creating channels in the 
path. Cycling is permitted on bridleways but with no requirement for the surface to be suitable for 
cycling. The London Cycle Guide maps identify the section noting ‘off road bikes recommended’. The 
unmetalled section of the route is around 600m long. 
 
Any changes to the current arrangement should include consultation with Hadley Commoners and 
other users of the route.  Although numbers of horse riders using the route are not thought to be 
particularly high, the route does provide a link between locations (in Barnet and at Trent Park) where 
there are horse riding establishments.  Riders may prefer to retain an unmetalled surface. Experience 
in Enfield with an unmetalled surfacing material (on routes through Forty Hall and Hillyfields) suggests 
this would be slightly cheaper than a tarmac surface.  The material used seems to have performed 
well despite flooding during extreme weather conditions although areas with high run-off suffered. The 
Enfield application has not been subject to horse traffic (although the supplier identifies brideways as 
a potential use) so further investigation would be required to be confident of durability. 
 
A budget overall cost for provision of a 2.5m – 3m wide track a metalled surface thoughout the 
currently unmetalled stretch is £120,000. This includes some allowance for restricted access.  
 
 

High Barnet Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Protected cycle lanes along the A1000 Great North Road 
 
Protected space for cycling created standard will connect with neighbouring wards and allow many 
more people to cycle to work and shopping areas on the Great North Road.  
This measure is part of a concerted vision for a Cycle Superhighway route along the entire A1000 (the 
historic A1 / Great North Road) from High Barnet to East Finchely, connecting with TfL's Cycle 
Superhighway 12 (along the A1) into the City of London 
 
Review 
A1000: See separate A1000 review. 
 
 

Oakleigh Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Oakleigh Ward Protected cycle lanes along the A1000 & Longmore Avenue under the railway 
 
Protected space for cycling is needed on the A1000. Separate cycle routes should be in place where 
the road narrows on Longmore Avenue under the rail viaduct. This measure is part of a concerted 
vision for a Cycle Superhighway route along the entire A1000 (the historic A1 / Great North Road) 
from High Barnet to East Finchely, 
 
Review 
A1000: See separate A1000 review. 
 
Longmore Avenue: 
The carriageway passes through one arch of the railway bridge with footways passing through 
adjacent arches. The arch and carriageway width is inadequate (at around 7.5m) to accommodate 
dedicated cycle lanes on carriageway without major changes for general traffic (e.g. by making the 
road one-way or signalising movement through the bridge). However the footways that pass through 
the adjacent arches are generous at around 3.8m wide.  A transition from cycling on the carriageway 
each side of the bridge to using a lane on the pavement could be introduced. 
 
The existing footway through each arch of the bridge could be divided into an approximately 1.8m 
wide pedestrian section and a 2.0m wide cycling section. (Allowance is made for a buffer zone as the 
route would be immediately adjacent to the side of the arch. It would not really be adequate to 

109



accommodate opposing cyclists but in practice most cycle traffic would be travelling westbound 
through the southern arch and eastbound through the northern arch). 
 
Work that would be needed to accommodate this includes: 

Works Budget estimate 

1. Relocation of 4 No lighting columns under the bridge 
arches 

4 x £1000 + contingency for 
work in restricted space. 

£5,000 

2. Provision of a transition between the carriageway and 
footway in advance of the bridge in each direction 

2 x £5000 (assumes provision 
of angled ramp rather than 
simply a dropped kerb and 
tactiles). 

£10,000 

3. A transition back from footway to carriageway after the 
bridge in each direction. Ideally kerb realignment or 
buildout (and at a minimum road markings) to provide 
protection to cyclists rejoining the carriageway 

2 x £5,000 (including build-out 
for protection) 
 

£10,000 

4. Removal (or relocation if feasible) of the pedestrian 
refuge to the east of the bridge (necessary to allow safe 
transition back onto the carriageway). More detailed 
consideration would be needed to establish whether 
relocation closer to Lancaster Road or to the other side 
of the bridge would be feasible (impact on turning 
movements). 

£10,000 (including relocation) 
 

 
 
 
 

£10,000 

5. On the west side of the bridge a tree and a post (that 
may be associated with communications equipment) 
restrict the space available. Removal or relocation of 
these would be preferable if it can be achieved. 

Allow £10,000 (contingency 
for relocation of comms 
equipment/provision of 
replacement tree). 

£10,000 

6. Additional footway renewal on the southwest side of the 
bridge beyond that required as part of kerbworks, and 
relocation of equipment above. 

Allow £10,000 
 

£10,000 

7. Provide signs and lines £1,000 

Sub-total Say £60,000 

  

Other items  

Investigations (surveys, trial excavations etc) £5,000 

Development and detailed design £15,000 

Works supervision £5,000 

Sub-total £25,000 

Total £85,000 

 
 

Totteridge Ward 
 
LCC proposal 
Protected cycle lanes along the A1000 High Road 
 
A1000 High Street should have protected space for cycling, which will allow many more people to 
cycle to work and cycle to the shopping areas on the High Road. This measure is part of a concerted 
vision for a Cycle Superhighway route along the entire A1000 (the historic A1 / Great North Road) 
from High Barnet to East Finchley, connecting with TfL's Cycle Superhighway 12 (along the A1) into 
the City of London. In creating the superhighway route, St. Margaret's Ave should be closed to 
through motor traffic as it is currently a nasty rat run. 
 
Review 
A1000: See separate A1000 review. 
 
St Margaret’s Avenue: 

110



 
In closing a road the need for vehicles (particularly larger vehicles) reaching the closure to turn needs 
to be considered. A closure of St Margaret’s Avenue at, or close to the Totteridge Lane end of the 
road, effected with bollards and an emergency access gate, would permit other motor vehicles to turn 
at the junction with Manus Way. 
 
Closure would have an impact on the traffic signals at the junction of the A1000 with Totteridge Lane. 
Both vehicles accessing St Margaret’s Avenue and vehicles using it as a through route would be 
forced to access from a particular direction and this would inevitably increase the numbers of vehicles 
passing through the traffic signal junction. The scale of the impact would need to be identified through 
traffic surveys and potentially junction modelling in order to obtain the necessary network assurance 
permissions for the work 
 
While the construction costs are likely to be modest at around £5,000, the cost of undertaking the 
assessment of impacts on the traffic signalled junction and progressing the proposal to detailed 
design stage could be in the region of £20,000.  Alternatively any assessment of impacts might be 
incorporated in assessments that would be needed as part of consideration of a route along the 
A1000. 
 
Budget construction cost: £5,000 
Other costs: £20,000 
 

Underhill 
 
LCC proposal 
Protected cycle lanes along A1000 Barnet Hill 
 
The A1000 Barnet Hill is the major route through here and is also the main accessible north-south 
route for people on bikes. It needs to have protected space for cycling to the Cycle Superhighway 
standard to accommodate all modes of traffic serving the local community.   
 
This measure part of a concerted vision for a Cycle Superhighway route along the entire A1000 (the 
historic A1 / Great North Road) from High Barnet to East Finchely, connecting with TfL's Cycle 
Superhighway 12 (along the A1) into the City of London. 
 
Review 
A1000: See separate A1000 review. 
 
 

A1000 
 
The LCC proposals include a series of requests for a superhighway route along the A1000. These 
note that they are part of a concerted vision for a Cycle Superhighway route along the entire A1000 
(the historic A1 / Great North Road) from High Barnet to East Finchley, connecting with TfL's Cycle 
Superhighway 12 (along the A1) into the City of London. 
 
Review 
We understand that TfL’s proposals for Cycle Superhighway 12 from Central London to East Finchley 
or Muswell Hill are not now expected to proceed in the form originally envisaged however a Quietway 
Route (intended to be a cross-London network of high-quality, low-traffic cycle routes) is being 
considered following a similar alignment. This might ultimately link to a Quietway following the existing 
off road and quiet road route cycle route that parallels the A1000 through much of the Chipping 
Barnet area. 
 
The A1000 nevertheless remains a route well used by existing cyclists and may be a natural route 
choice for new cyclists as they become more confident. 
 
A variety of features to provide a direct continuous route for cyclists might form part of a cycle 
superhighway but provision of decent width on-carriageway cycle lanes that are not obstructed by 
parking (ideally available 24 hours a day) with provision for cyclists junctions.  Advanced stop line 

111



(ASL) reservoirs for cyclists would be expected at all traffic signal junction with provision for cyclists to 
reach these and particular consideration given to negotiating difficult areas. Coloured surfacing is not 
required on cycle lanes and the use of this has generally been avoided in Barnet generally, because 
of the implications for future maintenance and appearance of the street scene. However in difficult 
locations it may help to highlight the presence of a route or cyclists generally when other treatments 
are not an option and review below identifies some locations where this might be part of a solution.  
Consideration is given below to the feasibility of making provision in different sections of the road, 
noting constraints and potential issues, locations where more detailed investigations would be needed 
or alternative approaches might be appropriate. 
 
Cost of provision of facilities on the sections between major junctions may be relatively modest 
(although more major proposals in the Chipping Barnet Area in conjunction with other work are  
 
Coniston Close to Rasper Road 
The carriageway is around 12 metres wide without other features except bus stops and a zebra 
crossing from Coniston Road to Green Road. Parking is essentially unrestricted and is common. An 
arrangement permitting parking on one side of the road only with a buffer zone then a cycle lane, two 
general traffic lanes and a second cycle lane could be accommodated.  The lanes would start after 
the crossing and bus stops (or be discontinuous through these features assuming they were present 
in the area to the south. 
 
The overall carriageway width increases between Green Road and Rasper Road and a central 
reserve is provided with a zebra crossing (and a bus stop). Cycle lanes would be discontinuous 
through the controlled area of the zebra crossing but proposed changes to current regulations are 
expected to provide more options for providing greater continuity through this area. 
 
Costs to introduce signs, lines and parking restrictions would be in the order of £5000 excluding the 
costs of development, detailed design, consultation and supervision etc. 
 
Rasper Road to south of Whetstone Signals 
Two 6m+ carriageways are provided separated by a discontinuous central reservation. Tidal peak 
hour parking restrictions are provided at the south end of this stretch with ‘at any time’ parking 
restrictions further north.  Without restricting parking further it is almost inevitable that a cycle lane in 
the area would not be useable outside peak periods. Extension of the peak hour restrictions to cover 
a greater part of the day, if not all the time, should be included. Some compromise on lane continuity 
to accommodate loading may be needed. 
 
More extensive work to consider measures to assist cyclists turning into or out of Friern Barnet Road 
has not been included here but may be beneficial. 
 
Whetstone signals 
The current traffic management arrangements at the junction are complex and the junction operates 
close to capacity at the moment. Any proposals for cycle provision at the junction would require traffic 
modelling to determine impacts on the operation of the junction and the A1000. 
 
Cyclists travelling ahead on the A1000 need to move out of (or to the right of) the left hand turn lane. 
The provision of advanced stop line (ASL) reservoirs for cyclists would be the most basic provision 
but space constraints limit the options for providing feeder lanes to these without reducing lanes 
available, and consequent impacts on junction operation.  While layouts involving ASLs but no 
significant feeder lane are available they would be unsuitable in the context of a superhighway route. 
 
Major changes to the junction are likely to be needed to make good provision for cyclists here. 
Alternative junction layouts to help accommodate the development growth expected in the area are 
being investigated currently which may provide the opportunity to achieve this. 
 
Whetstone High Road (Athenaeum Road to Downland Close) 
The carriageway width is generally between 12 and 13 metres with tidal parking restrictions at peak 
hours (7-10am southbound and 4-7pm southbound). In order to provide for general traffic lanes and a 
cycle lanes in each direction parking on one side of the road would need to be restricted throughout 
the day. Parking could be retained on the other side of the road with a buffer zone provided to the 

112



cycle lane. The wide footways in the area might permit alternative parking provision to be made in 
some locations. Dedicated provision would also be needed to accommodate loading and disabled 
parking. Where pedestrian refuges are provided the space is sufficient to permit a cycle lane and a 
general traffic lane to be provided on each side. 
 
Whetstone High Road (Downland Close to Travelodge/Halfords) 
North of Downland Close pedestrian refuges, with central hatching and turning gaps are provided. 
Parking controls are mainly 7am-7pm with some tidal restrictions provided.  The overall carriageway 
width is around 12m and a cycle lane and general traffic lane in each direction could be 
accommodated, with possible adjustments to the central features. Restricting parking further to 24 
hours or at least 7am-7pm throughout would be needed. 
 
South of Buckingham Avenue (Travelodge/Halfords) to Friern Mount Drive 
The main carriageway width is between 12 and 13 metres wide. There are central queuing / right turn 
pocket areas in parts of the road. A zebra crossing with a central refuge is provided just north of 
Buckingham Avenue and a pedestrian refuge near Friern Mount Drive. A service road is present on 
the east side of the road. Parking is unrestricted except at the zebra crossing and bus stops in the 
area. There is space past the central features for a cycle lane and general traffic lane to be provided – 
with parking restricted where this is not already the case. Parking in the service road would still be 
possible. Where central markings etc are not present parking might also be accommodated on one 
side of the A1000. Provision for southbound cycles might also be made in the service road if 
necessary but this would be a poorer option for cyclists and introduce complications crossing side 
roads. 
 
Friern Mount Drive to Farnham Close 
The carriageway is around 12 metres wide. Parking is currently unrestricted but most properties have 
off-street parking. A cycle lane and general traffic lane in each direction could be provided. Parkign 
might be provided on one side of the road with a buffer zone to the cycle lane if needed. 
 
Farnham Road to Walfield Avenue (north) 
The main carriageway is between 10.5m and 12.5 with a narrow service road on the west side. A 
zebra crossing with pedestrian reservation is provided near the junction with Walfield Avenue (south). 
Space is adequate past the crossing for cycles and general traffic. Parking is unrestricted except at 
the crossing currently. With cycle lanes provided parking might be provided on one side of the road in 
part of the area. Parking in the service road currently occurs even though in the northern part there is 
really inadequate space for this. 
 
Walfield Avenue (north) to Lyonsdown Road 
The carriageway varies between 9.5m and about 13m wide with right turn provision at the junctions of 
Northumberland Road and Willenhall Avenue. On-street parking is currently unrestricted although 
demand at this location is not great. Some adjustment to the central markings may be required to 
accommodate cycle lanes. 
 
Lyonsdown Road junction 
The current arrangement at this junction presents difficulties for southbound cyclists who need to 
move across the left turn slip road to continue ahead.  A heavy left turning movement would still be a 
problem if a nearside cycle lane were provided due to left-turners cutting across cyclists travelling 
ahead. A cycle lane could be provided moving from the nearside to a position between the left and 
ahead lanes (with relocation of the pedestrian refuge at the crossing to the west), but the conflict with 
left turning traffic would still exist to some degree. An alternative arrangement that provides for ahead 
and straight-on movements for all traffic from the left hand southbound lane might be introduced. 
Prominent road markings (cycle symbols centrally in the lane and possibly a coloured surface 
treatment across the full width of the lane) could then be used to encourage cyclists to take a primary 
(central) position in the lane and to encourage other users of the lane to think of it as a space 
primarily for cyclists which other road users have been permitted to use too.  
 
Either arrangement would require narrowing of the northbound carriageway and relocation of the 
central reservation. Two southbound lanes of traffic passing the junction could make turning 
movements more difficult and potentially less safe however. Full signalisation of the junction might 

113



also need to be considered.  (A wide footway exists on to the east on the southbound approach to the 
junction, but would not provide a practical alternative route as it would need to stop at the junction). 
 
Lyonsdown Road to Raydean Road 
Away from the Lyonsdown Road junction the main carriageway is around 10-10.5m wide. Parking is 
uncontrolled and on street parking associated, at least in part, with the motor works to the west of the 
road, occurs.  A service road is present for part of the stretch on the west of the road with a wide 
eastern footway. Two pedestrian refuges are present within this stretch with a right turn pocket 
associated with the adjacent side road in each case. Space is inadequate to accommodate both a 
general traffic lane and a cycle lane in both directions within the current carriageway if the refuges are 
retained. At present space for southbound cyclists past the islands is within a range that may result in 
vehicles trying to pass cyclists where space does not permit. Except at the islands there is space to 
accommodate a cycle lane and a general traffic lane in each direction if parking is prevented. 
Adjustments at the refuges and junctions to widen the road locally would be needed at the pedestrian 
refuges.  The wide footways provide scope for adjustments and might permit alternative parking 
provision to be made in some locations if necessary. 
 
Raydean Road to Station Road 
The carriageway continues around 10m wide to the approach to the signals. A right turn waiting 
facility for southbound traffic turning into Raydean Road is provided. Tidal waiting restrictions (7-10am 
southbound, 4-7pm northbound) are provided through much of this stretch. Cycle and general traffic 
lanes can be accommodated with further restrictions to parking, however at the junction with Raydean 
Road localised carriageway widening so that the right turn provision can be retained would be 
advisable to avoid right turners holding up traffic travelling ahead.  The service road at this location 
could provide an alternative route for northbound cyclists (if the current northbound no entry restriction 
were removed for all traffic or via a contra-flow cycle lane). However parking in the service road would 
then need greater control, and keeping the route on the main carriageway would be preferable from 
the point of view of continuity of the route. 
 
A1000 junction with Station Road 
In order to maintain the current number of general traffic lanes at the junction (and so maintain 
junction capacity) adjustments to the junction would be needed. The left turn slip roads from the 
southbound A1000 into Station Road and from Station Road to the A1000 will also present difficulties 
for cyclists. Wide service road west of the junction and space on the central island suggest that a 
significant redesign of the junction to provide more space in a more conventional arrangement may be 
possible.  The service road might provide a bypass for northbound cyclists in some potential 
arrangements and this help reduce the scale of work needed at the main junction. However to 
accommodate southbound cyclists and other traffic (and to ensure provision for turning cyclists) 
significant redesign is likely to be needed. Construction costs for a major junction improvements might 
be in the region of £1M+ and the likelihood that significant expensive utility diversion would be needed 
would increase this considerably.  A study to identify and model outline proposals, including lower 
cost proposals if possible, could be expected to cost around £25,000. 
 
Station Road to Underhill 
The existing carriageway space under the bridge would not accommodate the existing general traffic 
a lanes and cycle lanes. Some cycle provision might be made on the wide western footway but this 
would come into conflict with the Fairfield Way and Underhill junctions. However using the wide 
footway to provide a widened carriageway overall and relocate the pedestrian crossing refuge further 
west could permit a cycle lane to be provided on the carriageway in each direction.   Localised 
widening at the Underhill junction would be needed and previous investigations in this area have 
highlighted the presence of utility services that would be particularly expensive to divert. Once again a 
study to identify and model outline options would be needed as a first step at a cost of around 
£20,000. 
The current left turn lane arrangement into Fairfield Way and Underhill will present a particular 
difficulty for cyclists. This might be addressed by restricting some turning movements but with 
potentially adverse impacts on the surrounding network and the operation of the traffic signals. 
Provision of a cycle lane within the widened carriageway approaching an advanced stop line at the 
signals between the two general traffic lanes would be an alternative or an arrangement similar to that 
suggested for Lyonsdown Road might also be employed, using a coloured surface across the full 

114



width of the inside lane to encourage road users to think of the entire lane as space primarily for 
cyclists that other road users are permitted to use. 
 
Barnet Hill 
The road is currently mainly set out with two general traffic lanes uphill and a single lane downhill. The 
uphill lane provides an opportunity for lighter motor vehicles to pass slow moving buses or lorries on 
the hill. The (approx.) 10m carriageway would provide just enough room for a single general traffic 
lane and a cycle lane in each direction. A wider than minimum cycle lane would be needed on the 
downhill side of the road because of the presence of the wall adjacent to the carriageway and would 
be desirable on the uphill side to allow for cyclist ‘wobble’ while travelling uphill. 
Removal of the ‘overtaking’ facility for uphill traffic might increase driver frustration and could be 
expected to have some impact on traffic capacity of the A1000, although the presence of traffic 
signalled junctions at both ends may limit the impact of this. 
 
A1000 junction with the Meadway 
The overall highway width each side of the junction provides very limited scope to introduce cycle 
lanes without impacting on the operation of the junction. The footways are relatively narrow in this 
area and heavily used so taking significant space from these is not really an option. However loss of 
general traffic lanes at the stop line would undoubtedly affect the junction capacity.  Without restricting 
movements into or out of Meadway or accepting the impacts on the main road of reduced traffic 
capacity at the junction, a solution using a coloured surface treatment to highlight the whole inside 
lane in both directions on the A1000 (as suggested at the Lyonsdown Road and Underhill junctions) 
might provide a suitable means of maintaining the continuity of the route. 
 
High Street from the Meadway junction to Wood Street 
Much of the High Street maintains two general traffic lanes in each direction currently, with parking, 
loading and some bus stop and stand provision in inset bays. However at the narrowest point the 
general width and bus stops restrict the available width to one lane in each direction.  In order to 
accommodate cycle lanes through this part of the High Street reduction to a single general traffic lane 
in each direction throughout would be needed. Separately adjustments to mitigate the effects of the 
pinchpoint on general traffic movement are being explored.  Care would be needed in arrangements 
at the Wood Street junction but reasonable provision within the space available seems feasible in 
conjunction with a single general lane in each direction further south. 
 
Wood Street to Moxon Street 
The width of road beside the church would prevent the provision of cycle lanes.  Cycle use of the 
stretch could be made prominent by the use of cycle route signs, cycle carriageway signing in the 
centre of each lane and possible coloured surfacing. Other options might be to introduce wider 
environmental changes throughout the High Street to change the character of the street to one where 
a 20mph speed limit could apply and traffic would be less dominant while still able to pass through, or 
to introduce one way traffic with a contra-flow cycle lane in conjunction with wider changes to traffic 
movement in the area. 
 
High Street from Moxon Street to St Albans Road 
The carriageway narrows from around 11m just north of Moxon Street to about 9m at The Spires 
before widening again to about 13m before the St Albans Road junction.  Parking bays are provided 
in parts of the road. 
A general traffic lane and a cycle lane in each direction could be provided through the entire length, 
but only limited parking could be retained. An arrangement that introduced a 20mph environment 
throughout the High Street and providing for cyclists in general traffic lanes through a less traffic 
dominated environment would be an alternative. The costs of developing and implementing such a 
scheme would clearly be high (in excess of £1M). 
 
St Albans Road to Hadley Green Road 
The carriageway width is mainly around 11 to 11.5m with a short stretch at Hadley Parade around 
10m wide.  A pedestrian refuge and build out is provided just north of Hadley Parade with lane widths 
of approx. 3.5m through this gap. These widths are not ideal for cyclists being with in a range that 
may encourage other vehicles to pass too close.  Parking control varies from ‘at any time’ restrictions 
permitting loading only out of peak hours and parking bays allowing parking for residents or pay by 
phone. To provide a cycle lane and a general traffic lane through this area in each direction would 

115



have an impact on permitted parking. Parking on one side of the road only with a buffer zone to the 
cycle lane could be accommodated at the widest points only. A change to the environment as 
suggested above could allow cycling in a 20mph area in lanes shared with general traffic, so retaining 
more space for other uses.  
 
Hadley Green Road to Dury Road 
The carriageway width through Hadley Green is slightly too narrow, at least in part, to accommodate 
adequate on-carriageway cycle lanes and general traffic lanes. Measures to mitigate the effects of a 
slightly sub-standard layout would need to be investigated. Permitted parking would also need to be 
restricted or removed. 
 
There may also be scope to widen slightly onto the adjacent green at a cost of perhaps £50,000 over 
the 500m of Hadley Green. Further investigation into the maintenance implications of widening onto 
the adjacent green would be required. A route across the green would not be acceptable because it is 
recognised as an important area of grassland. 
 
Hadley Highstone 
A section of the road has a central reservation. On carriageway cycle lanes might be provided through 
this section if parking were prevented (and without restricting parking in the laybys). Currently on 
street parking, presumably by local residents, is common. If the central reserve were removed parking 
could be retained on one side of the road (with a buffer zone and then the cycle lane). The single 
carriageway sections are wide enough to accommodate cycle lanes. Again restriction of parking 
would be needed. 
 
Special consideration would need to be given to treatment at the pedestrian island north of Dury 
Road.  Provision of cycle symbols on the carriageway to highlight the presence of cyclists past the 
island and encourage them to take a primary road position at this point may be sufficient but 
depending on exact dimensions and detailed layout consideration adjustments or alternative 
pedestrian facilities may be needed. 
 
Construction costs for provision of cycle lanes and associated parking restrictions and signage only in 
the area would be below £10,000. The construction costs would increase considerably if the central 
reserve were removed, the pedestrian refuge changed or other more major works were required. An 
alternative approach might be to consider a major re-design of the street environment in this location, 
although clearly this would be more expensive still. 
 
North of Hadley Highstone 
In this area the carriageway is generally too narrow to accommodate dedicated cycle lanes. The 
eastern footway is generally too narrow to accommodate shared use and there is little scope to widen 
the carriageway or make cycle provision on the western verge.  Alternative routeing onward towards 
Potters Bar via Kitts End Road may be preferable to trying to treat the A1000. 
 

116


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the last Meeting
	Appendix 1 - Budget Allocation - Decision Table

	7 Walksafe N10 Phase 2 - Colney Hatch Lane Pedestrain and Saftey Improvements
	Appendix A Conceptual Drawing No. 60713-P

	8 Walksafe N14 - Feasibility Study
	Appendix A - Speed Data
	Appendix B - Accident Data
	Appendix C Œ Pedestrian Survey
	Appendix D - Drawings

	9 Pollard Road Traffic Management Scheme
	Appendecies

	10 Victoria Road Area Traffic Management Scheme
	Appendcies  - Victoria Road

	11 Naylor and Birley Road N20 - request for a Controlled Parking Zone
	Appendix A Œ Copy of Totteridge Ward Councillors™ consultation document
	Appendix B Œ Drawing Number 22014_001 - Proposed CPZ layout

	12 Review of London Cycle Campaign proposed schemes for Chipping Barnet
	Appendix A Œ  Chipping Barnet Area LCC proposals Review


